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CEO's Statement MEIRESE -

We understand that Rome was not built in a. day, yet we are more s
courageous in facing our deficiencies than ever before. We are #El:l:, ﬁ{r‘jﬁbu%ﬁ'\ﬁﬁa E,Q']T;'i )

dedicated to perfect our internal systems and procedures through . E7TEf R385 1 RTE R4
constant effort, so as to introduce gradual fundamental changes =~ % « {fégﬁ}%illéﬁ—ﬁ’]i%” ° .

frc;m. inside out, and from details to the whole.

In 2013, taking into account the long-term development of
Mengniu, we worked with a renowned consultancy firm to
formulate a new Five-Yéar Strategic Plan, which has been QL%E =
implemented since 2013. According to the plan, we will fully Hiﬂifﬁ,iﬂ
integrate the value of responsibility into each of our internal ,%,%F&afr—
systems and the dailyoperations. We will adopt scientific approach =
in coordination and planning, and focus closely on branding,
channels, business structUre, human resources, etc.

Driven by Mengnlu s constant efforts to appreciate the dlversrfled ’
- demands of consumers, we look forward to achieving a ; ghie %
balanced development by fully enhancing the quality sysx-
the entire productron chaln optrmrsmg the produc _‘

fgftﬁnmntﬂ %Efgggmfﬁfﬂun
Eﬁﬂﬂi’ltﬁlﬁlﬁﬁ BRI - RAHE
SO EMA EREIE— S RICARY - fim
BIATIa FoodsSBiE BB  RARSNEE
MEBHE  BEREMBIREZZHERERS : &
B3| A EEE Al FoodsMABRM G EBHEN |
it EREEEER  REFRTHRSEENEEE
and management efficiency. In addition, byj &y infthodl & o Bk ﬁi_fﬁi%ﬁi&ﬂ?@%‘ﬁ?ﬁ%ﬂﬁiﬁﬂﬂﬁ :
production chain management sysems; gk O Grbup and  HYERRSEMEISIEE ¢ BRI KRR E
Arla Foods, two major strategic part Nafih gnlu we will &~ ?En!?)})?’”ﬂ;dl$ :

improve the management of ragch .

to enhance the efficiency oﬂ;ﬁi&}:‘ _
. redeployed the strategig, roacfe Ao, .jmess structure and
. matching of supply and dethagd t[‘gj* gk

manner and perfect the milzGlitees infrastructure.

China Mengniu Dairy Company Limited Annual Report 2012 -
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We strive to restore our brand, furt_hér strengthen our product Ekﬁkfﬁﬁ ;Cjz{Fi}HL,{WMRm i=.,4

- competitiveness and optimise our product portfolio in the five .'

years to come. Meanwhile, we will inmiprove market penetration
"and channel expansion, and thus enhance olr nationwide sales kﬂéﬁé’? .uaiﬁ-

capability and realise a leaner management structure. Enhancement }é,&ﬂg,—eﬁzﬁlﬂz_
and optimisation of human resources is also our fotus. On the one

@5ﬁ~ﬁﬁ B

hand, we will fully develop the corporate culture of “Sunshine, E%E‘\JPWME% &

Nobility, Responsibility and Innovation” (B¢ » i + BfE« £ &I RegEt 2l IR LR IIR A4
“#7), and attract more talents to join us; and on the other hand, we L ‘?ﬂ‘]If’Fﬁ%ﬂ,%ﬁEb
will provide training and promotion opportunities to existing key %ﬁil , 7 B kAl |
staff through the “Dawn Scheme” (BR§5+8)). We Hope to increase  $T T %S LT o '

team cohesiveness by creating a good working environment and &,
offering an incentive mechanism for the purpose of laying a soh‘
foundation in terms of human- resources reserves and intellect for

- the reformation of Mengriiu.
, st , q“?tﬁ%ﬁ:"%ﬂ'ﬁi%ﬁﬁmi‘iﬁﬁﬁmr
attracted great concem of the community that every g , '/E B PEARTTHRAEE - #AERTIH
pereSROnsibl ISR Z AR FAE FNEFEZEKX - @MRKRE R
%IE\WHEEEI‘\J#H% - EmeAET - mROMA
£ - BATEREEE N  FeAEBESERE
2 BY BENAMS  THEEABGTEES
RIEER R EERIGRIESASE - B
PIHFRRBRTRNZ )  AIUARFINHEE

: concept of spreadmg happiness. to e ,."' €
Through perseverarice, we crave for cr8ati rea Value for our % - BETMRREIEEKNEE  —5— ibﬁk,?di

P_

é%rm,%fvlengmu into a aztl:ﬁﬁﬁ%m i)

casses!

FRFH
k4

F B =E=A=HAR

HERFARERAT —B——FFY
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EEBMESN

Economic Environment in China ' ﬂh@]#é‘é,ﬂ‘ﬁ/%’
There was a slight slowdown- in China’s economic growth under
difficult global environment for the year 2012. However, guided by 'F ' i‘f‘ﬁﬂéﬁﬁﬂ% QJ@IEM%# =
the PRC government's principle of progressing with stability, the E5&t » ®2FH WEE
GDP for the year exceeded RMB5O trillion, representing a year-on-  Jg * Ht};iﬂ?§7 8% + IR

year growtn of 7.8%, down by 1.4 percentage points as compared
with.2011. The actual growth of urban household income per - ﬂEEAi’]ﬁEHﬁU\‘?I"T\ .‘a

. capita and rural household net income per capita were 9.6% and 2‘%%@%5;%)\&2'
' 10.7% respectively. Retail sales of consumer goods for the year = L%
totaled RMB20,716.7 billion, representing an actual year-on-year
growth of 12.1% eliminating the impact of price changes. The - o
consumer price for the year showed a 2.6% year-on-year rise, down
by 2.8 percentage pomts as compared with 2011

Fast-movmg Consumer Goods and Darry lnduetry 9’1%
Structural upgrade of products remained a key dnver for the«‘k‘zﬁﬂ i

For the dairy industry, the government and' society contififi

reinforce regulated development through strlngent' syp : ;‘f..,v
and media scrutiny. Driven by external environfiapt, i ) i—ﬂiﬁﬂ/ﬁ %ﬁ'ﬁlﬁi’éﬂ?ﬁ@ﬂ_ LS ﬁ%ﬁﬁﬁ
JaTTgy) Ahu

demand, total sales of the dairy industry mamtgi“ - 3 ath.  ERFHBEER R ll]}fﬁ,ré; BEESmIAE
Meanwhile, product mix within the industry wa%f Neptinaraded. MERRBIEMABE - FRAPERLE 1%1&——
in response to the rising consumer demangifor hlg%& dairy = K - BER - %Hﬂjﬂ{ﬁﬁ‘) = RRRESTS
products. Furthermore, high priced af %l;rz ,gadde' products - FEE - BN - AT - RYEKERHELRY
tbe continuous £ » %%ﬁ%ﬁk$ﬁ§i’ﬁ% fiﬁﬁmﬁfﬁﬁiﬁﬁ

.grew at an accelerated rate. However i) ece
rise in prices, the price of raw g _t,;ﬁ °
. relatively fast growth of feed' '

Market lns ectors for MENGNIU ARLA (B(154F) “Trustworthy Mllk-
Powder” ( ltﬁl.iﬁ) visited the production base in Inner Mongolia

BHEge [T TBEERERARE SRR

R R RSE

Created the "Happy Hours for Baskeétball Fans” (
sixth NBA China Games

REAENBAS BESITE [TRMEEREX]

China Mengniu Dalry Company Limited Annual Report 2012
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Accordmg to AC Nlelsen Mengniu’s liquid milk products captured IRIBACEBEHZERIERER - ¥
- 27.4% of the market share of the sales of domestic liquid milk m{ﬁggg—ﬁ%mfﬁg—%éﬁ{
during the year,.maintaining its top position in the market. Star @B BHIBE AL ﬂﬁﬂﬁ] S i
brands such as Milk Deluxe (%752%) also continued to lead the. B4A#IEMTIE o

-high-end market

BUS!NESS REVIEW
- Action One —Quality System Reform

In 2012, by aligning its quality management system with the —% EHNESEIR
.international” market-leading counterparts, Mengniu optimised its = B 2 VRIEIREN  E
processes including milk sources, production and sales, and set up 37 'f‘ 8 "u- o Bl BARYTE
a new quality-and safety management structure. Firstly, Mengniu - SN AR F RV EEME - HIER—

established a quality and safety administration centre, which is < & Sy E}glﬂzi_ﬁ;‘;{ﬁ%uﬁﬁ °
responsible for formulating quality systems, developing unn‘ormeQ B = Tﬁ}}ﬁg_gig:p/u N MEEE

standards, and assessing and inspecting quality management
work. In addition, Mengniu established three separate qggh ¥
o admmlstratlon centres in milk -sources, operatlons and sales i

ai’]fﬁiéﬁiﬁﬂﬁ%%?FF B’J%iﬂ
‘E_.meﬁ’l_?&ﬁ SAHEHAIEER
BB EE TEFERM OB D NE
o bRty ™ 5 PRSI - R R
‘and safety management duties and responsbl Eﬁ"ljiﬁﬁﬁéo

effective coordmatlon among departments and qual
across the entlre production chain. S

_ raDl6y §¢E$W¥i§§§éaﬂ%§%&)\77ksﬁ’]§
quahty and safety management system= 3, euflafce” R @ﬁﬁ%ﬁal‘f{%’lﬂ HRTESMEERER - &
Syl KRBELRBRAENAERAA B RERE - MBET
BERBEENEIE  2EEASFNEEY
BIKTF o

consumer goods industry, alloca
different operational Seg ment g
strengthening the tram,;\ oI

skills.

e

T e e
SONPEEA TS A

ALY, TTIw AL AR T

Contlnued o build the Charity Well " (2.03F)

S TR —s] BEES . SRS TR0

HEREARERAT —F——EFH
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" These measures have laid a solid foundation for quality
. management within Mengniu. In 2013, Mengniu 'will further
. implement standardised quality and safety management and

introduce more advanced internationalised inspection techniques ’

into the productjon -process through cooperation with Arla Foods.
Mengniu will also encourage all staff to participate in quality
management so that quality control can be brought into full play.

To reinforce the commitment to quality, Mengniu will take concrete
actions by caring and refining every detail with sincerity and
practicality, to spread happiness among consumers.

Action Two —- Milk Sources Enhancement
Mengniu continued to enhance its strength in milk sources by
promoting scaled ranching and monitoring quality sources more

“strictly, Through, provision of entrusted loans, raw milk prepayment, *’i*}gﬁ
investment in large-scale ranches and .construction "of modernlsed -
ranch facilities, the proportion of Mengniu’s milk sources proyl ed
by ranches and scaled farms further mcreased to 93%, as[&gdlp

posmon within the |ndustry

management of Mengniu's collaboratlve ranch 55D
Mengniu's own professional team to mari

the management standards of thefrgné e ‘
Arge bsafety of raw

imr‘e streamlines
SES by ‘consolidating .
5\ader veterinary drugs,

milk supply. The Resource aQ%Te@h
the workflow and reduces.thevoperatry;
: productlon materials lnc[,udlﬁg.,p %
equipment, etc. In addlﬁb. \

Mengniu, & =
The des@%_ iy

Foods wd 9
proges agevgrass planting to preliminary processing of
milk,a] afeombination of advanced, scientific, intelligent

fally-friendly international farming concepts with

Mengniu’ s'sélf-mlt ranch management.. It will be served as the

~ model ranch of milk sources management of the Group.

China Mengniu Dairy Company Limited - Annual Report 2012
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Leveraging its position as a large-scale dairy product producer,
Mengniu aims at facilitating the transformation of upstream
industries to scaled ranching, so as to ensure reliable product quality
for Mengniu, arid contribute to the upgrade of dairy industry in

. China as well.

Action Three — International Strategic Collaboration

-0On 15 June 2012, ‘Mengniu entered into a long-term strategic
cooperatlon agreement with Aria Foods, an European dairy
enterprise. Arla Foods became the second largest strategic
shareholder of Mengniu by acquiring its equity interest, and began
to participate in its daily operatlons .

Mengnlu and Arla Foods effmently formulated a range of pla ‘
to expedite coopera’uon which has been implemented in phase. hig

" Supported by the Ministry of Agriculture of the PRC angyth

Ministry of Food; Agriculture and Fisheries of the. ngdom. )

Denmark, and prepared over. the course of severajg
negotlatlon the China-Denmark Cooperation Centreg

e dzar construction.
tréic%‘ced the Fourier
L¥fiiderprint technology (18

j cy of raw milk testing.
& also proactlvely pushed

Mengnlu s self-built ranches which are??- !
The China-Denmark Coopera’clon
Transform Infra Red spectrum m

BN ﬁ}}iﬁ)ﬂﬂﬁ/x) tp enh;- Esl

, RURIEALRS

first group of outs Ahding™s fet\‘;ted from each department will

' be sent to Denmark% . ‘daily! management and broaden their
.' 20,13. The China-Denmark Cooperation

Several prOJects for cooperatlon and

ey . .
lality*dairy products including UHT milk, milk powder,
t er produced by Arla Foods will also be brought to

support from respective government departments of both countries.
Mengniu believes that Arla Foods’ 140-year long histery and

Ref #132114
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ERZEEING  tEERENRESRTE

HHBRE -

xwﬂArla FoodsmAf’EfgilJTﬁ&ﬁ*BFﬁmx
HX % o #BArla FoodsRiE140F MM AELA |

%ﬁﬁ%ﬁﬁ-ﬁ%%kﬁ%ﬁ%%ﬁ%ﬁﬂﬁ

hERFALERAT T -FFR



‘Schedile 3

18

Management Discussion and Analysis EEEN MR

BEBARRTA - IEJB#&EEPI;LL%:n
%E’J Al

advanced‘industrial experience will be beneficial to the establishment
of an international technical exchange platform between the two }Eﬂﬁﬁ?—?é‘f&l\é‘]@u Heghe

enterprises. At the same time, the partnership will open a window. ., ’
for Chinese dairy industry, so as to promote the development of the

whole industry.

Action Four - Branding Str ategy Reform L TRz N-REERE »
The vision of “New Mengniu” has been reconstructed with a brand REEHBETIHEE , ¢ _LT DAL
concept focusing on.”Quality” and “Happiness”. Under this theme, Eﬁu[%‘%ﬁjjﬁ,qﬂ; ] el (B 4535 18P

. the overall sub-brand structure was established, marking the birth T
of a brand-oriented vision driven by consumer needs. Through the }i$ ,mﬁ&'w il
concept, Mengniu delivered the corporate vision of caring for the BHZEk

BERTHE
i & Eﬂi R
m%ﬁf’%%\% ¢

needs.of consumers and bringing happiness to consumers by paying  55% >) 4
every bit of attention to every drop of raw milk. o

28 "RETERAFHBNRERD
RS AL RIEEE - B RE IR
e BN « RETRTH
BT e T - B BT DB 1A
oA ..J?fiéaquffégﬁ/ﬁfﬁﬁiJﬂ'JE PR
\ B[R ODBBIRRES - ANE
"3 ,miﬂﬂ@%ﬂiﬁ SIS OEFEBEES
) REREMBRARBESRBRAEESH  ERE
HEEFESREHEETER  STENBARRE
FHREERBEE  BRAKRREZTESA
ﬁ%%%%ﬁnﬂfﬁ%%iﬁ CFTRAE IR IR EREER
B SRR RERE - hENBREHERS
ROk BREEEEEARREERAC IR
ﬁ.ﬁ’ﬂaﬁ“\ﬁﬁﬁ‘f—. —CHFRBREGTRLESE

m'age “A thtie Hi%pp ess Shers
B [RBBEER] ZHREHR

China Mengniu Dairy Combany Limited Annual Report 2012
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Euro football competitions, Mengnfu launched a series of television’

advertisements .under the theme -of “Selection Through Trust” (&
| BfEHEFTZIE) to connect the brand image with healthy and
. energetic sports stars. Merigniu was also designated as thé "Official
"Milk Products for Mongolian Athletes at the London 2012 Olympic
Games” (20124ER[RBPEES KA IEB HIEEF M) by the General
- Administration of Sport of Mongolia (R& & 54B) and the
Mongolian Foundation for the Promotion of the Olympic Games (&
HERACEZERESE). In addition, Mengniu has been sponsoring

" China's space programme for nine consecutive-years and took the

opportunity of the successful launch of Shenzhou 9 Spacecraft (g
#U5R) to promote its quality products

Mengniu'reorgan'ised the overall structure of its sub-brands By, 5
eliminating certain brands and formulating the strategy of focusmg;

its resources on selected key brands. Mengniu regroupée ;;th
sub-brands under four categones in Ilght of consurer ngi d

- centre lmplemented tanlor—made brandlng strateg
directions and focuses. '

“In the fature, Mengniu will continue tg™Byj
two main themes of “Quality” and."Ha%ﬁ'! B
with consumers and stakeholders mor% proggtival

"order to gradually enhance. consumerf canfidente the brand and
' ‘Mengnlu will also carry
Stoymiget consumer needs.

e,

Durlng the yean Mé?ignv-f"qued on co.mprehenswe
ming at taking more controls

Sales ¢ y@ :
;f’. \créa Siffg overall efficiency. At present,

)

tTesc solldatlon on the three below aspects.
i %«% p

over sales termln%l?lssw
Mengnlu has flnls e

1 rt-e Y10 the points-of-sale to better cater for the demand
' utors and-increase overall operational efficiency with a

. ‘ o "_‘D“
vieﬁcui itating business development.

M.engnlu integrated sales resources of UHT milk, chilled products
and ice cream, and set Up centralised platforms based on key

' fuhttlons such’as sales management and channel. The platforms
were built for the purpose of sharing marketing resources and
enhancing the utilisation efficiency of resources.

Ref #132114
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Mengnlu has formulated workflow and inspection standards to
standardise the management process of all points-of-sale so that
front-end sales will become more controllable with professional and

standardised -operational procedures.

With regard to channel promotion,-Mengniu has adjusted its
branding strategies to focus on key brands with an aim .to boost
. - their sales performance and channel penetration.

The integration of the sales channel is still in progress. In the future,
Mengniu intends to establish a standardised and informationalised

) ‘operation model and perfect its system through resources

consolidation and brands competitiveness.

Actxon Six — Information System Upgrade

With an aim of establishing an informationalised operatlon‘"‘.'

management system that can quickly adapt to changes and meet

internal control requirements, Mengniu launched a pro;a% .

upgrade the information system in accordance with the itjd
standards during the year. Both the human resources mgjgg
system and the financial pudget management sys’ :m'vv-

standardised accordingly.

control of refrigeration and tracking of transp rta icTes,
also.shortened the transportatlon dlstance thé“?eby lo f ogistics

FINANCIAL REVIEW A -:;vm s
Food quality and safety 1nc1d ;& dp rn Veatfadversely affected
consumer confidence apy sales«\t t;]n extent. In face of
the severe challenges, ngmu‘ ‘%‘gﬁe initiative to identify
its shortcomings and per 1:[5 management system.
By devoting greater ef %‘?s activities and enhancing

‘communications wn’%ﬁg Mer¥ Mengniu has been regaining
the affected: mar’ s SHALR

gradually
' amounted

' 'der review, revenue of .the Group

Revenue &

Revenue for 2012 amounted to RMB36,080.4 mllhon representing’

a decline of 3.5% as compared with the revenue of RMB37,387.8
million in 2011. The decrease was mainly attributablée to the drop
in sales volume, partially offset by the price increase as a result of

China Mengnlu Dairy Company Limited  Annual Report 2012
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the optlmlsatlon of product mix. Meanwhﬂe revenue of key brands @i &FmaF  FaEH - K gzrg i
including Milk Deluxe (f5752%), Champion (Z2£2l), Future Star (F ;Kl&)\ E%#}miﬁﬂﬁ
F£) and Fruit Milk Drink (B#7) has maintained fast growth
since their launch into the market, all of which recorded a double-
" digit increase in 2012, while Youyi C (#2£C) enjoyed a three-digit

growth durmg the year.

Gross Profit o ‘
Gross profit of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2012 =B AeT :

amounted. to RMB9,054.6. million (2011;°RMB9,592.2 million), a 45 : NIREKOSIOAIST) - §—~¢/W*
decrease of 5.6% as compared with 2011. During the year under ! lk%ﬁ{téuqm;’ﬁéﬁ‘ 7
review, the Group continued to enhance the control over product . £ nn}ﬁ};ﬁ[,é%,%ﬁ‘ﬂ;{fﬁ .—_
quality and restore consumer confidence in its brand and dairy
products by increasing the proportion of milk sources purchase&
from ranches and scaled farms, resulting in a rise in the cost of raw "%
milk. Meanwhile, the Group devoted more resources to ﬁdp ;
quallty inspection staff and deploymg more inspection equjpmen

*m¢rﬁ.ﬂﬁmxﬂmgﬁﬂA
‘Ao REBEERNRFPEEISA%,
1 25.7%) o

AR PR ARG R AN TR LR - AEE—
FEBEABEEMTSERRE  BEEEEXK
RUMBEEERS : Z—HEGENELCHHE
- EERAHEENEEHE - CRBHMRE -
VERBE AR IARRME ¢ B - AKERBER
EHRRRARENESTEATRNER TAS -
E{b%/m&l‘%fiﬁéiﬁﬁkﬂi °

: _.addmon the Group optlmlsed loglstlé‘s-‘- hd red c’é@c‘i"transportatlon-

cost through effective proq@%-o vsales and distribution
arrangements and flexible deployent .gpeyances
. g

Operating Expenses_g‘*@;‘ ; ‘ mesm . _ .
’up}for 2012 were RMB7,817.3 754\ T AEFNRBERAARE

The operating exge%ses‘ 7@%} i
million (2011: RMB i%kz “accounting for approximately ~ 78.173{BJE (=% ——# AR#79.92187T)
21.7% of the Grou rayenué 11 21.4%). Among which, the = #EAREBRA21.7%(ZF——F : 21.4%) °
list ‘gpses for the year decreased by 4% - Heh » 2FHEEREHBEAR -FTHRI% - Fop=1
il ‘iheev' s year to approximately RMB6,425.8 AR #64.2588 (=B ——F : AR¥66.947
L RKIBBY6944 7 million), representing 17.8% of the {8JT) - 1;52!&%'1{5(/\17.8%(:2-——'$ :
eSO 17, 9%) Starting from the second half of  17.9%) « B =B — = F FREHE - AEBS
Mhodified its sales channels strategies in light of i‘f%x{tﬁiixzﬂﬁié%mi_mlﬂ* PRI ARAL on
3 to{ e market, and optimised its brand portfollo and JEEBMMEEEE  BOENGRHEALEHE
I B ABRTHELSREGEERNEAN  2FNE
. 200 promotlonal resources. The percentage of advertising ¢&*%§ﬁ15WAKﬁJﬂﬂTﬁEG 4% (=%
a"'T -" otlon expenses to revenue for the year shghtly declinedto ——% :7.6%)° ‘

FERFARERAT B —F5R
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Management Discussion and Analysis BEERARAN

During the year, the Group not only devoted more resources to
the quality management system, but also recruited a renowned
professmnal agency to optimise its internal structure to increase
the management efficiency. . This led to a slight increase in the
administrative and other operating expenses to RMB1,391.5 million
(2011: RMB1,297.3 million), and its percentage to the Group’s
" revenue has increased to 3.9% (2011: 3.5%).

Profit from Operating Activities and Profit Aﬁnbutable to

Owners of the Company
Owing to the decrease in turnover year-on-year and the increase in

costs, the Group's earnings before interest, taxes, depreciation and .
amortisation (EBITDA) was RMB2,525.0. million (2011: RMB2, 812 1
mllllon) EBITDA margln "declined to 7.0% (2011: 7.5%). :

the year (201 1 4, 3%)

fncome Tax Expenses

. %Group

I _ §onSIste nt with

milk sources, etc. Its mvest

’%—L “nstratmg the Group's
n e\"

determination and efforté to*e; a af’,"ty of milk sources.

Gr 4.6 million as at 31 December 2012 (31
Deceme o BS 985.5 million), indicating a strong flnanCIaI

position a '- 4 althy cash flow of the Group

The outstandlng bank loans of the Group amounted to RMB573.8

" million (31 December 2011: RMB537.5 million), which was

repayable within one year. Furthermore, the bank loaris totaling
RMB93.4 million (31 December 2011; RMB167.1 mllhon) were flxed

interest-bearing loans.

China Mengntu Dalry Company Limited - Annual Report. 2012
Ref #132114 ’
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$$Em:?”:$+:ﬁf+t;a-,
— P

The total equity of the Group was RMB13,071.8 million as at 31
December 2012 (31 December 2011: RMB12,048.8 million), and - ARE130.718BT (=T —
the debt-to-equity ratio (total bank loans over total equity) of the B : AR¥120.488{87)

Group was 4.4% (31 December 201.1: 4.5%). . E%#ﬁ%ﬁl&%b{ﬁ%éaﬁ4. »
TEF—H:45%) i A

“The Group’s finance costs amounted to RMB41.75 million (2011: ZIK%EI#JEM&EEZF% 5
RMB60.94 million), representing approximately 0.1% of the £ : AE¥s6,0 ; T R
Group's revenue (2011: 0.2%). ‘ = : &

' PRODUCTS _ |
To meet the ever-increasing consumer needs for natural daity BRE
products, Mehgniu concentrated on category expansion along oz
with research and' development of pure natural and additive-fre&%, {EE¥gt
pr{)ducts, in addition to its continuous efforts.in developing high- £
end products catering for diversified market segments. Mé’ﬁ‘\gnla o
will exert efforts to develop a safe, premium and healt )

%pro dile]
structure. )

DR B #90.1% (= -

bR BRI - S
EEE SIS R D

PHER T - EOREDBEE
R BBOTAATRE -

A DAL 1y 22753 B IERARY - KOO RSB LBY
Mg? REARE - FREOREMT

Mengniu’s business is mainly divided into th
which are liquid milk, ice cream and other dair¥;
performance during the year are highlighted as follo

., G

5
R

EanagmEy

HERGULARAT —F--FFH
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Schedule 2

Liquid milk

SRE AT
‘ £ :90.1%)

(2011 90,1%) of the total revenue of Mengniu
1&)\7%)&&**3@3 3701%‘77:(_%:—~$ AR#337. 012%77:) {anﬂe

Revenue amounted to RMB19,706.2
million (2011: RMB20,837.6 million),
accounting for 60.9% (2011: 61.8%)
of the liquid milk segment revenue
BABARYE197.062B7T( =R

——4 : AR¥208.376487T) *
R A B60.9% (=B ——
. 41 61.8%) :

UHT milk
UHTH}

AL
Aijakening |
 Youth Milk

Arla Foods Pure Milk
Arla Foods 26445

China Mengniu Dairy Company.Limited Annual Report 2012
Ref #132114

@'ai']¢%) ahd Awakening Youth Shuhuo Milk (428
7% 447), which' help to improve the health of the bones
and the cardlovascular system for the middle-aged and the .

elderly
wieshretEER J‘Etﬂ*ﬁ‘ﬂ)ﬂh%ﬁ)&"a%@}ﬁ&/um““ﬁ% :

FRERES ﬁﬂ#ﬁ&ﬂ%é‘!ﬁ/ﬁ#—ﬂ’

Expanded the Future Star (k% 2) product category by
launching Future Star Kid Milk (ﬁ@%@/j‘/j\ﬁfﬁeﬁqtﬂ})

" and Future Star Milk-Nutrition Balance (RKZEZEXRF

| ABE B )

A IS AT %%Ed\d\fﬁ%ﬁ?f#éﬂ&%ﬁ&%
fﬁeﬂw%ﬁw@ifﬁfﬁm

Developed the innovative brand Latte (#34F) with several
flavours ‘including chocolate, vanilla and banana to bnng
leisure nutrition to consumers

BERBANRNINE - SKREN - BE §%¥%$§D
bR - ﬁxﬁ%%%ﬂi%ﬁﬂ“ﬁ ' :

Ar/a Foods Pure Milk (Arla Foods A#4E#3), which is i
imported from Europe, was launched in China .

AR R O M0Arla FoodsA D ER B BT
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-Milk beverages Revenue amounted to RMB8,038.8

H#H million (2011: RMB8,309.6 million),

« accounting for 24.9% (2011: 24.7%) ay Young” G2
of the liquid milk segment revenue - EE) B .
WABARES0388EBTL(=F R ERERC BER)2EE M
——fg: A\RWB3006{8) © AEDERIIEE s
Hﬂ%%%AﬁMWM 72— '
£ 24. 7%) : _ ~ _ Continu Eharket coverage of Suan Suan

u (B The campaign “Mengniu Suan

m Academy" (%L'FEQEQ?LEE;*B

: *%E% MR REMMAER SRS

ned the market share by expanding the product"
of Fru:t M//k Drink (ﬁ;ﬁﬁ)

Suan S'uan":R—lu R
man - mHC M _ -
' 7 The PET-packaged milk beverages Peanut Milk (FE££43)

and Oat Milk (#EZ&45) were launched into the market -

| PETEBSISRRIELLD - HEA L0

Champion (EE2£#1) reémained the top seller
FRARRBEEEE

“New product Truly Pure Yogurt (4£%), an additive-free
pure natural healthy yogurt, was launched into the market
ﬁﬂﬁﬁun_tm Hﬁ;ﬂfmu@i?ﬁ@}ﬂ“ﬂb

~ Future Star Kid Yogurt (*%Eﬁ’:ﬁtﬁﬁqté/?) was

launched to bring brand synergy into full play . _
%ﬁ?@ﬁfﬁtﬁ&#}f/}%ﬁuntﬁi R R R AR

p‘héﬁ?;;ion Truly Pu'/e Yogurt . Furure Star § K:d Yogurt
B - F 23 *}k'sﬁ_ﬁﬁ?zvi@#ﬂ

' . - | AEREARARAT —B-——FFA
Ref #132114 .
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NG echnology Supervision of Inrier Mongolra .
%%Enu%ﬁiﬁ’éﬁﬁ fﬁk/u;l,*ﬁjlﬁﬁmaﬁg =E
E*ﬁ?ﬁA{’ﬁ BT RE BIRE Z%J

Ice cream’ - Revenue amounted to RMB3, 171 5 - De/uxe (#,%752 ) launched a pure % raks
e o mrlllon (2011 RMB3 2586mrl||on), product named Ge/ato WhICh is ma
; accountlng for 8.8% (2011: 8.7%) . materials usrng tradltronal ltahan .
" of the revenue of Mengniu . L EEEERHERAERTRGE FEHET
BABAREILTIISET(ZR ﬁ&mfﬁﬁﬂiﬁ Lt
——%: \RM32.586(HT) © S
‘ {5%4:@1&)\#]8 8%( 2o—
[ S % : 8, 7%) . '
Other dairy ) gles coverage of milk powder was expanded The
products - million (2011 RMB428 il Jrustworthy Milk Powder” (FILER) project; pioneered
Hb LR accounting for 1,6% (2011: ¥pilot project with the Administration of Quality- and

.of the revenue of Mengnug,ac i

1&)\7,%/\1%%5%19,

- Product Ilnes were added to the cheese segment; the
sales of new products such as Cheese Baby (##8A) and
European Yogurt.Cheese (Bt B4R increased
ﬁbﬁ&%aﬁiﬂébﬂémﬁ% %ﬁﬁ! Mﬁﬂ‘}?ﬁ%%%’?uniﬁﬁeﬂ

gﬁ%

s g R IR E R B R E S - MBESS -
SHPT - FANEE BTSN - BFERN - B

Apart from the Mainland China-market, Mengniu’s producrs-are

also being sold in Hong Kong, Macau, Singapore and Mongolia.
During the year under review, despite the slowdown in overall REKRESFHTERHEERNE - ARG

sales growth due to the food safety incidents, the business in ~ ¥f¥EayTiTiE R & $HRME - HHIHRRE RIS
overseas markets still achieved stable performance through targeted  FER -
marketrng and sales strategres

3

~ China Mengniu Dairy Company Limited Annual Report 2012
Ref #132114
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With ifs strong commitment to social respon5|b|l|ty, Mengmq\bn

perform its social responSIblhtles

. IEH) to help relieve the water sbo"g

- TRESTE), spreadl

‘ Mengnlu has alwa

Management Dlscussmn and Analysus *”éﬁ]ﬁ’—]‘ﬁ&m #

In the future, Mengniu will continue to monitor the consumer

. demands and market trends closely, and seize the market

opportunities in chilled products, organic products and infant milk
formula. Mengniu will step up its efforts on developing potential
new business. Meanwhile, Mengniu will continue to develop and
expand high-end brands and diversify product portfolio to increase
the profitability of each business ségment.

PRODUCTION

In response to market demands, Mengniu's “annual production

* capacity reached 7.58 million tons by December 2012 (December

2011: 7;-05 million tons).
SQC!AL RES.PONSIBIL!T‘Y

not only actively participated in various community actlvmes
also.attached great importance to environmental proteg
sustainable development of. ecology In 2012, Mengn ‘-*“

Public Welfare Activities -
-Mengniu Iaunched the campaign ”Lookif fo g ‘Q

Eart -%' our” (IR —
i FRroject” (B
lem in remote areas.

Mengniu also founded’ an educa o
Realisation” under ”Pro %‘
P

Upstream Eccsy &

EEA ) too

j ‘ih fons caused by manure, biogas slurry, blogas

f‘o Mengmu apphed advanced technologles

R4 alectricity and organic fertilisers, so as to achieve recyclmg
use of esources and balanced ecologlcal development.

Ref #132114

S0 Support the “Dream

i 78R Province (BREEFEE
ln%zgﬁin the society. - -
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Water Resoutce Preservation
Mengniu pays great attention to water resource preservatron
and also devotes considerable resources to build and improve
water ecology environment. During the year, Mengniu set up 28
sewage disposal plants (with an annual treatment capacity of 15
million tons) under real-time supervision. The processed water
complied with the national discharge standards and was reused
- for afforestation, road cleaning and toilet flushing in the plants.
_Besides, Mengniu managed to rebuild and restore rivers around
the headquarters so as to improve the functions of floods and
:droughts prevention, wind-shielding and sand stabilisation, water
preservatron (with a reserving capacity of about 60,000 tons

of water) to optimise the ecosystem. The renovation added an

extra 80,000 square metres of greenbelt. Through technological

upgrade and elimination of energy consuming equipment, Mengniu -

managed to save a total of 350, 000 tons of water annually

of rmplementmg scientific design and optrmls i
of functional layout, lighting system and pow
workshops. With regard to the supply chain,

_closely with its suppliers to identify agd us%iﬁ? 3

‘ forestry certification system) packagmg?‘_ae A5V
) ust?eam partners
: ?rvrronmentally-

through innovative measures Ay h 5
friendly stools made from dlsca;d ¥

s,,.\ ',‘“s}
HUMAN RESOUFC&«
As at 31 December 2012 '

gng Kong. Total staff costs for
"chlef executivés’ remuneration,
9.2 million (2011 RMB1,745:1

strategic develpment of Mengniu.

China Mengnru Dairy Company Limited  Annual Report 2012
Flef #132114
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Mengniu draws great emphasis on Internal staff cultivation while -

bringing in professional expertise from the outside. To develop
and reserve more outstanding talents for long-term development,

* Mengniu launched the “Dawn Scheme” (2&31El), a talent’

cultivation program ailowing outstanding staff to study advanced

management 'and techniques at Arla Foods in Denmark every year. .

- PROSPECTS
Stepping into 2013, there is still great development potential and

room for rmpro.vement for China’s dairy industry, in view of the
continuous urbanisation and the ever-increasing spending power
_and health awareness of consumers. Under the government’s
stringent supervision, the dairy.industry would  maintain a heatthy
development along with a more concentrated industry trend. A%

one of the leaders in China’s dairy market Mengnru is contrnurng to, _

overall enhancement in the coming years. By adh"'
of strategy orientation, market driven busrness fraNSTaN Na

Five-Year Strategrc Plan. In the future, | j
“enhance its cross-departmental collahg TSAlE
cohesiveness and management capabr% i

and existing.culture. Meanwhrle, Men' n
forward .the upgrade of lnfor;ajtro 3
operatrng system in accorda A i)

ilFegP Ninue to carry
T build the core

: efforts on research '

and products that e Jg{et d&mands, product mix optlmrsatron

Qn, in order to achieve a balanced

o be a challenging year. Mengniu will start
nt measures guiding by the new Frve Year

oduct portfolio based on market demands and enhance
the in rnatronal management level. Mengnru is committed to
becoming a dairy enterprise that delivers products of the best
quality and in the most professional and devoted manner in China,
and bringing happiness to consumers.

". ftol, rationalise brand structure, enhance brand image,

Ref #132114 ‘
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’Dlrectors and Senior Management S

§§ZErﬁx&Fgﬂ§F=

-Executive D!reciors ,
Ms. Sun Yiping, aged 46, was appomted as the Chlef Executive
Officer (“CEQ”) of the Group-and an executive Director of the
Company in April 2012. Ms. Sun graduated from China Agricultural
University (formerly known as Beijing Agricultural Engineering
University) in 1993 with a Bachelor’s degree with specialisation
in food engineering and a Master's degree with specialisation in
+ agricultural products processing engineéering. She also holds an
Executive Master of Business Administration degree from the Olin
School of Business of the University of Washington in the United
States. She joined COFCO Group in 1993 and was involved in

- the management‘ of COFCO's investment in Coca-Cola bottling
‘business. ‘In 1997, she became the deputy general manager of -

 Swire Guangddng Coca Cola Limited and subsequenﬂy the general

management ekpefience in the international fa 1
goods industry. R

~ Mr. Yang Wenjun, aged 46, waﬁ\a ihte:
Director of the Company in FebruaryE_ZEO*
former CEQ of the Group andl,,ls ]
‘Mongolia Mengniu Dairy-{g
- Mongolia Mengniu”), Hg{%vas“a 5)"
, the Company with effect roy 10J q

a5 an eXecutive
a3,
% Yang was the

2011, Mr. Yang graduated
nstitute and holds a Master's
.L%‘ l;ural University. Mr. Yang has
ek i’é p'enence m the large- scale dairy -

;,55|onal System Assessment Committee
em of World Chlnese Economy (WCE) at the

2008, and
Leaders” and "Tenth Session of Top 10 Celebrities for China's

Reform Programme” in 2010. Mr. Yang resigned from his positions

. as CEO of the Group with effect from 12 April 2012 and an

-executive Director and a Vice-Chairman of the Company with effect
from 30 July 2012.

China Mengniu Dairy Company Limited Annual Rebort 2012

Ref #132114

'né'of the "China’s Top 10 Celebrities for Industry

* Schedule 3

HIFEE

FRRLE 468 R E— AR
AREQRARARTRTEE - ol N

o7 22 500 L R B g SRa ?
WERRIEERS &
%%ﬁimquﬁET"
WERBREAE | 2

»_“?hntﬁﬁg'
FlElEH R BB
IE5 RRAIABEE - —F2T
ffﬂﬂ@ﬁﬂﬁﬁ@?&ﬁﬂ°
B j:éﬂnsquz%im(él)

BXREE - 4657 ¢ R BRE=ABEL
BEATRTES - %5’6_&._7%7‘“—":@5'1%%2&?9 '
FHERTUAR(ZERBARAR(TARES D

CBRAZ— YRR —FEANATHRERE

BERTEER - BREERARHBIRERS
B URAARTREABRLBM - B4R
H-T2FMARAMTREELE HATE
EMAHMEEEENEHER HAE-ER
NEETRURRE) KHFE Lt REALH

(WCEARTRAER AR ER B TR RE
T AEAGHBBEBALE | B BERR

AIPE+AERRERANBAAMIRIE +E
REBETAFBAY L BEEH-—F——FN
AT AREBHERARERBR R —F——F A
=+ AREHES A RTE S RAEERE




Dlrectors and Senlor Management é%&%‘?&"é‘ﬂlg

Mr. Bai Ying, aged 42, was appointed as an executive Direétor of

the Company in July 2008 and is a Vice President in ‘Operation of *

Inner Mongolia Mengniu. Mr. Bai graduated with a Master’s degree
from Inner Mongolia Agricultural University and holds a Master of
Business Administration degree from China Europe International
Busmess School. Mr. Bai was the Vice President of Inner Mongolia
Mengniu and the General Manager of UHT: milk division of Inner
Mongolia Mengniu, He has been worklng in the dairy industry
for almost 20 years and has extensive experience and advanced
management concepts in the. dairy industry. In 2010, Mr. Bai was
elected as “Advanced Staff of Hohhot” and “Inner Mongolia
Autonomous Region Labour Model” for the second time. .

General Manager of llqu1d milk d1v1510n- Q% @e’ Financial
nd as eXte

Offlcer of Inner Mongolia Mengnlu a

'a%}?fn .
O3 s

ed as a “Labour

&

Mr. Ding Sheng, agedr\%%" B apNOI
.of the Company i \Ma:;‘t'h 280 s a Vsce PreSIdent of lnner
* Mongolia Mengmur D

Light Industry ”A ‘J)‘

is a senior engl B hls work he pursued studles in lnner
el DUIERS

a memBer of the Chinese Institute of Food Science and Technology

and the vice—chairman of the lactic dcid bacteria branch of the

Chinese Institute of Food Science and Technology.

Ref #132114
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Non-Executive Directors ‘ - FHITES
Mr. Ning Gaoning, aged 54, was appointed as.a non-executive EEEAE 54% _g'—?ﬁﬁ}\ ;
Director of the Company in August 2009 and the Chairman of AARIMITES + WHT $~~ 5
the Board of Directors of the Company in June 2011. Mr. Ning is {FAXAREEGERE -

currently the chairman of COFCO Corporation and COFCO (Hong FE’D\_J&FPH'E%.(ﬁr%)%
.Kong) Limited, an executive director of China Foods Limited, a - EHARFHERAERD T
company-listed in Hong Kong, a non-executive director of China - ’\_JFP%«%,EE}“‘HQ%PE“ 5
Agri-Industries Holdings Limited, a company listed in Hong Kong, - FiAflshig i g
a non-execiitive director of CPMC Holdings Limited, a company ~ _EH%2 _Jijiiiimé A
listed in Hong Kong, and an independent director of Huayuan

Property Co., Ltd.,.a company listed in Shanghai. Mr. Ning is also a
director of BOC International Holdings Limited and an independent
. non-executive director of BOC Hong Kong (Holdings) Limited;
" a-company listed in:Hong Kong. Mr. Ning was a non-executive et
" director of Lippo China Resources Limited, a company listed in’ un f
Hong Kong, from December 1998 to August 2009 and a dlreg&kr
of Smithfield Foods Inc., a company llsted in New York, fron?4

: ’:l:—z ﬁfﬁ/\ﬁmﬁﬁ
HHRATNFENTEE - B
A AECE——#=g=A
A_]Smlthfleld Foods, . EF ©
EARATN - BEEYRER(E
2 ﬁffmﬂilﬁfkééi RIS AR
: SEEREREE  RERCEBE 2%
Ty, T TR AT RBR T E R = RS - Bk
R AR E RAS  EEESSTB - B
b SxnxBrueAs weRBINERRL

frﬂ.{_Lo

e, ——

FR%EE - 47% RoBEAE\AREES
2 AARERITES - YR _B——FENAREE
of Directors of the Compa()y in Jipe Al RARBNESZGEEE - FTAEERAPEEEE
president.of COFCO Corpo Ho and{ BARAR  HBREE(FE)ERATNES
Kong) Limited, the chalr ol COFCO Meat Investment.Co. - EW’E}Q%EF&QE%%E&EPEE}DE}%&%#
Ltd. and COFCO Cocag&Dlz Qzg&%ﬁ'ﬁﬁges Ltd. and also an executive.  HFRAREER @ TABBLTATNTEE®HE
dlrector and .the 4 %% Bk China- Agri-Industries Holdings RERARMITEERLRE  TAESERIER
ifghlpng Kong. Mr. Yu holds a Bachelor's  $1SMEBEE HABLBISHB BB - 5
_ﬁe University of International Business AR THEESREEABTHEEELS |
Iy and an Executive Master of Busmess fif o C . ' .

- Mr. Yu Xubo, aged 47, was. aphoi inidE
of the Company in August 26?)‘

China Mengniu Dairy Compahy Limited Annual Report 2012

Ref #132114
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Mr Niu Gensheng, aged 55, is a non-executive Director of the
'Company, one of the members in the team founding Yili Group,
the founder of Inner Mongolia Mengniu and the founder of Laoniu
Foundation. Mr. Niu-graduated from Inner Mongolia’ University
_ with a degree in Administration and Management and obtained a
Master's degree in Enterprise Management at the Chinese Academy
of Social Sciences Graduate School. Wlth his extensive experience
‘and insights in China’s dairy industry, Mr. Niu receives high
reputation in the industry. in 2007, Mr. Niu was elected as one of
"China’s Most Influential Business Leaders” for the fifth consecutive
year, and was honoured the “2007 Hong Kong Bauhinia Award".

Mr. Niu is devoted to charity. Hé was among “China’s Top 10
Phllanthroplsts” guided and published by the Ministry of CIV}!\

Affairs of the People s Republic of China in 2007 and ranked
thlrd in the "2007 Hurun Top 10 for Charlty" and recelve th

presented by the “China Philanthropists List” in 2010
an mdependent non executlve director of Ahbaba c j

gﬁ:‘
Mr. Ma Jianping, aged ‘49, was app%&'f
Director of the Company in August 2009. fe
preSIdent of COFCO Corporation. He isAl
of China Foods Limited and aﬁ“‘ 'f'f'f’ rector and the chairman
of The Hong Kong Parkview Gr Iird " hoth companies listed
in Hong Kong, and a. {ées B0 "SéProperty (Group) Co.,
Ltd., a company l|sted\| gl aR Y [¥Ma graduated from the
University of lnternabtlonal( 3 %»;g id Economics in Beijing with

. a degree of Executl' 1

,@ P ently a vice

independent non-executive director of Cehtral China Real Estate

. Limited, a company listed in Hong Kong, from January 2008 to
December 2009. Mr. Fang holds a Bachelor of Arts degree from Sun
Yat-sen University. Mr. Fang resignéd from his position as a non-
.executive Director of the Company with effect from 30 July 2012.

Ref #132114

%ﬂﬂﬁ%ﬁ
-mfﬁl#hhw 4 T
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Mr. Ma Wangjun, aged 48, was appointed as a non-executive %EE%&E r 485% Eﬂi—"
Director of the Company in March 2010. Mr. Ma is currently an ~ KRARFMITEE - f}iziﬁz%d:ta’élﬁ
assistant president and the chief accountant of COFCO Corporation. - $BhREM S o 55 E NS Moty
He is also a non-executive director of China Agri-Industries * &)— ﬁPIF,ﬂaf“HﬁzﬁﬁE’A _P 54 _
Holdings Limited and The Hong Kohg Parkview Group Limited, both  JE#{TER o F%ﬁ'r;_&._a‘qﬁ B S pir e £
companies listed in Hong Kong. Mr. Ma holds a Bachelor's degree :bﬁﬂf“&ﬁ/lﬁ%ﬁ%,' MRS
" in Economics from Beijing Technology and Business University b m B4 ]E
and an Executive Master of Business Administration degree from {7EE o ]
Cheung Kong Graduate School of Business. Mr. Ma resigned as a

non-executive Director of the Company with effect from 12 Aprll
2012.

en%i V488 R B ——

Mr. Tim @rting Jrargensen, aged 48, was appointed as a non-  Tify ! ;gs
SN Ti‘Fiﬁﬁs% ergensenf‘ﬁ

executive Diréctor of the Company in-July 2012. Mr. Jargensen ¢ CHE
- graduated from Copenhagen Business School in 1991 with a Master"i"-gsé i e

of Economrcs degree specialising in- mternatlonal strategy nd g
ba » YEHBREHDS EEREN -

FENEIE  SFECSHETE - —2F
raﬂ/’gArla Foods AmbaB B S ARIMERSE
Wi - — TR FEREMTBAra Foods Amba
o AT Al ”?’fk B % Arla Foods Ambat B il 3¢
Y BIASMEER SRR — BB
Jorgensen 4 A FE 4B Arla Foods Amba=x &
AP EEHEEBNALCE-REHRIESR
CGHHBRAERBEARNMNES B FEE
{E4838 Arla Foods Amba¥Ti@ER HHEER .
) 2 EELEBSEB I Ara Foods Ambai2 T A8
‘In 2012, he was appointed {g lea‘, i, r ( B AEEA I EAT ° Jorgensen £ ETEArla
- established German/Dutch busm?‘? OUPEIEL Foods AmbaRE =T EH - HRE T LY ENERK
e - QISR SUERANR—REEER .

of establishing ‘Arla Foodg?Ambgs,a
" Germany through mergers:y "ons. Throughout his 20 Jﬂrgensenf‘r‘:_&._’é'ﬂFL/(‘S’E“EE@BZF%?J“QHiK%

 years in Arla Foods Amba ’, v.-J gensen has acquired extensrve o

SUPPly chain efficienGyyandey
has esPECIally bee‘%‘" PV,

has also been a director of Mengniu Arla (tiv [
Products Co Ltd a Mengniu-Arla 0] tV i1

China Mengniu Dalry Company Limited Annual Report 2012

Ref #132114
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Mr. Finn S. Hansen, aged 53, was appointed as a non-executive .
Director of the Company in July 2012. Mr. Hansen graduated

- from Haderslev Business College in 1986 with a Bachelor's
. degree in Commerce. He joined Arla Foods Amba in 1977 and
- has held several management positions within Arla Foods Amba's
"' international business group, including a three-year position in
Canada and more than ten years in different countries in the Middle
East. In 2006, he became senior vice président with responsibility
for Arla Foods Amba's activities in the Middle East arid North Africa.

Mr. Hansen was appointed as executive vice president in 2012, with
the overall responsibility for Arla Foods Amba’s activities outside

Scandinavia and the United Kingdom.

Shenzhen, until 21 July 2011. Pnor tOj ing C@ O‘ Corporation,
she was a deputy director of th R 8,and Education Bureau

d|rector of COFCO Property (Group) c 'x, b
,o‘ g i}%
of the Propaganda Department Sf{f %C%§ *€ommunist Party. Ms.

legal affairs, general-

Liu has more than 20 yéa sxﬁ”e e& _
management, govern%g@k@%}’blic relations, corporate
culture developme‘“\t orga%@%velopment and propaganda
and education. Ty, i

" Ref#132114
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independent Non-Executive Directors
Mr. Jiao Shuge (alias Jiao Zhen), aged 47, was appointed as

a non -executive Director of the Company in February 2004 and_'
is a Vice—Chairman of the Board of Directors of the Company..

Mr. Jiao has been re-designated from a non-executive Director of
the Company to an independent non-executive Director of the
Company with effect from 12 April 2012. Mr. Jiao joined the Group
" in September 2002 and is currently a director and Managing-Partner
" of CDH China Management Company Limited. Mr. Jiao received a
-Bachelor’s ‘degree in Mathematics from Shandong University and

a Master's degree in Engineering from the Ministry of Aeronautics -

and Astronautics. Currently, Mr.-Jiao also serves as a non-executive
director of China Shanshui Cement Group Limited, a company listed

" in Hong Kong and a director of Joyoung Company Limited and a .

director of Henan Shuanghui Investment & Development Co.,-Ltd.,
both companies listed in Shenzhen. Mr. Jiao was a non-execui
director of China’ Yurun Food Group Limited, a company ligt&q}
Hong Kong, from 13 April 2005 to 22 September 2012, *

Mr. Julian Juul Wolhardt, aged 39, was appomted as¥
executlve Director of the Company in January 2006 ar.- has

BISh [ "‘Champalgn) in
the United States. Mr. Wolhalja} C ~: tly Seasas a non-executive

“of o M€ %ﬁ_} airy Holdings Ltd., a
giand antj[jdependent non-executive
director of China Cord gd ci:%gratlon a company listed on

the New York Stock E, '[3'(;: s a non- executlve director of

United Envirotech ,g S

Exchange, f{om 0 19, 2 0 August 2012

Mr. Liu Fueh was appointed as an lndependent non-
exetll] e Company in May 2009. Mr. Liu was a
gradua ng Foreign Trade Institute and is now a senior

- commerce S
as an executiv
various departments in COFCO. Group in the past, ‘including the
‘finance.department, business 'planning department, general office

. China Mengniu Dairy Company Limited  Annual Report 2012

Ref #132114
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cfallst. Prior to his retlrement in 2007, Mr. Liu acted
director and the CEO of COFCO Group. He served )
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and oils and fats department of COFCO Group, the representative
" office of COFCO Group in the United States.and Top Glory (London)
. 'Ltd the base of, COFCO Group in the United Kingdom. Mr. Liu
was the- deputy consulate of the Chinese Consulate- General in

Vancouver. Currently, MF.. Liu serves as an independent. non-
 executive director of DaChan Food (Asia) Limited, a company:listed

in.Hong Kong, and an independent director of China Aviation Oil

(Singapore) Corporation Ltd., a company listed in Singapore.

Mr. Zhang Xiaoya, aged 50, was appointed as an independent :E%“ihﬁﬁﬁ BET
non-executive Director of the: Company in May. 2009. Mr. Zhang
was a graduate of the Shandong University and the school of “#&
management at the Be‘ihang University and is npw a seni@j:r :

i R EEERE . BASATE
RS AEEEEE  AREREE -
S A MRS B E S A
EREBEE  RELZAEEMTE
FEMNMEEREEERRAR - HF

WAL - 495 R-T——ERARELEARF
ATBMIERTES - WAERAHBSHR A
: J:'rﬁ"/}ﬂiﬁ%ﬁ%l?@ﬁ%&?&ﬁﬁ'ﬁ%ﬁ%
Z 5 Fr LT BIPGG Wrightson Limite
HEE-E—Z-FNAAKIL- Eﬁif‘ﬁi)ﬁrﬁﬁrﬁ_tm
ATREERTRESBERATMNBIERTES
sl MEFEIIBER S ETARBRETRAER
‘Direct Investments* LI '1 l ' ‘célg any hsted in Hong Kong, ARBMYIEFMTEF - BT BTERBERX
and an |ndepend_‘)£1t MON:EX a%tge director of Tongyu Heavy i§§§+ﬁm$ﬁﬁﬁ&$§§§ﬂ¥i§i¥:+:$ C
lndustry Lid., a com é-. lis 'e,‘ e‘; the Shenzhen Stock Exchange EEREMKESHMERHATETSCEREE
‘ e K UBATZEAESGKE - MALEEFE
fof 22 years where he led the China /ARREESIEIRE » MBRAESMHIAHATEE

‘p'ractlce of PrlcewaterhouseCoopers and &Ep - iﬁ#ﬁ'&i%ﬁﬁﬂlﬁjbﬁj(ﬁﬁmgggiﬁ

j ‘qj ‘anagement board. Mr. Xie has extensive I + ¥ AHEEIFHTE JrEiﬁ’R@@E\ °

_independent non-execy ivg"??

hERFARERAT —B——FFH
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Mr. Andrew Y. Yan, aged 55 was appomted as an mdependent
non-executive Director of the Company in January 2013. Mr. Yan is
the founding managing partner of SAIF Partners (“SAIF"). Prior to
joining SAIF, he was the managing director and head of the Hong
Kong office of Emerging Markets Partnership from 1994 until 2007,

From 1989 to 1994, he warked in the World Bank in Washington, -

.the Hudson Institute and ‘Sprint International Corporation as an
" economist, a research fellow and a director for strategic planning
" and business development for Asia Pacific Region respectively.
From 1982 to 1984, he was a chief engineer at Jianghuai\Airplane

Corporation.

Mr. Yan received a Bachelor’s degree in Engineering from Nanjing

. Aeronautic Institute in. 1982. He studied in the Master Program in
Department of Sociology of Peking University from 1984 to 1986

and received a Master of Arts degree from Princeton Umverty
in International Political Economy in 1983. Mr. Yan also stigie
advanced finance and accounting courses at the Wharton

Schoolin 1995. "

'Mr. Yan holds a number of directorships in listed compa
is.(a) an independent non- -executive director of? @' |

Chemical Corporation (SinoPec), China Resource: .L'
Fosun International L|m|ted (b) a non- execu’nve d|

Technology. & Environment Group Corporﬁ Lin s“'

China Holdmgs Limited, China Hu1yua [t e(“ b lelted esun

‘Holdlngs Limited and MOBI Developme {0} 5“ y the chalrman
and a non-executive dlrec’tor of; V‘- Thtintid

China Mengniu Dalry Company Limited  Annual Report 2012
Ref #132114
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Senior Management
Mr. Lu Jianjun, aged 36, is the Chief" Administrative Officer of

the Company and the Secretary of the Board of Directors of Inner

Mongolia Mengniu. Mr. Lu graduated from Inner Mongolia Normal
University with an Art degree in Chinese Language. Mr. Lu joined

the Group in June 2000, and served as various positions including’

" Secretary to CEO Office, Secretary to CEO and Executive Assistant
to Chairman.” Mr. Lu was re-designated as the Secretary of the
Board of Directors of Inner Mongolia Mengniu in 2009 and was
responsible for the office management:of the board and the audit

-%mﬁﬂﬁ

Schedule 3

EEE?&EE
¢%$§
BEX

. 51 FEE St
ﬁﬁ‘i %$Eﬁ

department as well as investor relations. In 2013, he started to be  /#

in charge of the office management of the CEC. in May 2010, Mr.

Lu was awarded the professional qualification as secretary of boafdy, -

of directors by the Shanghai Stock Exchange. E .

quallflcatlon Mr. Yao joined Inner Mongoha Mem
served as varlous posmons including D@?a‘» e

: 'V" (g‘!jg;eSIdent of

S ‘éxpenence in
administrative management. Yao C nently 5 % as the deputy

Anner Mongoha Mengnlu during his ter’.!a%’
S| a}+on

chalrman of the China Dalry ln
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N

Ms. Liu Yan, aged 54, is a Vice President in Strategy of Inner
‘Mongolia Mengniu. Ms. Liu obtained a Master's degree in Business

_ Administration from China Europe International Business School.

Ms. Liu graduated with a Master’s degree in Industrial Science
from the Chinese Academy of Agrlcultural Mechanisation Sciences
("CAAMS"Y and was qualified as a senior engineer. Ms. Liu also
held the position of senior engineer in CAAMS, She served as vice
) president of customer relationship management of Tetra Pak ( (Beijing)

Co., Ltd. and is very experienced in the management of dairy
_ industry. Ms. Liu joined Inner Mongolia Mengniu in December 2010
-and is responsible for the research and planning of international

strategies, planning and develbpment of international businesses,

including the planning and execution of-mergers and acquisitions
and investrhents of the Group. '

Mr. Liu Shengli, aged 47, has served as a Vice President of Inge )

- Mongolia Mengniu since September 2012. Mr Liu was gra'g
from’ Dahan Ocean Un:versnty majonng in aquaculture Dur

Chma Europe lnternatlonal Business School in Beijing. Mr ’
Infer Mongolia Mengniu in 2002. He served as a Vigg;
Assustant to Presndent and the General Man‘ae, i

experience in the dairy industry. Mr. Liu was lé ed,
Model of Hohhot” of lnner Mongolia'i in 2010‘«%5

China MengnluvDaIr'y Company Limited  Annual Report 2012 .
Ref #132114 ' '
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Jesper Fournaise Colding5'6 b
4RI, - Colding S = 2R AP

" Mr. Jesper Fournai_sé Colding, aged 42, a Vice President of Inner
Mongolia Mengniu. Mr. Colding .obtained a Bachelor’s degree in
Macro Economics arid. a Master of International Marketing from

Southern Denmark University and the University of Denver in the (= ke
“United States.- Before joining Inner ‘Mongolia Mengniu, he was HREE
the senior. vice president of Arla Foods in Global Categories and & & & &l 48 o o fib 4 4F
Operations from September 2009. From January 2007, he worked EW‘E&E&’JH@, N1 'I Unlbrew Baltic
as the general manager of Royal Unibrew. Baltic countries, a leading countries 8 4 1 - TEF

; 'D\"J(P&G)Wf%lﬁéﬁ

beer and beverage corhpany in the region. From 1994 to 2007, Mr. 8 »*Colding
Colding had taken various roles within sales/marketing in P&G and & ZAiTh
worked in leading roles in Denmark, Sweden, and Norway before he  {£48
worked as an associate director in P&G Malaysia/Singapore. He has “%AH
extensive experience in sales/marketing and general managemefily,
and a record of buﬂdmg strong'organisations and results Mr '

DI G E S mARRPEH -
B TSR, TR
s'a/Smgapore)alJéQEi o Colding%t
=g —MREIRER - EREALE
R AR - Coldlng?ﬁiﬁ@_q—_ﬁbﬂﬁﬁm
/afzﬁaﬂﬁ%ﬁﬁ$°
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BEELE 405 AATNUBRERAAR
g REZBRLERANERERE - ENEAR
EAT - BEEGE-BRER LWARZAHHA '
5y ealso Bf - WHREARMEHMERMIE - ButLS
Wooraduated  HRFBBIAS - RBGHBELBE - 1A
a Bachelor’s ZEBEHAAGEERRBEBIFAREMAT
BREE - ' '

May 2007._ Prior to joining the Group, Mr. | .~, _
controller of a Hong Kong Main Board,alf - COMmD:
served in an international accounting “fy;

from The Hong Kong Polytechmc U,lV
degree in Accountancy. Mr. s
lnstltute of Certified Public A

FERTARERAR —B— R
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to all'people through open and transﬁrarent com_munications.
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Corporate Gevernance Report

ik
The Company is dediéated to ensure high' standards of corporate
governancé with an emphasis on a diligent Board of Directors (the
“Board”), sound internal control, and increasing transparency and
accountability.to shareholders. The Board acknowledges that.good
- corporate governance practices and procedures are beneficial to
the Group and-its shareholders.- The Company is committed to
improving' those practices and maintaining its ethical corporate

%%\A%‘& B

" culture.

The Company has adopted the code provisions set out in the Code
on Corporate Governance Practices (éffective until 31.March 2012)

during the period from 1 January 2012 to 31 March 2012 (the “Oid .
- Code”) and the Corporate Governance Code (effective from 1 April -

2012) during the period from 1 April 2012 to 31 December 2012 (the

“CG Code") contained in Appendix 14 of the Rules Governing the* %

Llstmg of Securmes on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong lelted

' Old Code and the CG Code, except that nine )
Dlrector (also the Chief Executive’ Officer), 6 non-exe:
" (including the Chalrman) and 2. mdepen
Directors) were uhabhle to attend the a a,l% :’.
Company (the “AGM") held on 15 Junga2Q ¥ e
business engagements and othgg- ;
Kong. The AGM-was attendgd’

mdependent non- executlvexDlr%é‘
ations and cy"nmumcatlons

has been in compliance with all applicable co%

Hetxls, please refer to'the

China Mengniu Dalry Company Limited = Annual Report 2012
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Corporate Governance Report #5854 HE

The Bdar.d

As at 31 December 2012, the Board comprised fifteen Directors, -

including four executive Directors, .namely, ‘Ms. Sun Yiping, Mr.
Bai Ying, Mr. Wu Jingshui and Mr. Ding Sheng, six non-executive
Directors, namely, Mr. Ning Gaoning, Mr. Yu Xubo, Mr. Niu
Gensheng, Mr. Ma Jianping, Mr. Tim @rting Jergensen and Mr. Finn
S. Hansen and five indepentlent non-executive Directors, namely,
Mr. Jiao-Shuge (alias Jiao Zhen), Mr. Julian Juul Wolhardt, Mr. Liu
Fuchun, Mr. Zhang Xiaoya and Mr, Xie Tao. The. Chairman of the
Board is Mr. Ning Gapning and the Chief Executlve Officer of the
Company is Ms. Sun Yiping. Each of Mr. Yu Xubo and Mr. Jiao

Shugeé (alias Jiao Zhen) is a Vice- -Chairman of the Board. Subsequen ;
to the year ended 31" December 2012 and up to the date of thisdy,
report, two additional Directors were appointed. On 10 January "

2013, Ms. Liu Ding.was appomted as a non-executive Dlﬁzto
- and Mr. Andrew Y. Yan was appointed as an independent.geq
executive Director. Ms. Liu. Dmg is also a Vice- Chalrw'
Board

of the Company. Key respon5|bllmes of thegh
formulation of the Group’s overall strat‘é&@ 53 ]

of performance and management targe %e»
performance and supervision of manage

" Board for the management and
of the management is to lmple |

determined by the BOH’Td%ﬂ%;
'any wrltten proceduresea P %rg iid down by the Board. In
d various responsibilities to the

Biographies of
annual rep
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- lndependence of lnaependent Non- Executive - %ﬁ#ﬁ}lﬁ%@ﬂ’ﬂﬁﬁﬁ

Directors . .
The independent non-executive Directors possess appropriate  BM EMITESAFESENEE]
BUBERER - REMED

-profession,al qualifications, or accounting or related financial
management expertise. Their role is to provide independent and ~ BEMHEREZ BRIk

objective opinions to the Board for its consideration and decisions.

During the year, Mr. Jiao Shuge (alias Jiao Zhen) and Mr. Julian Juul
Wolhardt have béen re-designated from non-executive Directors
to independent non-executive Directors with effect from 12 April -
2012. Notwithstanding their positions as non-executive Directors

- and a director of the board of Inner Mongolia Mengniu Dairy (Group)
Company Limited (“Inner Mongolia Mengniu”), the main operating
subsidiary of the Company, the Board considers Mr. Jiao and Mr, s
Wolhardt to be sufflclently independent to act as independent non- )

executive Directors as, prior to thelr re- desngnatxon Mr. Jla’ and <

; S ML B B S I B AT o
g = Rik e EER

T 5 IR 2 TUW““¢D
; ‘_ BE 4 RWolhardt 56 4
e E  RERRELR
LEBENRTHEERE EHE
;§¢z$ﬁm %M&ﬁ B

meetings of the Board, the relevant Commlttees and t
. ‘Inner Mongolia Mengniu, carrying out, supennsmg and MOE

functlons
EﬁiﬁiJF%ﬁﬁ%E’l‘Efét?ﬁﬁ RIZE3.13{&m
RARBH—NEREAS '&M@Fﬁﬁw— o &
‘ e SEEMEABY JTf’Fth CRRR LT
“_gnon -executive - MAIZ 1B - %ﬁ%é‘ﬁﬁ?ﬁﬂﬁ‘ééi’]kﬁﬁ o
' ~3‘defm|tlon ofthe - - ) . :

China Mengniu Dalry Company Limited Annual Report 2012
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”A‘H‘E‘,t

Corporate Governance Functions . 1&%
The Board is responsible for determining the policy for corporate &
governance of the Company and performmg the corporate &R

governance duties mcludmg

(a) to develop and review the Company s pohc1es and- practlces on (a) HIERS
corporate governance; . . .

BEE BRI RIR

(b) to review and monitor the training and tontinuous'professional
' de\'/elopment of Directors and senior management;

(@

a:aﬁﬁﬁeammEE&iamnf

(d)
FARESEFMNE) &

Directors; and

(@ MAAATIES LA AAK S I (R
| ATRDRCEREAREDER,

(e) to review the Company’'s compliance with®
the Listing Rules (Corporate Governance Cod
" Governance- Report)
BTy ]
ﬂ%%ﬁiﬁ%ﬁ‘]z%i’]ﬁ Fﬁmﬁﬁﬁﬂflﬁkﬂ)}’zé
B URERBPEARRNEERESARE S
ERREAS  AE - RRIREATHRENEE
EWER - ARRETETRAEFRHEHAL
mA AR E &tﬁ?ﬁ)ﬁé&ﬁ%ﬁ%ﬁiﬁ’]r%ﬁ%ﬁ&
. at 2 Llstlng Rules and other iéﬁbﬂ’]gﬁﬁﬁﬂ

Directors’ 'Training
Each newly ‘appointed Director is prow v
and information to ensure that, he/she, ha:
of the Company s operatlons&a‘ [%DUST
.- W

The Company Secret
latest development and}
felevant legal and rég Jator g{

"n D

HERENRERAT —E——F5H
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All Directors are encouraged to participate in continuous
professional development to develop and refresh ‘their knowledge
and skills. The Company has arranged In-house training for
. Directors in the form of a seminar and reading materials since the
new CG Code became effective from 1 April 2012, with appropriate

- emphasis on the roles, functions and duties of the Directors. During’

the year, a Guide on Directors’ Duties published by the Companies
" Registry of Hong Kong and a Guide for independent Non-Executive
Directors published by The Hong Kong Institute of Directors have
- been sent to each relevant Director for his/her information and
ready referencé. Directors’ visit to thé.Group’s operations and local
‘management in the PRC, with briéﬂngs by senior PRC staff was

arranged for the Board members to enable them to gain an up-to-
date understanding on the businesses of the Group. A summary of _
 training received by Directors during the period from 1 April 2012‘!“’}.{;_

up to 31 December 2012 accordlng to the records provided bythe
Directors is as follows: S %

TP —
SEHRAURS R B RT:

Schedule 3

e

s}

mawﬁziti%§$zﬂ#l7ﬂﬁﬁi%¢l 2

?E‘Jﬁ@ BEREME - HQAW,_- RIE:
?ﬁwmﬁﬁAjﬁﬁ»Pﬁf F1EE

%l)&ﬂaéﬁé£$ : TESIH

) W#ﬂtfﬁﬁ%

%EQZIS%@Z’W@H’Q

mmE Rty - LAL 28
JF R i%ﬁﬁ%f#éﬁﬁaﬁ‘z
#+ A

"fﬁﬁﬁm;

'Executive Directors

_Sun Yiping (Note 1) A C, D
Yang Wenjun (Note 2) C, D.
Bai Ying A C.D
Wu Jingshui .C,D
Ding Sheng, - A C,D
Non-Executive Directors ., &
Ning Gaoning Ty A B C,D’
YU X.Ubo . Ar Cl D
Niu Gensheng A CD
Ma Jianping FE¥ A C,D
" Fang Fenglei (Note 3), E ﬁﬂm(l‘ﬁ’iS) -C
Ma Wangjun (Note 4) %EE(HTSIM _ . c
Tim @rting Jorge Tim @rting Jergensen( FiH&ES) A C,D
Finn's. HS’» Fin S. Hénseh(’Fﬁ‘IS)_ ACD
Independa BykaEs .
Jigash ﬁﬁ%ﬁ(x%ﬁ A CD
Jdliarz Julian Juul Wolhardt A/ B, CD
Liu Fuchiif BlfRE GD
Zhang Xiaoyd! SREEES - CD

China Mengnlu Dairy Company Limited. 'Annual Report 2012
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Corporate Governance Report 3EEAME

A: attending seminars and/or conferences and/or forums relevant to the
business. or directors’ duties . :

B: . giving talks at seminars and/or conferences and/or forums

.. € reading materials relevant to directors’ duties and responsibilities and
regulatory updates ’

D: visiting the Group's operations and local management in the PRC

Notes:

1. Ms. Sun was appointed as an executrve Dlrector with effect from 12
Apnl 2012. . .

T 2012

2012

5. Mr. Jargensen and Mr. Hansen were d
Directors with effect from 30 July 2012

Board Proceedmgs e%,
%

The Board meets at lgast § 5 as“;year and addltlonal
. operational meetings a;[\é}g%[so ﬁ: ~:_ b requured The Company
© Secretary is respon5|ble*f Plep: agenda and notices for the
i ef he Group ‘also provides the

meetings. Senjor m genj NG

Dlrectors with relef%h%c‘) Tation on a timely basis regardlng
f the Group and issues affecting the

; ,e lnformation packages are normally

Ref #132114
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A mﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁégmﬁﬁ@mu'
B/ kg 3

fTEE - g2 —FtA=1H

SEEBRHERNTES AT =FLA=T

B BaK-e

BAREBEHIIMT EEE g—z—- FEA+T=

RN

5. Jﬂrgehsen%i&Hansenﬁ*ﬁE Eﬁ;ﬁ?ﬁ#i 78

CHECE-CFEEA=TRER -
EEGREERER
EFESERFOBTNREE YEAREND

FRTHILEH R - ANNSARRMIHSE
BREE - AREERERETENAEFRER
BRASBEEEEFRRAVEAREFHNE
ﬂé—%ﬁ*'ﬁﬁﬂﬁ@ﬁﬂé*ﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁ,
BASRAEE MEFHIRLEETAENA
n&aﬂﬁﬁﬁ°g$TE@§%ﬁT&@%i .
,EﬁmKATEF° :

SERGARERAT —S——FFH



52

Corporate Governance Report m%ﬁ)ﬁ‘iﬁ%

The Board held six meetings during the year ended 31 December
2012 and two further meetings since’ 1 January 2013 up to the date
of this report. Details of the Directors’ attendance at the Board and
Board Committee meetings and the AGM held in 2012 are set out

in the following table.

’TT/\/)’Q""A“;% R
& B IR BAMBTT Tﬁ)kznﬁf’ $

iTES

g = t=A=+—ATg
== ____:fF' }‘q -

Schedule 3

Exetuitive Directord . )
Sun Yiping® s A o
Yang Wenjun® . B i
Bal¥ing, - ‘ A mn
Wu Jingshui o REX "
Ding Sheng - JE 11
Non-executive Directors  HfEE »
Ning Gaoning 58 13 o -
YuXubo : TiBs B - o
Niu Gensheng % ' o
Ma Jianping oo BET . 01
Fang Fengleio ' 7%51*6» o
Ma Wangjunt : 00
Tim !J_rtingJa{gensehﬁ’ 0/0
* Finn'S, Hansen® . 0/0
. Independent flon-executive Directors 3
" Jiao Shuge (alias Jiao Zhen)® .4 R on
Julian Juul Wolhardt® _ 33 "
Liu Fuchun 24 B n o
Zhang Xiaoya 34 33 n . "
XeTao a4 33 33 il

China Mengniu Dalry Company Lirited Annual Report 2012
Ref #1 321 14~
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Wi

_Notes:
(1) - During the year, the Company held four. quarterly meetings and two () HAARREASGTH
" other meetings to handle operational-level matters. According to the HEREEERER
Company’s articles of association, the quorum for convening a Board E%ﬁ?ﬁ%@é‘ag g )

meeting is two members,

(2) Ms. Sun Yiping was a;;pomted while Mr. Yang Wenjun resigned as an ~ (2)
~ executive Director with effect from 12 Apnl 2012 and 30 July 2012 .
respectlvely ‘

FA=B——FLA

(3) M. Fang Fenglei resigned as a non-executive Director with effect from
30 July 2012. :
—ZFmA

(4) Mr. Ma Wangjun re5|gned as a non-executive Dlrector wnth effect from }(3 %
12 April 2012

(5) Mr Tim @rting Jgrgensen and Mr Finn S. Hansen were app0|r3gw ed as ‘ &
: non-executive Directors with effect from 30 July 2012, : “'

o hg ergenseﬁf’&i&ﬁnn S, Hansenfg 4R,
ThIH{TES  HA-T——F+tA=+8 .

» ﬁﬁi‘ﬁﬁ(ﬂ%ﬁfﬁ)%i&luhan Juul Wolhardtﬁ‘:‘;&"
i EE?F%{TE%%E%?@.&Fﬁﬁ:? 5= P
—ZHAMA+-RER-.

©)

2%@@%$§§@mﬁ%mﬁm$aijj
REREFE  HARTOHEFEN ARG
REEEA L - RPEFHTRAAANA
AREE - ARREAREREEREFEL
HALREpEEREFRELES .

$A7ﬁiﬁﬁ%ﬁﬂ@muﬁﬁ:uﬁﬁ%b

» . BIFE - FEARERERGETHE - A
Chalrman is respo - O3 BUAREEAKENEY -BE_F-=F

E t:ﬁ“gi o QIﬂcer is. responsnble for managing the +—=—A=+—8B{HHREE AATEESXE

1nancual year ended 31 December 2012, z%jtiﬁ,ﬁ%%:?—]‘ff’aﬂz 5@%22%#?—}%%}?{?

oYBoard is Mr. Ning Gaoning, a non-executive %+ o

i f Executive Officer of the Company is Ms. Sun

HEREARARAT “T—FFH
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The Chairman shall ensure that Board meetings are planned and Ef"?ﬁﬁ@%%%@@'
.conducted effectively and all Directors are properly briefed on issues ~ =& &3
arising at Board meetings. He is also responsible for ensuring that & » {&ﬁﬁaﬁﬁﬁ=$&ﬁ#l&ﬁx
the Directors receive adequate information in a timely manner, & HMALBEEN R
which must be accurate, clear, complete and reliable. The Chairman B HE& BHhEE + BB
" shall also ensure the Board works effectively and discharges its e EEMEE EHET]
responsibilities; all key and appropriate issues are discussed by the  fFAYREE /ﬁ"‘%"ﬁ&&
Board in a timely manner; good corporate governance practices A3 B 255
and procedures are established; and appropriate steps are taken to =X
provide effective communication with shareholders and that views

of shareholders are communlcated to the Board asa whole

Appointment, Re- e!ecuon and Removal of 55
- Directors L N,
Each Director has entered into a letter of appointment with therl%
VCdmpany for a term of three years. The Directors are subjec 0

retirement by rotation and re-election at each annual ¢ G
e EREREECHRNERAESE

meeting of the Company.in.accordance with article 1
Company's articles of association. The Directors appoifteti8s R I RANET —BFATREBEAER

4>¢Aiﬁ4ﬁ@ EHERE o H
B AR 12 A AT
A w HAESRNEE - BEAE

e 0.

addition to the Board or to fill a casual vacancy on the BOg 'D\_Jﬁxiytﬁ_};ﬁaﬁxii o
be subject to re-election by the shareholders at the ngg
annual general meeting or next following gengf
Company respecthely after the appointment
EEEaY

Board Commitze@s
To oversee particular aspects of thé}‘-k o BTEBERAA 7%%%%&%% THEE K

assist in the execution of its responsn_ 3 ompany has AREEETRNAEEZEY  HHIABKE
established four Board Com ttees§ Shalin 53T, namely the B® - -HMEEE  BEE =§$ﬂ$ﬁﬁ§&ﬁ}§§
Audit Committee, the Remuh r@fm - " de, the Nomination -B& - SZREELFIZRMINEEETHUANTE
Committee and the Strate“% and ,éﬁ%‘ ent Committee, each - BHESEE - HrhmE 7Btk - BIEREH - BS
of which is governed by spév f jt f reference approved by ZEE€HH mﬂgﬁfgﬁlaﬁfﬁéé—rﬁu&/\ﬁ 3
the Board, covering.its fif { .utles and powers. The terms of  FRHEX » WERAR T REZFOELEE -
) i 1’{‘ s o'mmlttees have complied with LA)SZEH}}@ZISA _Jéﬁif,%iﬁﬂﬁﬁt%ﬁ{#“%%‘

¥ provisions and-are disclosed on the i

I3

China Mengniu Dairy Company Limited Annual Report 2012
Ref #132114



Schedule 3

55

Corporate Governance Report PEEARE

‘Remuneration Committee ' HEESE
‘As at 31 December 2012, the Remurieration Committee comprised HWEB——F+-_A=1—Hy
five members, four of whom are independent non-executive HEE ﬁﬁlﬂ M4 A
Directors (Mr. Julian Juul Wolhardt, Mr. Liu Fuchun, Mr. Zhang Wo]hardtﬁ';éE &
Xiaoya and Mr. Xie Tao) and the remaining one member is a non-
executive Director (Mr. Yu Xub'o)'. The. Remuneration Committee is

chaired by Mr. Xie Tao.

ek t I 51

The duties of the Remuneration Committee are to review annually 7Bz
and recommend to the Board the overall. remuneration policy and
structure for the directors and senior management to ensure that a8
the level of remuneration is linked to their level of responsnblhtres ;
'undertaken These shall include making recommendations to» ;
the Board on the remuneration packages of individual exgguti

Directors and senior management, including benefits m% i
pension rights and compensation. payments lnggm

compensation payable for loss or termination of {heflEat
appomtment The Rémuneration Commlttee S

K F R B RIEAT o LES
TRRSTEERERERENT
R BT  RSHAIREES
ﬁ%t&ﬁﬁé&@%ﬁ)éﬁﬂﬁ

Mahtain fair and  FARNFMBRDBRBEERERTHREE
‘annd industry #HATFRABRENOFMERN - HREEXNT
members of the E%ﬁ%s%mﬂﬁ EERNHKTREER

£ MEBREZ THEBREMEABZERE - 1o -

YERHTESHFMENNGZRAZEARSRE |

factors comprising & WEARTHER  HHAEEMER &’ES?EZE'

Rogligeand
contributions to the%G"r,yﬁ; i u'gs and development as well Bt LA&{IEA,Z,%‘E‘E% °

The Company’s policy on remunerat—ib- {i
c‘ompetitive packages based on bu'

" as individual poten\’ual ar ered when determining the
- remuneration packa ‘e"ojE exe t| e Dlrectors

PRASEARERAT —F——FEH .
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FHEBRNRE —E——F+ A=
EEBTT S RE ¢ RERN « 1]
RT RSN

Thé Remuneration Committee held three meeting's during the year
ended 31 December 2012. During the year, the Remuneration
Committee had performed the following: .

assessed the performance of the Directors and senior
’ management; . : :

reviewed and appr_erd.the remuneration for the Directors and
senior.management including terms of letters of appointments;

reviewed the remuneratlon policy and recommended to the
Board; and

Fﬁﬂ&‘a‘érﬂr;ﬂﬁtﬂ ﬂﬁﬂﬂéﬁﬁﬁ
iR

. reviewed the proposal of granting of share optlons
accordmg to the Company s share option scheme and made
recommendatlons to the Board. ;

TemEEESY
B == A=+ B ERESE

T

éiﬂ%%nm%MﬁWMT-

. Remuneratson of Duecims and Senior _
Managemen’c -

. b of

0-1,00'0,000_'
: 1,ooo,oo‘1-2,ooo,ooo'

remuneratlon and the #RiZ ETTRBIM R+ /,\?'HHWJé?&ﬂ%Ei_

Further particulars regagdlng\’:’l%l:?a‘ggk«s :
five hlghest pald employees;.as req ’?e be dlsclosed pursuant  EEFATREBEE - RNBBHRRMET -

China Mengnlu Dalry Company Limited Annual Report 2012
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Nomination Commrttee - - REEEY

As at 31 December 2012 the Nommatlon Committee comprrsed RoB——F+Zh=1+—
~ fivé' members, four of whom are rndependent non-executive %ﬁka ,HEPIEI%%}

Directors (Mr. Jiao Shuge (alias Jiao Zhen), Mr. Liu Fuchun, Mr. %%E

Zhang Xiaoya -and Mr. Xie Tao) and the remaining one member

is a non-executive Director (Mr. Ning Gaoning). The Nomination - 2

Committee is chaired by Mr. Ning Gaoning.

The responsibilities of the Nomination Committee are to determine -
the nomination policy, review the structure, size and composition,

including the skills, knowledge and experiences of the Board and’ 3
make recommendations to. the Board regarding any proposed X

s,”;sﬁ§$2§&j§%§ﬁxmﬁ%
: *%Erhﬁééhmﬁﬁ:%%ﬁ%

\ AREN2E  NEAAE &
Do 5 AMMFIBTES  RABBARHSRE
BEOEANARGRERS - ARORRTE
CBR - SRR R R BRI AR -
LRPEBI AT RSB o

Nomination Committee makes refer
inter alia, reputation for integrity, acco ol
in the dalry industry, professional and,.edi :
and commitment in respect,of ay aj| b

v |ndependence of the mdependSﬁ‘ A

; -s;‘background, :
7and assesses the

The Nomlnatlon Comqﬁ)\fe,e? H*ﬁ{h» Bmeetings during the year RHBRZEE gﬁ'\\ai_;—_ﬁ—f:ﬁ i—‘.—l“—Eiﬂ:'

ended 31 December 2012 us; Tainly, the change of the FEBGFTZREH  FTETRERESZEE
Board Committees™® 'irma ’%i nation of Directors, the new ¥f& - HEFEEH - #ﬁ§1££$&2tﬁ_] BE AR

appointments of D Chief Executlve Offrcer of the E?ﬁi‘ﬁ—:?ﬂ o

® @xtFEI. ﬁlﬂﬂ Al My 7=
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Audit Committee : 2% i%
As at 31 December 2012, the Audit Committee comprised four R=Z—

" independent non-executive Directors (Mr. Jiao Shuge (alias Jiao
Zhen), Mr. Liu.Fuchun, Mr..Zhang Xiaoya and Mr. Xie Tao) in which
one possesses the relevant professional qualifications required
under the Listing Rules. The Audit Committee is chaired by Mr. Xie

- Tao.

The Audit Cormittee serves as a focal point for communication %Eéé%
between other directors, the external auditors, and the ZHMEBRAR]
management as their duties relate to. financial and other reporting,  F1H &
- internal controls and the auditing. The Audit Committee assists the  J& Jt;?j
Board in fulfilling its responsibilities by providing an independent -
review of financial reporting and by satisfying themselves as to )
the effectiveness of the Company's internal controls and as to the
efﬂcnency of the audits. :

SERBE-F——F+-A=+—Hik
BITTHREH - EAFEER - BREEE
T FIIERLIIE '

scuss Ty ORnSTaL ﬁ%%?ﬁ%ﬂﬁﬂ#ﬁﬂ¢%%ﬁl¢m
and findings of their audit and interim re‘.{ WOTkE1SS ¢ © —RREBREANAL . :
%ﬁ%%ﬁ%%%%ﬁ@%éﬂ%ﬁ@%@
FE .

~ - reviewed external auditors’

managementsresponse . \' o
. g "\S}‘ 38 . | | .
. reviewed and reconu&,ndedat’“? ~ ﬁ%ﬁ&bﬁs%%tswﬂ@ﬂﬁ@%%@%u}m:
. " ‘

’ extemal audltors remufie atloh,\,%}‘ _

REEEABERAFE - m§$@%

of the external allp . R :
- rewe%l\)‘e itors’ independence, objectivity and  — #«;’iﬂ‘&l\ﬁﬁff?%ﬁﬂi#ﬂ“"_Lﬁ %‘éﬂﬁﬁ‘ﬂ#%ﬁ% :
| b audit process; : F‘ H’Jﬁd(fé_ '
- rejel »_‘_ onitored the integrity of financial statements, ~— AT ERAR T I - fﬁﬁﬂ]ﬁfﬂﬁﬁ
1 nd interim reports and annual and mtenm WMENREEM P HRE NN TE
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discussed auditing, internal control, rrsk management and
financial reporting matters before recommendmg them to the

" Board for approval and

-~ reviewed the arrangements that emp'loyees of the Company
can use, in confidence, to raise concerns about possible
improprieties .in financial reporting, internal controls or other

matters.

Al issues raised by the external auditors-and the Audit Committee
have been addressed by the senior management..The work and |
fmdlngs of the Audrt Committee have been reported to the Board ﬁkg &l

Other than the reportlng responsrblhtres of the Compa"u_-o s I BRAAFIESMERRREE(E2H
ortji; @part 1EE2EATEA B LB ET RSN - EEIR

AR ERUARBRADTNMERE - ILEH
BHRRAAEAANMRBAEBRARFTANR T
—ZHFE+= A=+ EIE‘JEJIBZHK/R&Z!KE.E%:

EEJJ:@FE‘J*'JIH&EEQMLE °

oS B
Z%ﬁﬁﬁﬁkﬁ%@ﬁﬁﬂmW%#F%MM
ﬁﬁﬁ%l%éé&ﬁi%%m 3 e iR A
BISBIRT AN - KRBz BSREEEHE RS
‘?%-EE%H&&%$%EE%ZEk@

B BERLAZEZRBREERUL - BERE
FERARUASEEBRBFFSR TS ¥
L REYREEREREN o A5E hEsE A
EDRART AMRET AR B M) PO BRBSHE - ARSI AR
A M&ME%%%EE Ek#ﬁk%?%

e

Internal Control
- The Board s responsible for martarqjﬁ:

internal control system, to safe &
the mterest of shareholders"

ely evaluate and review the significant.

VJ gxposed and reports to the Board on a

HEARGAZARAT P —FE%

Ref #132114



<60

Corporate Governance Report o3& A

Bésides strict inﬁplemenfation of a performance assessment system

~-and training programs for its staff, the Group has in place a series

"of written working systems 1in respect of business, production,-

finance, legal compliance and administration aspects, to ensure the
significant risks, to which the Group is exposed, are contained:

Control environment — The Group has established defined
organizational structures. Authority to operate various business
functions is delegated to respective management within limits

set by senior management of the headquarters or the executive

‘Directors. The senior management meets on a regular basis

to discuss and apprové business strategies, plans and budgets .
prepared by individual business units. The performance of the.

Group is reported to the Board on a regular basis.

impact on the Gfodp.

Control activities — Policies and procedunes are set for, e ,
function, in Wthh approvals, authonza b
recommendatlons performance reviews,?
segregatlon of duties are included.

China Mengniu Dairy Company Limited  Annual Report 2012
Ref #132114
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Durihg the year ended 31 December. 2012, the Board had examined %j?‘,ﬁ i——__f:ﬁ-l— A=+—H#
the internal control system- and reviewed the evaluation performed EEEANELRAS gzaﬁgtf 7
by the Audit Committee, the management and internal and external & - &32 B 17988 K SN 3R 4% ST ’
‘auditors, on the effectiveness of the internal coritrol system of the PIERESIE RATRAEAVEEES o
Group. No significant areas of concern were identified. " - SN

The Board also reviewed the adequacy of reso'urces qualifications EEEIIRE T A%}
and experience of staff 6f the Company's accounting and financial ~ JTE&ER - E
reporting functions and their training programmes and. budget and iﬂ&ﬁﬁ% '
considered that they are adequate. : b "

External Auditors ah o
The Group's independent external auditors are Emst & Young. TQ NI ‘ ,heﬂﬁﬁﬁmﬁﬁﬂ@*‘l‘ﬁﬂiﬁﬁﬁﬁ o

Audlt Commlttee is respon5|ble for the appomtment of the external

‘\ﬂ‘ﬁﬁﬁ_%ﬁfﬁa nIéﬁ(J&IEﬁiﬁ“E . ,\E%,Ea
2 f%*ﬁ‘l?ﬁi‘lifﬁéklf’ﬁ@éﬁﬂlﬂjiﬁ{ﬂﬂ%&

prior to the execution of contract with external auditgisapqeite
commencement of thelr dutles constder whether ’f Yo

— =t At BIEELAE

Details of fees paid or payable to Ernst & Young fort &) ¢ i o

ﬁﬁ%kxeemeﬁmmeeﬁe@t=

Anpual audit @E%Et 3,540

Interim review L : 560
Non- audnt service ,' FEEETIRYS

EODFARRER 40

3 \&vﬁﬂk’zaﬁ? 300

o 4,440

e R SR -
Rk - BE TR R AR S8 2K
| REHEHAAAR AN - |

PEREANARAT -2 ——FFR

Ref #132114



62
Corporate Governance Report A% %

Strategy and Development Commitiee
The Company has established a Strategy and Development

Committee on 27 August 2009, which currently comprised two

- executive Directors, Ms. Sun Yiping-and Mr. Wu lingshui, two non-
executive Directors, Mr. Ma Jianping and Mr. Tim @rting Jgrgensen
and one independent non-executive Director, Mr. Jiao Shuge (alias

~ " Jiao Zhen). The Strategy and Development Committee is chaired by

Mr. Ma Jianping.

" The principal duties of the Strategy and Development Committee
include drawing up long-term development strategjies and
significant investments on financing plans of the Company,
proposing significant capital investment for operation projects, and

conducting studies and making recommendation on important

matters that would 'affect the development of the Company.

The Strategy and Development Commlttee held one meetmg
1 January 2013 up to the dateé of this report to discuss y
budget and performance target for 2013.

Company Secretary -
The Company Secretary is a full time employee oﬁb o

has day-to-day knowledge of the Company's a ipd
Secretary is Tesponsible for facilitating the Bo, 3 well
as communxcatlon among Board m b

n; For the year
Z’ Has conﬁrmed

China Mengniu Dairy Company Limited Annual Report 2012
Ref #132114 )

BERBREEY

DA

Schedule 3

$Aﬁ%:§“h¢ﬂﬁ—+£ﬁ“

(ERB(RBEE) 4 Y
BERRREEETE J

B RBRE AR RARTIRA
= RE REEHEAR
CHE T ERNTREBNE

‘ fet= 0
_éﬁ"@ﬁ@_"—iﬁ A—BZEARR
HRHAE ST T —IRER EE:’IE@:%—E

EERERAME

ARAWERAR ARBES  HAARAMBES
ﬁé%m c ATMWERABRHESERER MU
RAREERERAE - BARARRR(RED) RE
EEYEMER - ARWERR  BREAZ-F
—ZF+ - A=+ —-BILEEB 2T PR 150
BraviaRIE S -

ARERE
KR - KOTSRS B AR



- Schedule 3

63

Corporate Governance Report SEERE

Directors’ Securities Transactions : . a%ﬁ’f"" B
The Company has adopted, in terms no less exacting than, the = &2 _IE',%#WT;Z
standard required by.the Model Code for Securities Transactlons . ﬁ/\i%ﬁﬁ,{é
by Directors of Listed Issuers set out in Appendix 10 of the. Listing
Rules as the Company's code of conduct and rules governing
dealings by all the directors in the securities of the Company (the
"“Model Code”). Having made specific enquiry of all the Directors,
the Companyconfirms that, during the year ended 31 December
2012, all the Directors have strictly complied with the Model Code.

Investor Relations and Ccﬁ%_mun_icaticns
The Company adopts a proactive policy in promoting investg»
relations and communications. Regular meetings are held withsg
institutional investors and financial analysts to ensure twgzway A

communlcatlons on the Company 5 performance and developme't q

¢¥$ﬁ7:%¢%&ﬁrﬁﬁh ity
CRMRIVEE S E R ERARE
B S 4 D B RS RS o AREE R

SR E IR - DRI R B TP
AER  BIHARES

RATR-B——ENATHEABTRRBFKR
o NEEE(—BWNTER(RRER) - NEBE )
#.ﬁé%(’Eﬁifﬁ)ﬁﬁ%?@ﬁ?liﬁ??%%)ﬁl’l‘

' ji&%ﬁﬂlﬂi‘%&ﬁ{’&'ﬁ%%%#}?ﬁﬂﬁ*ﬁ‘éﬂjﬁ

¢ Lngrectors) were unable. REBEAY - XAFEERFBFAG LR
bsence were explained to - RFEMFIEERMER - '

outsxde of Hong Kong, nine Dj) ecto ﬁs»’
Chief Executive Offlcer), 6 nor Ri
Chairman) and 2 indepe den.__' ok
to attend the AGM.;] easg"s St d
the shareholders gtthe.KG By = Ty

) e tors (including the Chief Financial AREZE(BEEEMBEE Z—EWE‘J BHMITES -

C ident non-executive Directors (includipg . UEBEEEREES T HEANNSRABNIERT

s J% MY mmittee)) attended the AGM and they ~ B¥)EHERTAFAS - YRS RBIAFA
] or answering questions from shareholders . &T2RIEH IIRERE RIREENIRMA -

BEAS RS- ESHERSBIUMHIER
PEEERE c BREAS HFARIERAFAE

I “'f': been adopted for decision- maklng at shareholders' HikE - - HERERAEFOEERNEETA
f -g. Details of poll voting procedures were included in the NRIRENBEHA ;%15}15&)T‘¥§IJ7§F§§E55&

circular dispatched to the shareholders of the Company. The Mo DR ENERE -

c_ircdlar also included relevant details of proposed resplutions and
biographies of the Directors standing for election.

| REREAEERAA —B——fEH
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Sh&reh@lders Rzghts ' . P}&‘?%ﬂ'
Convening of extraordinary general meetmg on B‘Eﬂiﬁﬁﬂéaﬁﬁﬂﬁﬁ%ﬂﬂﬁ%

requisition by shareholders S
Accordinig to the articles of association of the Company, anytwoor  RIBEA B ER ARy
more shareholders of the Company .or any one shareholder of the 'B{]‘-Fﬁ-zkﬂ —Jﬂﬁixﬁiﬁmﬁ 4
. Company. which is a recognized clearing house (or its nominee(s))
. holding as at the date of deposit of the requisition not less than
one-tenth of the paid up capital of the Company which carries the
right of voting at general.meetings of the Company shall have the . - J&
right, by written requisition, to convene an extraordinary general '
meeting by, deposmng the written requisition at the pnncnpal office
of the Company in Hong Kong at Suite 1602, 16th Floor, Top Glory
Tower, 262 Gloucester Road, Causeway Bay, Hong Kong for the
- attention of the Company Secretary, specifying the objects of the

meeting, the name(s) and contact details of the requisitionist(s) and k
5|gned by the requisitionist(s). '

,e#hﬁﬁ%@%am%m%utmﬁnm?A
7#@% BEATHHERIABHREAS
iR FR TR B RO AASTERREEHNE
k2 Aest=18A BAE AR - AARAANS
RABNEREERREBHANREHREE
. BREAGFAIBELNTERY ‘ .

that any meeting so convened shall not be held, aftSwhetex)
of three months from the date of dgposit; SFihe reqieit
~ all reasonable expenses incurred by t
of the failure of the Board shall b‘ e

Company.

-“JSJ(S) as a result
»-d}to them by the

‘ China Mengniu Dairy Company Limited Annual Report 2012
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Procedures for directing shareholders enqumes to the
Board _
For enquiries to the Board, the sh_areholders of the Company $’A‘ﬁlﬂ%ﬁﬁﬂ§kﬁs$ﬁ" e

: »ﬂgilt‘ ;

may contact the-Company Secretary at the Hong Kong office

of the Company at Suite 1602, 16th Floor, Top Glory Tower, EZGZ?;‘%M%?U FF' 816
262 Gloucester Road, Causeway Bay, Hong Kong or by email to §
info@mengniuir.com. The Company will endeavor to respond
to their queries in a timely manner. Shareholders may also make
enquiries with the Directors at the general meetings of the

Company.
In -addition, the Shareholders can contact Computershare Hong '% 1 SRS éﬁ],&ﬁﬁjﬁ&ﬁ;ﬁﬂ&,ﬁﬁ'q%ﬂ'-
Kong Investor Services Limited, the share registrar. of the Company, i B ERPBETEREBPRE
in Hong Kong, if'they have any enquiries about their shareh%gng ‘ ° - ’

N

and entltlements to dividend.

w5rW$kekeL SR

Procedures for putting forward proposals;

meetings by shareholders 4 . »
) E$$ﬁé§§§fifﬂﬂ&$ﬁ%‘iﬁ%ﬂ%ﬁiﬂ§$ﬁﬁé

SREASSF AP B2 HEA - AR
RETHESLRAESARLRAEEREME
/ AAL(FEEERA)ESEEHEMAN : &
THe HHREESAT RS RVRETERSMNEN - X
) foRe[Beotpto the office  FBAEXX BB TIT 2623 BRI
,‘j BERY 161216022 + WIARTHBERKHA + ERED]
\legld, Suchnotices shall be 342 HiB A B Sk A AR SAVAE R AR M -
InTower, 262 Gloucester A RIEREIHERM AL AR RBPHEEH -

igr the attention- of ‘the

the date of such general meeting, give?ay
. Nommatlon Commlttee of the Board of’h

Road, Causeway Baél
- Company Secretary, spe

'I‘?iﬁﬁﬁﬁ}&%”%/&ié‘]k 40 BRERIRATIR
IRREREHEEERAEANERNSERER

BRRFEARE o

hESGHAERAT B —FEH
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The board of directors (the “Directors”) presents its report together
with the audited financial statements of the Company and the.
Group for the year ended 31 December 201 2.

Frincrpal Activities and Analysis of Operations
"The principal activity of the Company is investment holding. The
principal activities of the Group’s main operating subsidiary,
Inner Mongolia Mengniu Dairy (Group) Company Limited (“Inner
Mongolia Mengniu”), and its subsidiaries are manufacturing and
distribution of dairy products including liquid milk (comprising
UHT milk, milk beverages-and yogurt), ice cream and other dairy
products (such as milk powder) in China. '

Particulars of the Company’s subsidiaties are set out in note 19 to
>

the financial statements.

The Group's revenue is derived principally from business actjy
China. An analysis of the Group's performance for-the ye
31 December-2012 by business segments is set out in n&}
frnancral statements . .

Resu!ts and Appropnat:ons Y
The results of the Group for the year ended 31%@ ¢
set out ln the consolidated income statement 9

'RMBO0.16 (2011: RMBO. 198) per share‘
RMB282,917,000 (2011: RMBS)Z}B 953%
whose names appear on the Te}g{* Y

2013. . By \f% f\;e

K A~ a

‘E‘“ urpment :
it -ﬁ}Operty, plant and equrpment of

The Directors have recommended the b fe
% f‘}o’approxrmately

[, to shareholders
on Friday, 14 June

the COY DA vdmg the year are set out in the consolidated

statemer‘fgb’f “ehanges in equity on pages 87 to 88 and note
43 to the financial statements. The Company's distributable
reserves, calculated in accordance with statutory provisions
applicable in the Company’s place of incorporation, amounted to
approximately RMB8,003,854,000 as at 31 Décember. 2012 (2011

RMB8,055,410 ,000).

China Mengniu Dairy Company Limited  Annual Report 2012
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Donations

. Charitable and other donations made by the Group d_Liring the year
amounted to approximately RMB6,046,000 (2011: RMB7,924,000).

Share Capital 'a;n_d Share Options

_Details of movement in the Company s share capital and share |
-options during the year are set out in notes 42 and 45 to the

'flnanCIal statements.

Directors _ _
The Directors during the year ended 31 December 2012 were:

Executive Directors -

Ms. $UN Yiping _ (appointed on 12 Apnl
Mr. YANG Wenjun (re5|gned on 30 July
-Mr., BAl Ying

Mr. WU Jingshui
Mr. DING Sheng

Non-Executive Directors
© Mr. NING Gaoning
Mr. YU Xubo
Mr. NIU Gensheng
Mr. MA lJianping
Mr. FANG Fenglei
Mr. MA Wangjun

‘30 July2012)
on 12 April 2012)

fted on 30 July 2012)

(re-deSIgnated to an independent
" non-executive director on
12 April 2012)
(re-designated to-an independent
non-executive director on’
12 April 2012)

Mr. ZHANG Xiaoya
* Mr. XIE Tao

Ref #132114
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" - Subsequent-to the end of the.reporting period and up to the date
of this report, Ms. Liu Ding was appointed.as a non-executive
Director and Mr: Andrew Y. Yan was appointed as an mdependent

_ non- executlve Dlrector both with effect from 10 January 2013

. In accordance with-'Article 112 of the -Compény's-articlés of #REZKQET%E%EE%HE!

association, Mr. Bai Ying, Mr. Wu Jingshui, Mr. Ding Sheng and Mr. FKEE  TEESE SEWmES
Niu-Gensheng will retire by rotation and Mr. Tim @rting Jergensen, R ARREAR =Jr l]' Tim @rting
Mr. Finn S. Hansen, Ms, Liu Ding and Mr. Andrew Y. Yan will also  JergensensBl: : F1‘ ok HITZER
retire in accordance with the Company's articles of association and, Rt 4 TS RN é#ﬁ BEEMNE
- being eligible, offér themselves for re-election at the forthcoming - fEARFES S L
ann'ual general meeting. ' -
FrERARIES EWHRA

The Company considers that all- the independent non- executlve
Directors are independent pursuant to the criteria set out in Rule ™
3.13 of the Rules- Governmg the Listing of Secuntles on The S ck

IOEEREL T P2 3R Y 3¢
BT RAZBYERE  ARTRE
VAL '

Management . ;
Brief biographical details of the Dlrector £l
management are set out on pages 32 to.43. r sy

43§ °

_J:_I—Zﬁﬁl’ ik =] Q{J . .

Tthetfor BEREERRBFASREEEZEFHMAR
general meetlng has service_ o ifi*;_"" ~ mpany which is  ARFHTFATHAATR—FERRAHECEERH
not determinable by the Corﬁ’pa%‘1 iR ,ear without payment  {EMRIN FLARIEZ BRFEEH -

of compensation, other thajr)b‘tgft]t

No- contracts of significa %relétlon to the Group's business ﬁéﬁr“ﬂvjﬁﬁqﬁﬁﬂ%ﬁaﬁ v A FIREAEAFA
to whlch the Co ; anyEof its subsidiaries was a party and - A ESITEASRASENEYHIEMESE
1 Naterial interest, whether directly or EHEEEEPHEEARZZERAD -

I8

China Mengnlu Dairy Company Limited Annual Report 2012
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Directors’ Interests, Long and Short Positions EZERRG - HERH K

in Shares, Underlying Sharves and Debentures 25+ HFARKAE

As at 31 December 2012, the interests and short positions of R-B——fF+=A=
the Directors ‘and chief executives of the Company in the shares, ETRABRAAF —]{gfi'
underlying shares and debentures of the-Company and any % REIR &HI([ &k
associated corp_orafion (within the meaning of Part' XV of the {5 - HEARG KE
Securities and Futures Ordinance) (the "SFO") as recorded in the

regi'ster required to be kept under Section 352 of the SFO or as BT #E}}?_I:m%*
otherwise notified to the Company and The Stock Exchange of A =i < A1 (T4 Al ])
Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) pursuant to the Model A4 RHMBEATI(TE

Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (the
“Model Code") as set out in Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules were as %

follows:

Long positions in the shares of the Comp_any/As’s_o
Corporation: : . :

603,209 (1)

Personal Interest  0.03% -

Baf Ying
AR

Personal lnterest ) - 448201Q) 0.03%
@A%m '

1. RoT——F+SA=+—B AARZEBIR
AR 8R1,768,232,7128% »

(] iﬁﬂ%‘ o

Certain Directors of the Company have been granted options under ~ AR &} HRBAR T2 BB SRS E
the Company’s share option scheine, details of which are set outin  BRHE - BB T X[ RERARAERT Bl —50 -

the section "Share Optlon Scheme” belaw. _

FERFARERAT —B——5FR
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Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2012, none of the
Directors and the chlef executive of the Company and their
respective associates had any interests and short positions in the
shares, underlying shares and debentures of the Company or any
of its associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of
the SFO) as recorded in the register of the Company required to be
kept under Section 352 of the SFO or as otherwise ‘notified to the
Company and the Stock Exchaﬁge pursuant to the Model Code.

- Substantial Sharehelders” Interests .

As at 31 December 2012, the interests or short positions of

- substantial éhareholders_, other than the Directors -or the chief .

~ executive of the Company whose interests and short, positions in
the shares of the Company and ‘of its associated cprpofations (within
the meaning of Part XV of the SFO) are set out above, in the shares e
and underlying shares of the Company as recorded in the regjg
required to be maintained under section 336 of the SFO y :

follows: -

er n M

Schedule >

- COFCO Coiporation P b :
COFCO (Ho_n.g'Kong') Limited™= N

- Farwill Limited T ;??Q?ﬁga will Limited ’

-COFCO Dairy Holdings le;tg%péh ﬁﬁ COFCO Dairy Holdings Limited

COFCO Dairy lnvestmenfg‘L' » COFCO Dairy Investments Limited
Arla Foods Amba

Arla Foods Amba }é’@ !
" Morgan Stanley i 5 Morgan Stanley

UBSAG

Commonwealth Bank of Ads_tralié

496,014,022 (L

. 347,600,000 (L.

i
@
@)

(4}

~— n—

495,614,022 (.
495,614,022 (L

~— e

347,600,000 (L)
495,614,022 (L)®
91,000,570 (L)
25,162,491 (5)
99,695,166 (L)
5,548,457 (S)

" 160,884,000 (L)

1 19.66%

19.66%
28.03%
5.15%
1.42%
.5.64%
0.31%
9.10%

China Mengniu Dairy Company Limited  Annual Report 20.12
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Notes:

()

COFCO Corporation is deemed interested in (a) 495,614,022 shares °

In the Company through its wholly-owned subsidiary, COFCO (Hong
Kong) Limited and (b) 400,000 shares in the Company through

- another of its wholly-owned subsidiary, COFCO (BVI) Limited. COFCO

@

@)

@

-5

" (8)

)

L -

interests or short ’_
',Company wer

(BVI) Limited is deemed interested in 400,000 shares in the Company
through its wholly-owned subsidiary, COFCO (BVI) No. 9 Limited. *

COFCO (Hong Kong) Limited is deemed interested Th 495,614,022
shares in the Company through its wholly-owned sub5|d|ary, Farwrll
Limited.

Farwill Limited is deemed’ rnterested in 347,600,000 shares in the -:(

Company through rts 70% owned subsrdrary, COFCO Dalry Holdrng‘

lerted which constrtutes an agree t~
the SFO. Accordingly, Arla Foods Arﬁ g
495,614,022 shares in the Company

I erested' in

1,768,232,712.

Indrcates a short posiijt i ¢ N
;“3}%’5;{" NI

Indicates a longRosrtropw {’h'" e T
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Wi ¢
5

ﬁ&(b)ziz@ﬁ%
NN "1400,00 3

A FICOFCO Dairy Investments Limited%zkﬂﬁl
347,500,000&5&153*%%’%%& o

Ho2——F,A+A8 ' Arla Foods Ambafif
Em@(ﬁ'l‘%)ﬁpﬁ’/}—] Farwill Limited 2COFCO
Dairy Holdings Limited T 32 % B COFCO Dairy
Holdings Limited ¥ AR 3% + HiRIFBHRYE
1R HIZE317 EIEAR 538 - IRUE + Arla Foods Amba
PR ARNART495,614, ozz%ﬂﬁfﬁ¢t§ﬁ%§ °

(6) 75"_%€~ F+=-A=+—8 - ZKAFTJ#JE%TBQ
| {p488A1,768,232, 71239

(S) %Hvﬁl-a"
) RREE -

B LSBT BB A - B——F+=-A=+—
g ﬁﬁ%#&ﬁﬁhfmfﬁJ%B%{%ﬁET‘E_Z"‘*
AR - BEEAE AR A A RIBR(D SARBIRR D
RZAEREAKR - : .

MERLNSARAT —B——FER
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- Report of the Directors EEEHE
Contmumg Connected Transactions - HEBETS .
On 20 February 2012 the Company entered into a-new Master Sale R=-B—=F= FJ +8 - KRR ]
and Purchase Agreement with COFCO Corporation, a substantial - RAR(AR= _$—|-

shareholder of the Company holding approximately 28.05% in the TB’JHxﬁJ‘FF'ﬁ"ﬁ'?(JZB 05%: ;
shares of the Company as at 31 December 2012 and therefore a AR A FIMBIEA )5

connected person of the Company, pursuant to which the Group gtk » E$E.$Bgt§*1&
will continue to, subject to the Group’s regular review and at T ”
the Group’s option, purchase white sugar, edible oil, other raw A
materials and related products from COFCO Corporation, its &
subsidiaries and certain associated companies (collectively “COFCO = 4
. Corporation Group Companies!) for. a term 'co'mmencing from 20 &
January 2012 to 31 December 2014. . o

The transactions under the new Master Sale and Purchase 5
Agreement constituted continuing connected transactions of the &
Group. The annual transaction amount under the-new Maste SQL
and Purchase Agreement for the year ended 31 Decembegf.

ﬁ“‘f~_$+:ﬁz+—ﬁt¢ﬁ'$%ﬁ
REAEADE RAM Htt R RBHAER
O/ B REBAARZASHENARARYE
411,311,000 « =

The independent non-executive direct e - eiCompany have ZARAFBMYIERITESOEM EXHMRNZHEN

_ reviewed the contmumg connected t%? o i 't out above BHXS WYEBRBZSEHEMELSHIOREE

NnQbcopyecied transactions BB MR —MEHBIERRT  (NREEHRE

i, 05Ual course, of business  # + SRR ARE MBS = IR RIS

Teiakterms or on terms no = HREZ IGMETT : &(lll)*ﬁ%ﬁ*‘.ﬁ:}\_x

“t8rms available to or from  SRIBMHBGIET  MEZSERBLATEHE

Lrla ‘accordance with the relevant ~ HFARR Tﬂxﬁzgﬁﬁﬂﬁﬂ o RATEBED
}hs that are fair and reasonable . M5 FHiREIE 14ASMBBHE -

ha %ﬁthas complied with the disclosure
dangetwith Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

" China Mengniu Dairy Company Limited Annual Report 2012
Ref #132114
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Ernst & Young, the Company’s auditors, were engaged to report on
the Group’s continuing connected transactions. in accordance with
Hong Kong Standard on Assurance Engagements 3000 Assurance:
Engagements Other Than Audjis or Reviews of Historical Financial
Information and with reference to Practice Note 740 Auditor’s

Letter on Continuing Connected Transactions under the Hong

Kong Listing Rules issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants. Ernst & Young have issued their.unqualified

letter containing their findings and conclusions in respect of the '

continuing connected transactions disclosed above by the Group
- in accordance with Rule 14A,38 of the Listing.Rules. A copy of the

auditors’ letter has been provided by the ‘Company to-the Hong

.~ Kong Stock Exchange.

‘Connected Tiansactions :
On 8 November 2012 the Company announced thaf‘ng‘ iy

ler g%a company
6 w,usmess of

17.78% equity interest in S%keXI_
RMB101 760, OOO of which RMBS i

Uity lnterest in Salkexmg, the Company Wl”

r. Yang is a former executive Director within the preceding
12 months of the date of the Equity Transfer Agreement and is
therefore a connected person under Rule 14A.11(2) of the Listing

" Rules, the entering into of the Equity Transfer Agreement with Mr.

" Yang constitutes a connected transaction of the Company under

Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

,Ref #132114

KATZF%%ﬁ%
BEERA
T#/i5 ﬁ?ﬁa‘ﬁé“éﬂ‘zﬁ %#? s

st hand insight of the dalry mdustry market .
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Cae)

P et ([1B 54 DRI EEE) « Rt
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Share Option Scheme _
-The Company operates a share option scheme (the “Scheme”)
for the purpose of providing incentives and rewards to eligible

-participants who contribute to ‘the success of the Group's:
operations. The following share options were outstanding under

‘the Scheme during the year.”

“Schedule 3

%&% &l

* Executive Directors

Hires L
Bai Ying 1,840,000 - - -
A% : :
3,210,000 -
3,200,000
W Jingshui 1,100,060 -

REK

3,200,000 = - -

China Mengnlu Dairy Company Limited  Annual Report 2012

Ref #132114

203

3183, 18320100 1782014 .-
“EENE CE-EENATARE
- MtTAR - ZE-REAAHHA
BN2009 | 2311201 o 22.11.2015 440
ZEPAE SE-Ft-fotERE
+-A=+=B —F-FFt+-A=t-A ,
3,200,000 10.10.2011 10102015t09102018 410
“F——% - SE-EEHATRE '
CEAME SENEAME .
1106000 1882008 188201010 1782004 - 2203
SRENE O ZE-RRAATAAR '
MATAR  ZE-BENATER :
1,500,000 23.11.2009 - 23.11.20111022.11.2015 2440
' “ERE ZPF-AstEAE
, T-A=t=R ZF-EFt-A-toA
2,400,000 10002011 10.10.2015 109102018 2410
| ZE—% . —F-aktAtez
o TATR | ZE-NEHARR .
1150000 1882008 . 188.20101017.82014 . 203
~ :??l\# =225\ AH/\RE
ARtAR ”T—IE@/\B-H:H :
1800000 23012000  23.1.2011102211.2005 2440
' “EFRRF  ZF——Ft-At=RE
+-A=tZR ZEF-A%t-A=toR -
3200000 10.02011 1002015091020/ " 2410
=%  2-TFtAtRz
AR CE-AEEANE
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 Former Director
B : :
Yang Wenjun 9,000,000 - - Co- 8.8.20101017.8.2014 22.03
T : —F-SENATNRE
: S “F-BENATER
6,600,000 - - 23.11.2011 10 22.11.2015 2440
=7 MF —F——4&+—A=t=R%
+-A=+3A —E-E4t-A=tzA
9,000,000 10102011 10.002015169.02018 240
' :E”?"“ﬁ —$‘fﬁ¢+ﬂ +Ei ES
. . © t+AtH =E-NEHAAR L
Employeesin Aggregate ~ 212,108, - 26102006  26020071025102012 © " 1340
EQ%H o :%%ﬁ : :gg‘tﬁ'ﬁl—‘i‘/‘\ -
o : +A=txA —F-=%+A=+ER
24,780,494 24200904 1882008 18820101017.82014 22,03
=FENE —F-EENAHARE-
. AAtABS ZE-mEAATER
6l sssses (4201473) 57387395 23.01.2009  23.11.20111022.11.2045 2440
g : . ZEEAE cE——t-A=t=AE
, _ t-AztER SF-RFH-AStoA o
(3000000 © 4,070,000 6.12.2010 6.122012105.122016 [22.80
' “2-%§  —F-CHEtCARAE
+ZANA ~E-AFt-ARH
(3,000,000) 44200000 10.J0.2011  10.10.2015109.10.2018 24.10.
I —F-F —E-RF AR
HHHE . ZR-NEHAAR

- (916%) (1870147) 162,658,299

FESENRERAT —B——FFR
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Rep0|t of the Directors & =288 $ﬁf='.=

Notes:
m

targets, and ends on a date which is ng later than seven years from
the date of grant of such options. Further details of the Scheme are
set out in note 45 to the financial statéments. )

The weighted average C105|ng price of the Company's shares

"2
immediately before the dates on whlch the options were exercised was
HK$23.14. .
* (3) Mr. Yang Wenjun resigned as executwe Dlrector wnh effect from 30
July 2012.
“(4) As at the date of this report, the total ﬁumber of the Company's

optjons granted but not yet to be exercised) is 67,323,001 shares,

The value of an option varies w:th dﬁifer ables of certain
subjective assumptlons Any change‘f@ tjbles used may
materially affect the estlmatlon 01; thh %;En option.

5, ".
Pre- empt:ve Rzgh’cm« *k’%x
There is no prowsnon for pr' 14 tn/"%:‘;q,,nts under the Company’s
_lwof the Cayman Islands which
; .fel’*new shares on a pro rata basis

\sﬁ

Purchasé gédemption of the Company’s
Listg i
DU'F ng ither the Company nor any of ‘its subsidiaries

Public FEo . :
As at the date of this report, the Company has mamtamed the
prescribed public float under the Listing Rules, based on the
information that is publicly available to the Company and within the

" knowledge of the Directors.

China Mengnlu Dalry Company Umited Annual Report 2012
Ref #1321 14

The exercisé period.of the share options granted commences after
a certain vesting period and the fulfilment of certain performance .

shares available for issue under thie Scheme (excluding the share RE N
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' ,'entered into or existed during the year. -

. purchases of the Group.

' The percentage of revenue atiributable to the five largest customers
- of the Group comblned was less than 30% of the total revenue of
L@

" Pledge of Assets :
As at 31 December 2012, the Group has pledged ‘@gm

.Schedule 3

7

- Report of the Directors saa.a?éﬁ%

Management Contracts- -~ ' EEAH 5
No contracts concerning the management and administration of the RATRFEABRITLRE
whole or any substantial part of the business of the Company were  FER{E( Ej{%%%ﬂ%ﬁ'q%

Ma;m Cus’c@mers and Suppliers
The percentage of purchases attributable to the five. largest
suppliers of the Group combined was less than 30% of the total

the Group.

TREER - AT - HERERETY
2 . EE RS i A R#347,306,0007(=
B——4 : AR¥S555,103,0005C) ° ﬁf‘ﬁ‘ﬂ—;@

" RBBSFARRNEE -

deposits, bills receivable, land use rights and certain.gLoy
and equipment aggregating to approximately § Sl

Contmgent Liabilities and COgmitgents . - HABEREAE
Details of contingent liabilities and cort Gset out in° RABERAENEES BlJfJZﬁAHJJ‘J%#Eﬁm‘EM
_ notes 47 and 50, respectlvely, to the fip: )5250 °
Financial Summary 4‘% ' Eﬁ%ﬁ?ﬁ- :
i And of the assets and. AEBR-—B——E+-A=+—8RBEAHE

ﬁ?fﬁk’nﬁﬁﬁﬁfﬁlﬁ'}#’r‘%ia&ééﬁfﬁmxﬁﬁ\%
244K o ‘

A summary of the results forsthesy
liabilities of the Group asﬁ’%% EDecert
four flnanaal penods arésetoLt

| ﬁ%"‘%‘%}é‘ ' _
‘ZIK’/}Tﬁlm%‘é“/é‘ﬁﬁllﬁ'tsfﬂi’ﬁﬁ"%%%i 565

EFEEEE‘JJJ:% ERWEA

*@%{F?L#ﬁﬁﬁﬂﬂ :g—j:ﬁﬁﬁ
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Report of the Directors EE&M}E

Auditors | M
_ The financial statements have been audited by Ernst & Young.. A
 resolytion for the re-appointment of Emst'& Young as auditors of

the Company will be proposed at the forthcoming. annual general

meeting.

By order of the Board of Directors s
Sun Yiping
Chief Executive Officer

Hong .Kc.mg, 26 March 2013

" China Mengniu Dalry Co}npan); Umited Annual Rebort 2012
Ref #132114 '
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Bgard of D‘Erectors
Executive Directors
" Ms..SUN Yiping
. (Chief Executive Officer)
- Mr. YANG Wenjun - '
Mr. BAl Ying
Mr. WU Jingshui
. Mr. DING Sheng

(resigned on'30 July 2012)

Non-Executive. Directors
Mr. NING Gaoning' (Chairman)
Mr. YU Xubo (Vice-Chairman)
. Mr. NIU Gensheng
Mr. MA Jianping. - .
Mr. FANG Fenglei
Mr, MA Wangjun
Mr. Tim @rting JORGENSEN
Mr. Finn S. HANSEN -
Ms. LIU Ding (V/ce Cha/rwoman)

!ndependent Non-Executive Dlrecors
Mr. JIAO Shuge (alias JIAO Zhen) : ;
(Vice-Chariman) ’

Mr. Julian Juul WOLHARDT g,

Mr. LIU Fuchun
Mr. ZHANG Xiaoyag
Mr. XIE Tao

Mr. Andrew'Y. Y4$= RS '. (appointed on 10January 2013)

Stock Code
Hong Kong Stock Exchange 2319
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Corporate Information A FE#

investor Relations Contact

Ms. Bessie Wu _
29th Floor, Block A, IFC
* No. 8A Jianguiomenwai Avenue
Chaoyang District -
Beijing, China
Emait: info@mengniuir.com
. Website: www.mengniuir.com

Place of Business in Hong Kong
Suite 1602, 16th Floor, Top Glory Tower

262 Gloucester Road, Causeway Bay

Hong Kong :

Registered Office

Maples Corporate Services Limited
P.0. Box 309

Ugland House

Grand Cayman KY1-1104
Cayman Islands

. Prin¢ipal Share Registrar
Royal Bank of Canada Trust Company (Cayman) lelted
4th Floor, Royal Bank House 2

. 24 Shedden Road, George Town
_ Grand Cayman KY1-1110

Cayman islands

‘Hong Kong Branch Shane ﬁ'e 5

46th Floor, Hopewell Center -y,
" 183 Queen’s Road East, Wanclgal o,

Hong Kong

Legal Advisors
As to Hong Kong Law

Bank of Chiga ¥~ - .
Industrial C%ercial Bank of China
BNP Paribas

Auditors

Ernst & Young

!nvestor Relations Consulfan‘t
Strategic Financial Relations (Chlna) Limited

China Mengniu Dairy Company Limited Annual Report 2012
Ref #1 32114 :
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lndependent Audltors Report," e | -
*“—i:_Lf TR y N

Ernst & Young D RREBHBEBH
RNST& YOUNG - - 1
CITIC Tower ’ BIEAE2248 -
]< 1.7im Mel/ Avenua
7 Cenlral Hong Kong : (BHE: 46522846 9888
. . . {574 1852 286 32
Tel; +852 2846 9888 Y. comy, NP
‘Fax: +852 2868 4432 - My
www.ey.com

To the shareholders of China Mengniu Dairy Company Limited 3-‘& FF'I%*?L" ‘

(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited hablhty)
B ARERAA(TRA
BI &% E ) TR 83E243
e BRER-F-_FTZA .
& &ﬁ‘]ﬂﬁﬁﬂk/ﬂlﬁ %ﬁﬁﬁﬁﬂ: :
1B -« GO 2EKSE - AR
BARSRER PR EARE AR

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of China e
Mengniu Dairy Company Limited (the “Company”) and its (_%FU):»
subsidiaries (together the "Group”) set out on pages 83 to 243, =N
which comprlse the consolidated and company statements o 1)
flnanCIaI posrtron as at 31 December 2012, and the conso] ateds

Drrectors Responsrbllny for they@g tsol ik ted E%LTEP EHBRRNEE
F mancral Statements

The dlrectors of the Company are respon

consolrdated flnancral statements. that:yj

accordance with lnternatlonal %ka
by the International Accountlng ie

E’D\"FTJE% Lﬁall%@?r%ﬂ'l?%ﬁﬁﬁ‘ﬁﬁll
BB T BAIARBE SR TDEANRERE - &
rtings Eéﬁ&“f’ﬁﬂiﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁftﬁﬂkﬂﬁﬁi PREE ¥
'?r the di ?”?w" PRSI S KR Zﬁﬁai(TEﬁ%EEH
'gies Ordinance, and for .%\ﬁ‘ﬁfﬁ%%lﬁ_)ﬁ’ﬁ*’A@hﬁaﬁﬁﬁﬁ BUHENA

such internal contrgka S e [re ‘etermme is necessary to jﬂﬁbf" o
enable the preparatlon oo ated. financial statements that are
state ether due to fraud or error.

free ‘from material ﬁr"l‘
Qg,ln.y ‘ - BEAHNEE
fiszﬁE'Jﬁaﬂ#ﬁ&ffiﬂﬁ%fimﬁﬁﬁﬁé,ﬁzfﬁiﬁ-ﬁ
BHRER  AREEADHBRFIRL - WA
Eftﬁﬂfliﬁ ﬁffifﬁfTﬁ?ﬁ:ZIﬁE”:Wa”‘HﬂEﬂ fﬂ_’-
Aiﬁrf#‘kf%%fiﬁa fEo -

ess an opmron on these ‘consolidated"

ﬁﬁa%aa ST AR A BB R BRI

ﬁ%?lﬁ o RERAIBRRMBFEERE
EEIFRT %VI#MAEﬁE&%ﬁA%ﬁﬁ
Eatraikamﬁto .

Accountants Those standards require that we comply with ethlcal'
requrrements and plan and perform the audrt 1o obtarn reasonable .
© assurancé about whether the consohdated f|nanC|al statements are -

free from materlal mlsstatement

. FPE%#—?L*EP&"T _s,.z %ﬁ,' .

- Ref #132174 °
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Independent Auditor_s_"Rept_)rt, BB

An audit involves performing proced'ur_es' to obtain audit evidence %&%ﬁ@%iﬁfﬂ%ﬁb{ﬂx{%;ﬁ,ﬁé,
_ about the amounts and disclosures in-the consolidated financial - ﬂ%g&ﬂ@%ﬁﬁ%ﬂﬁb%ﬁ%ﬁ% o 18
.. statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditors’ ER TR N - B IE T e

" judgement, including the assessment of the risks of material ~BEABRERE(TH mﬁ,&a’ﬁ,ﬁ 2z
misstatement of the consolidated financial statements, whether due  FE{EH 3% SRR AFIERE - ;
to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditors SH{EHEE A5 RELAIS
consider internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation of e + LA ATRE R
consolidated financial statements that give a true ‘and fair.view ;lFEEE’ﬁA—]W:‘Bmg
in o'rc_ier to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the T{J,IJT"EHE‘“WEFE
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion  {E&EHE S
on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. An audit also 2517 ‘tﬂs I
includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies = ’
used and the reasonableness of. accounting estimates made by
the directors, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the
consohdated financial statements.

We believe- that the audit evndence we have obtalned is suf. .‘% _
and appropriate. to provide a basis for our audit opinion. "% ﬁﬂﬁl]ﬁi‘é-j‘ o : A ’ .

" Opinion :
In our opinion, the consohdated financial statementsggive

and fair view of the staté of affairs of the Coipp
Group as at 31 December 2012 and of the Gréﬁ PREO

. HMRA  RANBRRYSERMIERELER
" AREBEAANMER BRFAR BERER-T
—ZHEF+ZAST—AMNUBRRAE BERE
BEZALFENABIRSRERN - XBIR
ﬁ?%’&lﬁﬁ’]&mé%ﬁ%ﬁﬁ”ﬁ de

" Ernst & Young _ . ?‘cié’a‘l‘ﬁ_ﬁ?;ﬁﬁﬁ
Certified Public Acgoun M AT
BB

—2_—$ A= ‘l‘/\El

China Mengnlu Dairy Company Limited Annual Report 2012
Ref #132114 '
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Consollda‘ted Income Statement
nv‘J‘\A%U/Fﬁ%

For the year ended 31 December 2012 E’i —_?"“ FE+=A=+—RiLFE

37,387,844

REVENUE | WA | S .
Cost of sales - WERA (27,795,692)
' GROSS PROFIT - =3 TR 89,054,567 - 9,592,152
_Other income and gains . Hap WA Rz 257,054 296,265
Selling and distribution expenses . HERKHEA (©, 425 842) (6,694,705) -
Administrative expenses . - 1TEREH (1; 195 416) (1,110,089)
Other expenses : (_1_ 96, 046) (187,162)
PROFIT FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES ~ .,1,5_1_9\.'4,7?{1.,.7 .. 1,896,461
interést income . 3,616 173,052
Finance.costs ' o (60,942)
Share of profits and losses of associates . " 52,059 °
PROFIT BEFORE TAX 6 . 1 635 034 2,060,630
Income tax expense 9 " (245 476) (276,081)
PROFIT FOR THE YEAR . 1'.4_.3.‘9'.55'8_ 1,784,549 -
Attnbutable to L 3\»_« o LAT%?‘J‘EH : SR ,
Owners of the CorRrg ﬁ?‘ AQXTEEA 1,257,148 1,589,274
Non- controlllngﬂ&eres%“ FERARAR s - 18410 - 195275
1,439,558, 1,784,549
RE ATTRIBUTABLE - A2 TXEERIESA
BEQUITY HOLDERS OF * 'FE{S IR
HTERG (EXPRESSED IN RMB (g ARY T
EREE - ' ' 11 e _
6 —HK 0711 - 0.908
i} — 5% 942.11_, 0.905
‘-‘*". ) o i R . ] B
Detalls of the diwdends payable and proposed for the year are zlxﬁﬁﬁ};zgf%,ﬁﬁﬁx,h\m;q‘ékm jiﬁiﬁiﬁ?[&{ﬁi e
disclosed in note 10 to the financial statements. - 10&@ 6 ’

RBRGARBRAT —e— s

. Rof #132114
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-Schedule 3

Consolldated S'taiement of Comprehenswe Income
.anl:I i[ﬁ]u& ‘

PROFITFORTHEYEAR .  ZX4FHE 1,784,549
OTHER CbMPREHENSIVE INCOME - Hit 2 mEiks
Avallable—for-sale mvestments o . AMEHERE
Changes in fairvalue . . DiEEE (108,536)
Income tax effect ErefimEe 17,035
51,283 - (91,501)
Exchange differences on translation of . 7
foreign operations 474 (196,303)
THE YEAR NET OF TAX 51,757 (287,804)
TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE B -

INCOME FOR THE YEAR 1,491,315 1,496,745
_Attributable to: ; . .
Owners of the Company:; M 1,306,848 1,304,899
Non-controliing interests «i, ' 184,467 191,846

1,491,315 1,496,745

China Mengnlu Dairy Company Limited Annual Report 2012
Ref #132114
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Consolidated S‘tatemen‘t of Fmanoal Posrtlon N
.n\Zr = /\Zfi%'f,ﬁ;RT N

Asat 31 December 2012 35_3—;@’1‘_)3 :+ A

NON-CURRENT ASSETS _
6,806,539

Property, plant and equipment mE - BENRE
Construction in progress - - EBTE 887,103
_"Land use rights o iR 585,007
‘Long term prepayments . REIFERR 243,942
Goodwill - . _ EE 482,436
~ Other intangible assets . HibhimVEE 224,887
Inyestments in associates - MBS RTRIRIRE 153,352
Available-for-sale investments T AfHERE ' 509 788 295,206
Deferred tax assets : RIEFRS fEé‘E‘i‘S?;, 72,093 - 66,749 -
- Other financial assets ' ﬂiﬁ,ﬁ:“ﬂéé - 53 521 ' 69,961
- Biological assets ; -"_211 686 -
1'1,_2',2'-9,.533. E 9,815,182
CURRENT ASSETS S v
Available-for-sale investments 240 000' : -
* Inventories " 1,419, 898- 1,685,247
Bills receivable . 176 386 261,024
Trade receivables h o . 625,087 574,734
Prepayments and deposits R iRE 29 - 949,956 774,907
Other receivables {mgl&wﬁ . 30 . 359, 877' c. 289,427
Investment deposits Nl 1”;{ BITER 31 160,000 - 102,800
Pledged deposits N !“’fv, RESTER 32 51,602° 175,289
W BERRITEG C 32 5, 778, 390 6,523,075
9,7,61-,19_5 10,386,503
: FEBRIR 33 - 2,381,955 . 2,543,405
b BRER 34 o 42989100 . 1,141,141
ot SR 40 18,056 . 18,912
A Hib g .35 1,581,781
e &l RRBEAREFT® ‘36 1,180,720
* 4 EFRRITER 37 537,544
tgploans HEX 38 119,094
lnce ax payable R PR B : ' 103,228
7,225,825
NET CURRENT ASSETS FRBEE 3,160,678
TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT BEERRDESR
- 12,975,860

" LIABILITIES

S : o c o REREAKERAR —RSEER
ROEHS2114 . . - . e R e T



86

Consolidated Statement of Fmanaal Position ﬁ‘AFﬁt%ﬁt,Ri'%

Schedule 3

NON-CURRENT LIABJLITIES FREEE
Long term payables - . REHIERAHRE . 188,739
Deferred income _ U IA 6 234,940
Deferred tax liabilities BEMEHAR 22,830
Other financial liabilites =~ - Huemas 480,531
927,040
NET ASSETS E BaEE 13,071,849, 12,048,820
EQUITY
. Equity attributable to owners
of the Company .
Issued capital 181,151 181,087 .
Retained earnings : 3,745,840 3,074,337
Other reserves 43(A) 8,516,301 8,215,634
" 12,443,292 11,471,058
Non-controlling interests 628,557 577,762
TOTAL EQUITY 13,071,849 12,048,820
.Sun Yiping
B
Dlrector Director
EBEF EF

_China Mengnlu Dalry Company L|m|ted Annual Report 2012
" Ref #132114"



Consohdated Sta‘tement of C hanges in Eqwty

Ty B L

For the year ended 31 December 2012 8} "$—;$+—_—F]E+~ BiLFEE

Schedule®

9,758,064

Ca50A5 10,217,509

Af 1 January 2011 - RZF—F-f-B
Profitfor the year CREFIH 1,589,274
Other-comprehensive income . FFRM2EME: -
for the year: '
Changes in fair value of available- - W ERARAE ¥ : _
for-sale investments, netof tax %80 » MRTE " (88,072) - . (88,072)
Exchange difference on translation JQ%}@&}\%’%#\J& S Co
-~ (196,303) - (196_,30,3)

195275 1,784,549

(3',429) (91,501)

{196,303)

of foreign operations N

Total comprehensive income FE2ERE
for the year . .

(284375). " 1589274 1,304,899

191,846 1,496,745

520,616

Share5|ssued underequﬂysettled ﬁlﬁu 3 %\Y : T .
5 BEEGRSORGS 4 2408 518208 -~ . 520616 -
anangemenls -y P BIRER 45 - 135M - B4 R VEE
Transfer to statutory reserves S - 285,920 (285,920 - - -
Hnal2010d|v1denddec[ae%i =5 3 _ . ' .
S ‘k%ﬁﬂﬂﬁ% SR i - - @33 (27923) S (1933
B [HERIRE : . - :
RHIRE _ - - - - LA (51,047)
RE—RFAR 1 S e e - ags 2163
RILERAE - :
ERRREE . 4 - 6829 - (6829). . @4117)  (50,946)
A3 @i ber 2011 Rog——f . ,
L +=A=+-R 181,087 8215634 3074337 11471058 570,762 12,048,810

CRRREARERAT SR-TEEA

. Ref #132114
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity ﬂ?é’«%‘ﬁ%?]]ﬁ

~ Schedule 3

R

571,762

12,048,820

At 1 January 2012 - RoE-E5-f-R
Profit for the year AR 1257148 182410 1439558
_ Other comprehensive income EERBRTINE S
{ortheyear;
_ Changes in fair value of available-  TtHiERARS Lfﬁ
forsale investments, net of tax %8} + MIRHA - 49,226 12,057 51,283
Exchange difference on translation  AEBIERE - : :
of foreign operations EX - 474 - 474
Total comprehensive income #F%ﬁi&ﬁﬁééﬁ : . L
for the year : - 49700 - 125748 1306808 184467 1491315
Shares issted under equity- settled ﬁiél,(ﬂﬁ{ﬁii . ’ _
share option arrangements 64 - 12,063 - 12,127 - 12,127
Equity-settled share option :
arrangements - ol w9 - 19172 - 19,172
* Transfer to statutory reserves - 235636 . (235.636) - - -
Final 2011 dividend declared . ‘ _
’ - - _(35.0,(}09) : _(350,009) - (350 009) :
- - - ~ - (19.363) (79 363)'
S ede . < LR ) (07
S0y =0 (s (59 (59500)
At3t DecemB'IZ ' ﬁ@:?-.:ﬁ . ) g L ’ .
+=A=t+-H 181151 8516301, :.37,45,340 1,;443_,-'292 <. 628,557 . 13,071,849

China Mengnlu Dauy Company Limited Annual Report 2012
Ref #1321 14 ’



Schedule 3

Consolldated Statement of Cash Flovvs
.-zr = IE%/JILEE% ’

For the year ended 31 December 2012 8E-F

—$+:HE+~E¢¢E

' Cash flows from operating actlvmes EBEENASRE .
. Profit before tax . ﬁ“ﬁl]fsﬂ 2,060,630
Adjustments for: ' . BRI E A )
[nterest income . ' FIBMA : (173,052) -
Finance costs .- : BB - 60,942 .
Depreciation of items of property, Y  BERRENE . _

plant and equipment - L 839,264

Amortisation of land use rights - hb o AR 14 863 12,538
. Amortisation of other intangible assets 'ﬁﬁﬁﬂtﬁfﬁﬁﬁ%"" ; 8 1,56 © 11,735
Loss on disposal of items of property, B ) '

-plant and equipment ' 6, 035 ' 8,502
Loss on disposal of biological assets . 428 .- =
Share-based payment expenise N 19 172 ' 173,541
Provision for trade.receivables and :

other receivables 31 198 12,973
Share of profits and Iosses of

associates : (13 855) ‘ (52,059)
Wiite-down of inventories to net ' T

realisable value ' 2 637 . 1,522
Government grants (103 493) "(55,771)
.Amortisation of deferred income (i9, 056) (17,257)
Foreign exchange differences, net 3 : 289 - (143,693)
Gain on deemed disposal of '

an associate - i, ! . (4 384) (21,566)
Gain on disposal of associatet ,':I.J.EH%“’R S (50 635) =
Unrealised fair valueglossesfon;de RERITESRT A . ) , _

financial lnstrunlep BN - AREER . ST 6,731 .

.;4 v‘n ‘i’ b2 . o e . ; , .
‘~%>~ L {Q’ o - . 2,393,380 2,724,980
Decrease/(mcrease iy, ek . Ef&ﬁﬁﬂﬁé‘)ﬁ?&‘/ : N
_ other fmancné% Sty larcts (3m) : . 20 974 - (26,230)
'Decrease/(m@g ;r .t%rles TFEHL /(3 m) . I 252 085 (512,744) -
Increase iiradéEigd receivables IR R R B A (11 728) {272,752)
Decre e/iares pledged deposits  RBSERIRD (B o (11 27,.) - 57,175
Ripirbaypents, deposits and R REREAEK : s L
ceiyabid o REsEm (167,288)
: %ﬁ Jilekease) in trade and - R RSN ER :
ailes - L,/ (i) 252,847
e increase) in accruals and HHIRER R EMEA
payables ' R, (3h0) 706,936
. -’9. T
Cash generated from operations REZBELNHRS 2,762,924
" Interest paid S SRFLR ' (46,420)
Income taxes paid . Ezﬁﬁﬁ i (196,447)
Net cash flows from . : BEEREEN
operating activities ’ REERE 2,520,057

L hEREARERAR SR-oAEER

 Ref#isatid -



Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows SR&RERER

——F+-A=t—ALFE

AT

For the year ended 31 December 2012 Eﬁﬁ_ =

Cash flows from investing activities . REFZHELENRESHE

Proceeds frgm disposal of items of ﬁﬁ*%% BB REE

" property, plant and equipment Frisak

Proceeds from disposal of EEE%&EFM%%’(E
biological asset Cos

Purchase of items of property, BEDE  BERRE

Schedule 2

. (586,726)

plant and.equipment ) . .
. Purchase of biological assets BELMEE -
Purchase of construction in progress C ERETIEEM ' B3, & , 189 ,527) (1,705,881)
Purchase of other intangible assets HibdmA g ERmM ; 9 . (3,750) (6,796)
Purchase- of land use rights 3 {55 A HEHE hn (195,146) (94,110)
Purchase of available-for-sale investments & E ATt HEIRES (370,258) (106,491)
Disposal of available-for-sale investments  H&RI{EHE 400 3,870
Acquisition of subsidiaries leﬂ %’A 7 (5,200) 3,268
Capital injection to associates. 1,871) (738)
Capital injection to'a Jomtly-controlled '
entity ) - *(20,000)
Receipt of government grants &5 - 20,630
Withdrawal/purchase) of time deposits . - I
with original maturity of more than . e i .
three months : ' (671,297) 759,355
* Interest received 175,552 167,721
Dividends received from associates A% 22,398 11,163
Dividends feceived from an el {# HIRE KA '
avajlable-for-sale investmenfy, 43 & . 153 144
Disposal of associates <t~ * 2 Al : .101,810 -
Advances to a Jomtly-cant olle Feptit i, Tﬁﬁ % LEEHIE
T ORE ' (135,000) -
Purchase of lnvestment dep ’ R B IFETIE S _ (2,800,960) (102,800)
Withdrawal of investmdg ﬁ-d'%osl%ﬁg}g WEREER 2, 743 760 -
" Acquisition of non- c@f}’g @&mests . MBI RPR R MRS : (10 713) -
RETBHFAERERE R
(3,239,182) (1,645,020)

. China Mengniu Dql}y Cqmbany Limited Annual Report 2012
Ref #132114



Consolidated Staternent of Cash Flows iRABREHER

' Schedule' 2

‘Cash flows from financing activities
Proceeds from interest- bearmg

BEEREENESHE

. RHRSRITERASRE

~404,186

bank loans .
Repayment of interest-bearing EIREHARITER :
bank loans , ' (723,682)
Repayment of other loans HEAMER _ " (2,646) -
Decrease/(lnicrease) in pledged deposits iﬁﬁﬁ RNREBESER " -
for bank loans AL/ (B oy, 134 965, (130,065)
Dividends paid to owners of the Company iﬁZKA —J)‘fﬁﬁ/\E’Jﬂx; (350 009) (279,233)
- Dividends paid to non-controlling 3 .
shareholders » '(71 397) - (51,970)
Proceeds froin other loans 18, 500 42,493
Repayment of long-term payables (53 712) . (37,886)
Capital contribution by a joint venture, R o
partner = . 20,000
Shares issued under equity-settled share o _
option arrangements C-12,127 520,616
Net cash flows from ) . ‘ )
financing activities ) (181,_496)' (238,187)
Net lncrease/(decrease) in casﬁg&d N - L i
cash equwalents Br N (1,413,782) 636,850
Cash and cash equ% len:v Y FUNRERESSEY o _
beginning of year ™, & s ' o - 32 . 4,359,872 3,775,255
Effect of foreign ?cbang@ ; ges, Eﬁiﬁﬁ?ﬂﬁ]ﬁég()%ﬁ) S ' :
net . - (2;200) " (52,233)
FRNBRERHASZEY @ . e ' ‘
: 32 .. 2,943,890, 4,359,872
HEeRREEEY
BEERDHT -
! : E’é&%AEﬁ%Hkﬂi%qﬂﬂ S
. tegted statement of finandial position MR & RIRITHERE 32 . 5,778,390 - 6,523,075
T Sosits with original maturity more JREIEIR A=A L& . e
A three months EHITER ' 32 (2,834,500 © (2,163,203)
Cash and cash equivalents as stated RIFARSRERDIIR
in the consolidated statement of WIRERIREEEY R . '
cash flows 32 .. 2,943,890 4,359,872

" Ref#132114
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Schedule 3

9z

Statement of Fmancnal POSItlon .

As at 31 December 2012 F‘_E—_¢+—ﬁ =t El

NON-CURRENT ASSETS - EABEE S _
Property, plant and equipment : ME - B KRR 12 28
Available-for-sale investments ' AEHERE 22 69,008
Loans to a subsidiary FEY —RFATIRIE 2,656,684
fnvestments in subsidiaries RFATINIRE 5,043,682
7,769,402
. CURRENT ASSETS . RERE : 3
Other receivables ‘ Eﬁﬁ[@l&%’tlﬁ : 802,202 647,991
Cash and bank balances BERIRITE 751,922 622,766 .
1,554,124 1,270,757 -
CURRENT LIABILITIES . ,
Other payables 1,629 - o 1,133
 Interest-bearing bank loans 37 405,425 : -
49,7__,054 ) 1,133
. 1,147,070 1,269,624
9,002,421 9,039,026
EQUITY R S T '
Issued CQBItaI % 42 . 7 181,151 -181,087
Reserves % 43(8) . - 8,821,270 © 8,857,939
pE 9,002,421 9,039,026

Sun Yiping

Ning Gaoning
-t ;b
. Director Director -
BF EE

. China Mengnlu Dairy Company Limited Annual Report 2012
Ref #132114



Schedule 3

Not‘éé to Fihan_’c'ial' Statements
PIBMRME

1. - Corporate Information L 1. ARER
The’ Company was lncorporated ds an exempted company A ARAENSESE YAVA:
wnth Ilmlted liability in thé Cayman Islands. The Company is an ' T SRR 2
|nvestment holdmg company and its subsrdlanes are engaged
in the manufacture and dlstnbutlon of dairy products mainly in
the People s Republic of €hina (the "PRC")

2.1 Basis of Preparatron : : 2.1 B
These financial statements have been prepared in accordance 1k

with International Financial Reportlng Standards (“IFRSs") .
issued by the International Accounting Standards Board . F%Ejﬁiﬁ%e%,ﬁ‘ljj)&%f,%j,\

"("IASB") and the discldsure requirements of the Hong Koy 3 RE MY ﬁ'ﬁﬁ}Z o IS MERNES
Companies Ordinanc‘e They have been prepared ona historica R ; %t , ﬁﬂﬁﬂyjfg :F—J'{,ﬂﬂj %HxZIS

nmlw sittpza

Js°@ﬁﬁ§MAE%UAE¥D£%
A i
Firo -

w\l:lEL%
BANBHEEAANRETARSE
TAREDRE—T——F+-A=+—B
HEFRAERE - FUTARNERRNY
SHYMRARTVAR - R ESETER—
B o F ALK B (A REREE

the Company,

Ao v
usmg “Consistent: accountln ejgse [He;result of subsidiaries HHEE B)RGAAR - AERMETETE
are consolidated f&n theada |S|tlon being the date BB FﬁﬁE@W’R R - 5 -

on Wthh ‘the q;qug}o i » ,rol and continue to be !ZIEIWA ﬂﬁa‘ij&%éiﬁ'ﬂ%“fﬁﬂkm&éﬁ

?ﬂ&ﬂﬁm\i’] Eﬁ‘%‘%’-\)\ﬁﬁﬁéyiﬂ B o

SERRRRES E T ARG REK G
BRI R AR A R B -

T BEB LR ERE) R
XA - -

TP R . AEREARERAT SE—oFEE
_Ref #132114 ' TR S



Notes to Financial Statements B #53R3= & o

2.1 Basis of Preparation gontnues
Basis of consolidation (continusu)

If the Group loses control over a subsidiary, it derecognises (i)
the assets (including goodwill) and liabilities of the subsidiary,
(if) the carrying amount of any non-controlling interest and (iii)
the cumulative translation differences recorded in equity; and '
_ recognises (i} the fair value of the consideration received, (i)
the fair value of any investment retained and (jii) any resulting
surplus or deficit in the consolidated income statement. The
Group's share of components previously recognised in other
comprehensive income is reclassified to profit or loss or -

refaiped earnings, as _appropriate. ~

2.2 Impact of Revised IFRSs

The Group has adopted the following revised IFRSs for the ﬁrst .

time for the current year’s financial statements.

IFRS: 1 Amendments Am'en.dmen.ts to IFRS 1 First-tif]
' Adoption of International Fi
Reporting Standards — Severe

©  Hyperinflation and %emov, 0

Dates for First-tinie

IFRS 7 Amendments Amendments to IFRS 7

Instruments: Dis¢ ‘
F/nanCIal’ss- SN

?

_ China Mengnlu Dairy Company Limited Annual Report 2012
'Ref #1 32114 -

neome Taxes —
of Underlying

ZHIE%E & (%)

Schedule 3

mOEEGm

AR E L EEHFATH
ROZFARAMNEE %

(SRR AR e

éeaee»

BB B 53R RS ?ﬁ

BRABVRE  [EXRRERT B
BT . ‘55/—/57"55‘15&5& ‘
 BIRENARRESELE
HH 8ERT '

EREEEARE BN RS

SETHRAIERT [£BTA : BE—E
BEEE BT
EE R - EEMRETTERISE125R
F125RMERT [Hif3pd —BREPR
' ' W@ﬁﬁiﬁ’é]ﬁﬂfé‘ﬂ -

PRA#N ﬂ%?@%?ﬂ%iﬁt‘:—%mﬁﬁ%%ﬁa‘
a%i&ié:ll:,“:xﬁﬁ% '



Notes to Financial Statements AFERR MR

2.3 Issued But Not Yet Effecuve IFRSs

The Group has not applied the followmg new and revised -

lFRSs that have been issued but are not yet effectlve in these
“financial statements. .

IFRS 1 Amendments Arnendrrients to IFRS 1 First-time
Adoption of International Financial -

Reporting Standards — Government
Loans?

IFRS 7 Amendments Ameridments to IFRS 7 Financial
Instruments: Disclosures — Offsetting

F/nancra_/ Assets and Financial
Liabilities?

IFRS 9 Financial Instruments*

IFRS 10 Consolidated Financial Statement§Z
" IFRS.11 )ointArrangements?
- IFRS 12 Disc/osure of Interests j

IFRS 10, IFRS 11
and IFRS 12 -
Amendments

IAS 27 (Revised)
Amendments

IFRS 13

~ endments to IAS 1 Presentat/on of

& F/nancral Statements Presentat/on
of Item’s of Other Comprehensrve
-Income?

IAS 1 Amend '.
. i Vf:j;)' 3 65

Separate F/nancral _'>'tatementsZ

In vestments in Associates and Jomt
Ven tures2

"'TﬁS 32 Amendments Amendients to IAS 32
F/nancra/ Instruments: Presentation

= Offsetting Finaricial Assets and
" Financial Liabilities?

IFRIC 20

" ofa Surface Mine?
Annual Ameridments to a number of IFRSs issued
Improvements -in May 2012z

2009-2011 Cycle

Ref #132114 -

'Z.B'E%éﬁjﬁ'ﬁﬁfﬁiﬁ&

. Str/pp/ng Costs in the Product/on Phase ]

Schedble 3

s s
—RTEH DA

WA TR RIS 7 5]
(2B TA : HE—HH

PREERSHAR]
Bi5ET? -
_@Eﬂl’ﬁ4 .
BAUBERR.
%ﬂxﬁeﬁiﬁﬁu HEIZHR ;
CEBNR _ ) :
gmfﬁ%&‘éﬂu REME RERIE R Ry
12nru . : o ’
ERASREEA Erp g ER
F10% - Bk E105% - EREEEE
B iR ER) EEU%1 195 R
S1ERER B R 2R
BHEMSER | E12RNET -
HEREBE - AERESS
BRI RS ER BRI BREERE 0
©OE10% - BB % - BEPRRI IR EER
B ER 1250 REREHER
S125R R B F27R (ISR BOIBET
BiERIF27R  —RETHE
(A4B3T) BT
BB R EER] A4 EHH A
135
il S tal SRR SR
F RIS iﬁﬁﬁﬁf_ﬁ/ HE2E
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Notes to Financial Statements FAFS3RRMIEE

2.3 Issued But Not Yet Effective.IFRSs (continied)

1 7 Effective for annual periods béginning'on or after 1 July 2012
- 2 Effective for aﬁnual petiods beginning on or after 1 January 2013

3 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2014

4 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2015

The Group is in the process of determihing whether these

"new and revised standards and interpretations will have Ny

. material impact on the Group's results of operatlons and
financial position. .

2.4 Summary of Significant Accounting

SubSIdlarles

fin they@gmpany's
e, %i received and

‘not classn‘ned as held- for’ le-l&aeo Tt Rwith IFRS 5 are
stated at cost less any lmpal jeNigloSsessyy .

A jointly-controlled;er
Jomt control _- {

oY% _tﬁe p"ro;')'ortionate consolidation method,
~tecognising its share of the jointly-controlled

betwéen the Group and its jointly-controlled entities.are
ellmmated to the éxtent of the Group's investments in the

jointly-controlled- entities, except where unrealised losses,

prowde evidence of an impairment of the asset transferred.

Adjustments are -made to bring into line any dissimilar

accpuntmg policies that may exist.

China Mengniu Daify Gompany Limited ~ Annual Regort 2}512
-Ref #132114.

Iiabilit_ies, income and expenses with s_imilar-

basis. Unreahsed gains and Iosses resulting from transactions

Pt

ﬁﬁﬁﬁ“ﬁ‘]ﬁf‘"’ﬁﬁfﬁ

-féﬁﬁﬁﬁ&ﬂﬁﬁ*wﬁ
R A S B B R R AR

g/
=7

7( —’riEk%ffEEE
" 208

TARHEARR Tﬁiﬁ‘kf‘iiﬁf*%ﬂ,ﬁﬁ?fﬁ&’“‘

ERENAT B H R ER -

FRBVHFEET AR BB FIEERS - 2R
BRI B R - RARRFARIMNIR
B(ATHRBERMBREEMNERORS
FEE %)MﬁkZ!KF Aﬁ%fiﬁﬁfﬁ#@%ﬂﬁﬁo

J%lﬁli”‘ifﬁﬂ%ﬁ%' :
AAEHEBEZHAZHNGERE - &
fﬁ/,\%fiﬁ* LRI B R ARG E R

: 7‘3‘@"“%’1&‘%

FEERHK I'JE%UEEHH’J&ELMWJ&? %
AR BRSPS REBEEEREOGARENE
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Notes to Financjal Statements A TERFRMIEF

»

2.4 Summary of Significant Acco_uh_’cing Policies

(ccntlnued)
Jomtly-controlled entities (ontinued)

.The results of Jomtly-controlled entities are included in the
Company's income statement to the extent of leldends
received and receivablé. The Company’s investments in jointly-
contralled entities are treated as non-current assets and are

" stated at cost less any impairment losses. -

Associates -

A associate is an entity, not beirig a subsidiary ora jointly-
controlled entity, in which the-Group has a long term mteregc' e
of generally not less than 20% of the equity voting rights and

over which |t Is in a position to exerdise significant lnﬂuenc;%

less any lmpa|rment losses Adjustments ardf) %
into line any dissimilar accounting pohcles hat NQVaREXISE.
Gioup’s share of the post-acquisitig restl Eg‘g pd res e

associates is included in' the consgic -_=(’r ac}: gystatement
{Threlised¥gains and

Athe Group and
extentof the ‘Group's
X '.ere unrealised losses

losses resulting from transactioggy

its associates are eliminds~

- Ref#132114
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Notes to Financial Statements BiF53R=HIEE -

S s recognlsed at fal

2 4 Summary of Slgnlﬁcan‘t Accountmg Policies 2.457(%‘%*&%&%(@);

(continued) - .
Business combinations and gOOdWI"
Business combinations are accounted for tising the acquisition
" method. The consideration transferred is measured at the
acquisition date fair value which_is the sum of the acquisition
date fair values of assets transferred by the Group, liabilities
assumed by the Group to the-former owners of the acquiree
and the equity interests issued by the Group in exchange for
. control of thé acquiree. For each businiess combination, the
~ Group elects whether to measure the non-controlling interests
in.the acquiree that are present ownership interests and entitle

their holders to a proportional share of net assets inthe event .
of liguidation: at fair value or at the proportionate share of the ay, 4

. acquiree’s identifiable net assets. All other components of non-
controlling interests are measured at fair value. Acquisitjph
related costs are expensed as incurred. -

previously held eqwty |nte est IS_‘E Y
_ date fair' value and any,;g%]} 103 q4l]

the consolidated i mco' e sta %';‘:
‘ % '-?“‘-
~Any contingent, COﬂSld » ,p to be~ ransferred by the acqunrer

dme statement ‘o_r as a change to other

& of 1AS39, it is measured in accofdance with’

accounted for WIthln equity.

China Mengniu Dalry Company leited Annual Report 2012 .
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‘Notes to. Finandial Statements BAREERRMIEE -

2.4 Summary of Si'gnificant Accounting Policies
(contmued)
Busmess combmatrons and goodwrll {continyed)

" Goodwill is |n1t|ally measured at cost, being the excess of
the aggregate of the consrderatlon transferred, the amount
recognlsed for non-controlling interests and any fair value of
the Group's. prevnously held equity interests in the acquiree
over the identjfiable net assets acqu1red and Ilabrhtres assumed.
If the sum. of this consideration and other items is lower than
the fair value of the net assets acquired, the difference is,

after reassessment, recognised in the. consohdated income

" statement as a gain on bargain purchase.

. After initial recognition, goodwill is measured at cos, lessg

any .accumulated impairment losses. Goodwill fis teste
impairment annually or more frequently if events c%,cha

in crrcumstances |ndlcate that the carrylng MaVenh

'testmg, goodwrll acqurred ina busmess comb: it
the acqursntlon date, allocated to each of
generatlng units, or groups of cas.qﬁ Iz

irrespective of whether other asse ol %f the Group
are assigned to those unlt%or ’ u of un ’

units) to whrch esgg._‘ .
amount of th *g sh- geq.e '

» w1ll drsposed of in these cirtumstances is measured based
on the relative value of the operatlon disposed of and the
portlon of the cash generatmg unit retalned

Ref #132114
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 Notes to Financial Statements FARFERENIEE

2.4 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
{continued)
Imipairment of non-financial assets
Where an indication of impairment exists, or when annual
impairment testing for an asset is required (other than
inventories, construction contract assets, financial assets,
investment properties, goodwill and non-current assets/
a disposal group classified as held for sale), the asset’s
recoverable amount is estimated. An-asset’s recoverable
amount is the higher of the asset's or cash-generating
unit's value in use and its fair value less costs to sell, and is
"determined for an individual asset, unless the asset.does not
generate cash inflows that are largely independent of those
from other assets.or groups of assets, in which case the<y
recoverable-amount is determined for the cash- generatlng unlt

“to which the asset belongs

1]

‘consolidated income statement in the «M in’ » arises
in those expense categories conslst%nt Ky ‘e fun on of the
impaired asset. 2y :

An assessment is made a ,_ d, gé J},eportlng penod as
€ ‘Cat prevnously recognised
reérable amount is estlmated

jent Ioss of an asset other than

China Mengnit Dairy Company lelted Annual Report 2012
Ref #1 32114, ’
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Notes to Finandial Statements FAT5$RaRH1zE

2.4 Summary of Slgmficant Accountmg Policies

(continued) .
‘Related partjes .
A party is consid.ared to be related to the Group if:

(a) the party isa person ora close member of. that person’s
famlly and that person -

(H has control.orjoint cqntrbl over the Group;

(i) has significant influence over the Group; or *

‘,%K%Eﬁ$%ﬁﬁﬁﬁi§§ﬂ
ABEKA ¢

(iii) is a member of the key management personnel 63
the Group or of a parent of the Group;

or

-@ aﬁaﬁATwEnﬁ#m 58 -

(b) the party is ‘an entity where any o'
conditions applges 7

(i). the entity and the Group are mgif : 0] Qﬁ‘é’.%éﬂﬂi lgl—ﬁ]—%ﬁ'\]ﬁ‘iﬁi
“group; ~ L AR
(ii). one entlty is an assod] nture of the i (i) — A aﬁgkw FRENMEARR
; ' AURE(RE—BENFAT
. subs:dlary of the:o ey -?A _IE‘ZI—]%-?A AlZHET)
(i) the engian a“t’“‘ag i) EEBRASELBR—E=H
N Y :

same tfﬂ g Dl

) —RHEBAZSFRENAERS
# . S -HRARESERY
BHEA

M'zaﬁaaa&hﬂaﬂ watel
R38N SRR S D

£fit of erployees of either the Group or an entity

\ ‘a'jted to the Group; .mﬁﬁ‘ﬁﬁ
| the entity is controlled or jointly coatrqlled by a vi). 3% aﬁaEE(a)IEFﬁ}:tA:l:#"‘f*ﬁU”ﬁ
persoh identifiéd in (a); and . oo #?5‘%'] ®-
' (vfi) a person |dent|f1ed in (a)(l) has significant _ . (vii) ﬁA(a)()IEF)T}IAi“ﬁ%EﬁgﬁEK

PEREZER(ARERNER
: —J)I_EimEAE#]ﬁXE °

mfluence over the entlty oris a member of the key
management personnel of the entity (or of a parent
‘of the entity).

T AREARARAR —@-sEFH
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Notes to Financial Statements B15R % fisE

2 4 Summary of S:gmﬁcant Accountmg Policies

(contmued)

" Property, plant and equipment and depreaatlon

Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost less
accumulated deprediation and any impairment losses. When an
item of property, plant and equipment is classified as held for
sale or when it is part of a disposal group classified as held for
_sale, it is not depreciated and is accounted for in accordance

~ with IFRS 5, as further explained in the accounting policy for

“Non-current assets and disposal groups held for sale”. The
cost of an item of property, plant and equipment comprises its

_purchase price and any directly attributable costs of bringing -

the asset to its working condition and locatlon for its intended
use. :

Depreciation Is calculated g%thep Lraj
the cost of each item wa
res;dual value over lts;,estlma % 56

20 years

-5 to 10 years
5 years

5 years

separately. Residual values; useful lives and the depreciation
method are reviewed, and adjusted if approprlate at least at

. each flnancnal year end.

China Mengniu Dalry Company lelted Annual Report 2012
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Noteé to Financial _Staternénts BAEEREMEE

2.4 Summaiy of Slgmflcant Accounting Policies 24

(contrnued)

Property, plant and equrpment and deprecratron
«onhnued)

An item of property, plant and equipment including any
significant part initially recognised is derecogniséd upon -
disposal or when ne future economic benefits are expected
from its use or disposal. Any gain or loss on disposal or
retirement- recognised in the consolidated income statement

in the year the asset is derecognised is the difference between
the net sales proceeds and the carrying amount of the relevant 3

asset.

Constructlon in progress :
Constiuction in progress represents plants and propert. X

under constructlon Wthh are stated at -7‘_ ;

'»EI*%ZE?EIEEEEE#J%E&%% T3EA
XA EA AR EIE DR - FER TR AT
i‘xs%ﬁ%‘ - RAEBIEER RN E ERER
ZIKL,(&B{ﬁ#EEEﬁ%F)’TEB?ﬁ%ézﬁﬁﬁfﬂﬂ%
ER - "”“EEIEQI BB L5 ARG -
ERTRERSEBAYE YME&&%W
CEEERR - o '

FEHEY 3&?@3%“?‘&)5%#&

fhé‘EJ‘*’Eﬁ)éE&ﬁa%ﬁé’]ﬂEEﬁﬂ%EEﬁl@ :
—IESHE R B A B EER R KD
REHRDEERRBRAISAASAER
& Al REEFEEA)NEEREH
R TR IR SIS (R B BB
FREAOGRNTAHE - WEHEH
ABALHE - FADEAREMMNTAT
| RERAEBHBEAKAHE - MTRA
’ilﬁ*‘ﬂjﬁﬁrﬁ:ﬁﬁﬁ‘égﬁ“l%ﬂjﬁﬁ#fﬂx

o O

through a salesg‘%rﬁsﬁ Yeid
use. For this o bé ‘Q‘
be avallable f%." media:

7 ﬁﬁa‘#ﬁﬁﬁé’]#m’%ﬁﬁéﬁﬁaﬁﬂﬁ?ﬁ

i) rneasured at the lower of their carrymg amounts and CHRRAEERAS Lfﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁkzﬁéﬁ’]ﬁ%%ﬁ?ﬂ{fﬁ
: 4( Values less costs to sell; Property, plant and equipment and CHEen ﬁ%ﬁﬁﬁ%ﬁ’]%% WERSE
"intangible assets classified as held for sale are not’ depreCIated J LA&HHZ?&ET%%%&%@# o

or amortised.

eERinaaRAn —eioErR -
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Notes to Financial Statements BIi53EHIsE

‘2.4 Summary of Significant Accounting Pcllcnes

{continued) .
‘Intangible assets (other than goodwill)
Intangible assets acquired separately are measured on initial

-recognition at cost. The cost of intangible assets acquired -

in a business combination is the fair value at the-date of
. acqu151tlon . :

The useful lives of intangible assets are assessed to be either
finite or indefinite. Intangible assets with finite lives are

amortised ‘over. the useful -economic life and assessed for -

impairment whenever there is an indication that the intangible
asset may be impaired. The amortisation period and the

amortisation- method for an intangible asset with a finite useful

life are reviewed at least at each financial year end.

is reviewed'annually to determine Whether i
assessment continues to be supportable h‘:fo

. forona prospectnve basis.

Patents and licences
Purchased patents and licences 4

; 5at~ cost less any

0,“ P

' Tradeniarks i
_Trademarks acqu' ad¥

Compuer softwares

Acquired computer softwares are cap:tahsed on the basis of .

the _cost_s incurred to acquire and bring to use the specific
software. These costs are amortised on the- straight-line basis
over their estimated useful lives of 3 to 10 years.

China Mengniu Dairy Company Limited  Annual Report 2012
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Notes to Finan cial Statements Eﬁ%ﬁﬁ%l‘ﬁﬁ

2. 4 Summary of Significant Acceuntmg Pchcres

(conﬂnued) i

‘ lntangrble assets (other than goodwrll) (continued)
Research and developmént costs .

~All research costs are charged to the consolidated income

statement as incurred.

ExpendltUre incurred on projects to develop new products is
capitalised and deférred only when the Group can demonstrate
the technlcal feasrblllty of commpleting the intangible asset so

that |t will be avallable for use or sale, its |ntent|on to complete r

- generate future economic beneﬁts the avallablllty of resourceé

t0 complete the prolect and- the ability to measure rellab%th

commercral production.
Leases N

: ownershlp of assets to i e¥ apYotf
accounted for aﬁi\n ' SS%; the rnceptlon of a fmance
lease, 'the: cost of th %%‘MS capitalised at the present

value of the m

' Assets acqu1red through hire purchase contracts ofa ﬁnancmg
nature are accounted for as. finance léasés, but are deprecmted

over their estlmated useful fives.

Ref #132114
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Notes to Financial Statements g RRMIE

2.4 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
{continued) :

Leases (contmued)
Leases where substantiaily all the rewards and risks of

ownershlp of assets remain with the lessor are accounted
for as operating leases. Where the Group is the lessor, assets
leased by the Group under operating leases are. included in
non-current assets, and rentals receivable under the operating

leases are credited to the copsolidated income statement on

. the straight-line basis over the lease terms. Where the Group

is the lessee, rentals payable under operating leasés net of .
- any incentives received from the. lessor are charged to the
consolidated income statement on the straight-line basis over

_the ledse terms.

Prepaid land lease payments under operating, lease are inj
" stated at cost and subsequently recognised as an expgieeg
the consohdated income statement on the straightzlipe™} :
over the lease terms of 50 years. 3

When the lease payments cannot be allocated reh ]
“the land and buildings elements, the enijregle
are included in the cost of the land and b% A

lease i |n property, plant and equipment S
Initial recognition and ngas
0

Financial assets within,, ;%r .’ %3 A
0 gt&

" financial assets at fajy va

recelvables and avar]aE'le.for- saje, [OVestinents, or as denvatlves
i %m n1s in an effective hedge;
A

|—0~

'H&termines the classifications
itidl recognition. When financial
,I they are measured at fair'value

as appropriate.‘T Fe8y
of its financial QR

, o purchase or sefl the asset Regular way purchases,

or sales are purchases or sales of financial assets that require

. delivery of. assets within the penod generally established by .

regulation or convention in the marketplace

China Mengplu Dalry Company lelted Annual Report 2012
Ref #1 3211 4
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Notes to Financial Statements BIF5ERFTMIEE

24Summawof&gmﬁﬁmtAmomﬁmgPdmms
(continued)
“Investments and other fmancral assets (ontinued)
Subsequent measurement
The subsequent measurement of financial assets depends on
 their classification as follows : :

. Fmancral assets at fair value through profit or loss
FlnanCIaI assets at fair vajue through profit or loss include
fmanCIaI assets held for trading and financial assets de5|gnated

_ upon initial recognition at fair value through profit or loss.
Financial assets are classified as held for trading if they are <
achIred for the purpose of sale in the near term Denvatlve‘ '

Mz eeeﬁeﬁﬁeE 458
; mEIﬂmmilﬂﬁ%ﬁﬁﬁﬁ
A e HERRAREIRERIH30%
hedging instruments as deflned by IAS 39. rﬂg;*i#]ﬁ&kéﬂ;‘d:l,ﬂ; ° : :
AR EFEAREIARSENESREE
RAR ESRNMHERAE - EIERA R
KPR AR EHELFESD 25 AR
CARMGS CRIERAENARTEES 27
ARERAE - ZEAABELDHTRIBLE.
SREEMBRG EAREARFL - phER
,U\:‘Z*IJ,%\JHE%T)‘CU&ABE Bl —BRATERY
Eﬁzﬁﬁﬁﬁ '

RERERHEE AN AL E B AL EE)
SRR SRS ER SRR A RER
A B SR S35 T UAEE o

) FlnanCIaI assets at falr value through profit or Q35 g8 ear
in the statement of flnanCIal posrtlon at fair yalue Wit e

e cogmtlon at fair value
. helr lnltlal recognition

through profit or loss are de.
. date and only if the’t%te\' a

'~ “The Group e\)ra[a't%s:* $%@ﬁ¥fﬁﬁﬁf’ﬁﬁ§ﬁ'ﬂﬁﬂf§§ﬁéﬁ%ﬁ?ﬂ

H%W%ﬁ%@ﬁﬁ%oﬁ%iﬁ%?-%
HRMERT R R MRS R R R E BB
HEEREEARL  FEREEZHER
R ARETMRESHSEOMAE -

fut “ir‘ ghlfica i changes the Group may elect to reclassnfy

\ £ i ;‘#.‘ﬁ‘ ’ ;

' the fair value optron at designation, as these lnstruments
cannot be reclasslﬂed after mmal recogmtlon

Ref#132114
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Notes to Financial Statements BITSRRAEE

2.4 Summary of Signiﬁéant Accounting Policies 2.457(%%‘?@1%%%(@
{continued) . B
: ?x Q&Eﬂi’,ﬁmﬂﬁﬁ(*g) A

Investments and other financial assets {continued)
Financial assets at fair value through proflt or Joss (continued)

Derjvatives embedded in host contracts are accounted for fr‘imiliﬂﬁ@)ﬁﬁ o N

as separate derivatives and recorded.at fair value if their
economic characteristics and risks are not closely related to

those.of the host contracts and the host contracts are not held : ’r)?iI,&LM '
for trading. or designated at fair value though profit or loss. ¢ ST T Fh Y _
54 o EE%%’H{?‘]’A%’\J{I R

_These embedded derivatives are measured at fair value with
changes in-fair value recognised in the consolidated income
statement. Reassessment only occurs if there is a change in the
terms of the contract that significantly modlﬂes the cash ﬂows

_ that would otherwise be required.

- - Loans and recelvables

% FA&F”&E’&E%E /Eﬂgﬁ?jﬁiﬁfﬁﬂﬁ-ﬁ-ﬁ

B s AT M SR S DT AL S RS -
BNSHES  BREERRRERER AR
C REBANRE R ERARE DR ERE

RTE o R AR IR E BRSO E I ER
S8 A % B8 S B R SR AR R 8B 3 B0 B SR AR AR
BEE - BRARBHSHIAREFBER
I R B AR o FEE EHEBERA FIE
: G%IS mcluded in REEFEZERE R IR R AIAER

. istement. The . RHEMER -
loss arising from lmpalrmeq& I

té 5&! the consolidated
income statement in i ) cqi q%gg’\ toans and in other

. o b
expensés for recenvab-l% .

using the effectIVe interest raté method*lagses
for lmpalrment Amortised cost ls calcu at Yo

iSi\.
eG
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2.4 Summary of Slgmf:cant Accounting Polrc:es
{continued) B
investments and other fmanaal assets (continued)
Avallable for-sale mvestments
Available-for-sale investments are non- denva’clve flnanClal
assets in listed and unlisted equity investments and debt
securities. Equity investments classified as available for sale
are those which are neither classified as held for trading nor
designated at fair value through profit or loss. Debt, securities
in this category are those which are intended to be held for an

indefinite period of time and which may be sold in response -y
to needs for liquidity or in response to changes in marka__ o

conditions.

‘.\\

" After lnltlal recognltlon avallable—for sale invest ent ara
.subsequently measured at.fair value, with unre'
or losses recognised as other comprehenswe ol
avallable-for-sale mvestment revaluatlon ,-%‘-

to be lmpalred when the cumulatwe@

from the available-for-sale investment;, re) %
_ to the consohdated income sta’[‘? ent ’h;‘! ther expenses.
fied W) “’ dlng e availab!e-for-

When the fz}lrg,g “’3' f un sted equity investments cannot

© Ref#132114 ..
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Notes to Financial Statements B13538 & iz

2.4 Summary of Slgnif:cam Accountmg Policies
(contlnued) . R
Investments and other fmanqal assets (conﬂnued)
Available-for-sale investments (continued)

The Group evaluates whether the ability- and intention to sell
its available-for-sale financial assets in the near term are still

) appropnate When, in rare circumstances, the Group is unable
to trade these financial assets due to inactive markets and .
management’s intent to do so 5|gn|f|cantly changes in the
foreseeable future, the Group may elect to reclassify these
financial assets. Reclassification to loans and receivables is
permitted when the, financial assets meet the definition of
loans and receivables and the Group has the intent and ability -
to hold these assets for the foreseeable future or to maturity. é
Reclassification to the held to matunty category IS perm;tted

he matunty date of the financial asset.

For a fmancnal asset reclassified from the aval
sale category, the fair value carrying amount at ih
" of -reclassification becomes its new amortlsed c*‘ 3
- previous galn or loss on that asset that { .\‘-i_‘
in equity is amortised to the consolidated2]}
over the remaining life of the investmens, usf
interest rate. Any difference bet\%c;:ent s
and the matunty amount is also amo' 5

of ‘ed cost
f,c,the remaining
strale: If the asset is

subsequently determlned‘t t ‘
recorded in equity is reclass;ﬂ. o [0
statement. “’h

Chlna Mengnlu Dalry Company Limited Annual Report 2012
Ref #1 321 14 )
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2 4 Summary of S!gmfrcant Accountmg Pohcres

(continued)
Derecogmtron of fmanaal assets

A finandial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a financial asset

or part of a group of similar financial assets) is derecognised

- when:’

. e the rights to recelve cash flows from the asset have’.

expired; or

. ) _
"« the Grolp has transferred its rights to receive cash flows

from the asset or has assumed an obligation to pay ty \
‘ received cash ﬂows in full without material delay to g%

the asset.

‘flows from an asset or has entd
' arrangement it evaluates if and to
the. risk and rewards of ownerstif:
neither transferred nor ré@e Y
rewards of the asset nor t[ Jsfe
asset is recogmse to thesex
involvement In;j.t%lg‘ SEEt s [at case, ‘the Group also
recognises ar]a\assocr te,.-" ‘ The transferred asset and
assocrated Ilab tare med red on a basis that reflects the

" When the Group has transferred\;gnh
d

: _tantlally all the risks and
\'co' itrol of 'the asset the

3 Sy

I ent that takes the form of a guarantee
é asset is measured at the lower of the

Ref #132114 -
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2.4 Summary of Srgmf:cant Accountmg Policies

{continued)
Impairment of fmanqal assets

The Group assesses at the end of each reporting period
whether there’is any. objective evidence that a financial asset
or a gréup of financial assets is Impaired. A financial asset or a

-, group of financial assets is deemed to be impaired if, and only .

if, there is objective evidence of impairment as a result of one
or more events that occurred after the initial recognition of
- the asset (an incurred “loss event”) and that loss event has an
impact on the estimated future cash flows of the financial asset
or the-group of financial assets that can be reliably estimated.
Evidence of impalrment may include indications that a debtor

or a group of debtors is experiencing significant financial.;
difficulty, default or dellnquency in interest ‘'or principal "’

payments, the probability that they will enter bankrupigy
other financial reorganisation and observable data ingf ki
that there is a measurable decrease in the estimate '
' cash-flows, such as changes in arrears or economic\
that correlate with defaults.

Financial assets carried at amodrtised cq“% ;

For financial assets carried at amortised COSPRIF gUpk
N
] ipdlrment

or collectlvely for financial asset
significant. If the Group d term
- 'of impairment exists fo |
asset, whether sign flcanf}or, .‘_c tides the assetin a
group of flnanCIal as%ts with Sj"x )?’edlt risk characteristics

|mpa|rment los 3 ?»7
lncluded in a'

: 0 fhb en incurred). The present value of the estimated
future cash flows is discounted at the finandial asset's original
' effective interest rate (i.e, the effective interest rate computed
at initial recognition). If a loan has a variable interest rate, the'.
discount rate for measuring any lmpalrment loss is the current

" effective interest rate.

China Mengnlu Dalry Company lelted Annual Report 2012 o
Ref #132114° ' :
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2 4 Summaly af Slgmflcant Accountmg Pohcnes
(contfnued) .

- . Impairment of fmanqal assets (continued)
Financial assets carrled at amortised cost (co.ntinued)
“The carrying amount of the asset is réduced through the use
of an allowance account and the- loss is recognlsed in the
consolidated income statement. Interest income continues to
be accrued on the reduced carrying amount and is accrued ‘
using the rate of interest used to discount the future cash
flows for the purpose of measurlng the |mpa|rment loss.
Loans and receivables together with any associated allowance . %,
‘are written off when there is no realistic prospect of futuge )
recovery and all collateral has been realised or has been

transferred to the Group *-\Eg} .
N TERAR IR » TER B R A B A B R
AERLNSEE MR R OEH - BIEH
P BEIERR B DU NIRRT R AR IR
-~ Ko fﬂi,ﬁ,{él&lﬁliﬁkﬁﬁ Sl R & ERBARE
FHROHBBER -

BRRARBI RS

_ ce tiiatippairient loss hasbeen WA BRI —ERBMIEN TARE
incurred on an unquoted eQUity*ips ( ent that is not carried ERERK - MRALAHRAR EEE
ot be reliably measuréd; SEHEMYERALEHE - WiEkHSHE

at fair value becaugg, its, fgsé Ua .
the amount of tﬁqtlbs"s;}h aspredyas s the difference between . TyIREA ENRE R R AE N TR R
' - i and the present value of estimated  BReRERENTS LACUSREENER
it the current market rate of ' ERFTWAMBEMEMHZEIE - REHEN

'anCIe ‘asset. Impairment losses on these ,ﬁfﬁ}aéﬂ' SHE] -

: {" ; o Tﬁﬁ%ﬁﬁ

[efor-sale investments, the Group assesses at %%T{#tﬂ%ﬁ’]}“é AEERSIRE PR

dch reporting period whether there is objective “Wﬁmﬁ?‘ﬁ:geﬁb&ﬁﬂﬁm—lﬁj ﬂﬁ}xé :

hat an investment or a group of investments is HREE '

¥an a'vallable-for—sale ﬁnancnal asset is impaired, an amount - 'fﬁj_jﬁim%ﬁmﬁéﬁtﬂ}ﬁ,ﬁﬁ IJI?EZIS(EW

comprising the difference between its cost (net of.any prlnC|pal . ,}iEHZIXﬁ&%ﬁé),\E BEAAEAEEE - R
payment and amortisation) and its current fair valug, less any ?ﬂ;)ﬁffﬂﬂ&&,kj%Aﬂ,fgi%ﬁg wm,ﬁfﬁjﬂaﬁé
-imipairment loss previously récognised in the consolidated éﬁf&%ﬁl&ﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁéﬂﬁﬁﬁﬁ °.

income statement, is removed from other comprehensnve
income and recognised in'the consolidated income statement.

: . ¢@§¢m ERAT —E-SERE
Ref #132114 _ _
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2.4 Summary of Signif icant Acceuntmg Policies

(continued) .
Impairment of financial assets (continied)
" Available-for-sale investments {continued)
In the case of equity investments classified as avallable for sale,
objective evidence would include a significant or prolonged
-decline in the fair value of an investment below its cost, The
determination of what is “significant” or “prolonged” requires
judgement. "Significant” is evaluated against the original cost
of the investment and "prolonged” against the period in which
the fair value has been below its original cost. Where there is
evidence of impairment, the cumulative loss — measured as the
difference between the écquisition cost and the current fair
value, less any impairment loss on. that investment previously<s,

recognised in the consolidated income statement — is removed

from other comprehensnve income and recognlsed it

through the consolldated income, statement. Increas: ;
fair value after. impairment are recognlsed dlrectl it )
comprehenslve income.

In the case of debt |nstruments classified a: &
impairment is assessed based on the sa;%cnte s§f|nanc1al
assets carried at amortised € tp%k r, theé amount
recorded for lmpalrment is the cUgyl3five.[oss measured as
" the difference. between th o‘{%ﬁ '-oand the current fair

value, less any lmpalrme Iga.'_' vestment previously

- . interest income contl
carrying amount Of: {116 e an

recognised in the. g&nso ’a?ﬁe statement. Future
EE’E uéd based on the reduced -
i

s accrued using the rate of

interest used to ISC‘ dture cash flows for the purpose -
% Y .

hent loss. The interest income is
‘ & income. Impalrment losses on debt

China Mengnlu Dairy Company Lfmlted Annual Report 2012
Ref #1 32114 .
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{continued)

Financial habllltles

lmtlal recognition and measurement

Financial liabilities v_vnth;n the scope of IAS 39 are dassified as
financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss, loans
and borrowings-or as derivatives designated as hedging
instruments in-an effective hedge as appropriate. The Group

determines the classification of its financial liabilities at initial

recognition.’

,AII financial hablhtles are recogmsed at fair value and, in the ke
case of loans .and borrowmgs, het of dlrectly attributablgy,

transaction costs.
\};);

on their classification as fallows: A,

Financial liabilities at fair value zt?"f%’u hs

Financial liabilities at fair value g%n
ﬁnancual llablhtles heldgfgr l':a

dttareinot desngnated as hedging instruments
. as deflned by IAS- 39. Separated

gied in the. consohdated income statement does not

dyan

any interest charged on these flnanc:al habllltles

' i anc1al llabllmes desngnated upon |n|t|al recognitionat falr
value through proﬁt or loss are de519nated at the date of initial
recognltlon and only lf the criteria in IAS 39 are-satisfied,

" Ref #132114 - "~

-ameaa+e%;

'IEMM

m;o; 'or loss mclude '

_ Schedule 3

L 115

sEaH

BfRE n""T% - 1' j
BEAA S
&« BB

Oh B0 2 T 22 2 45 0 4L AR SRR 14
;R - SEERAN - AR
TER amea&”meaaeo

BEE

eaermee&ema%anﬁmT

&ﬂﬁﬁﬁ%ﬂﬁ@ﬁﬁlﬁﬁméﬂﬁﬁ¢
RAREHEAHSHHARSEHERANE
BEBEEEOSRE RN ERERER -
EANAABIEARSDHABSEN SR
ﬁfﬁ ° '

fﬁl&ﬂﬁﬁaﬂﬁﬁﬁﬁ AR BIEE Eﬁlﬁtﬁ%

BIREARSEABERR - MO ERER

KEFTEELRIE(EE R AR EEHER]
%39ﬁ)qﬂjtiﬂﬁaﬁ'!2%”1/¢limﬁiﬁmﬂ
IE: ERIRARSTE TR RAIFEER
B - ESRIEE ARSI T AR - #
FEEHAENKEREGE DR GSFIER
PR - RIREFIBRTBBH AL EFH
&ﬁﬁﬁ?ﬁ’l"@.?ﬁﬁﬁﬁm—rﬁmﬂﬁﬁ B A7
*Um‘o :

F% ﬁ”ﬁhi%%&ﬁﬁtgﬂﬁﬁﬁ
SABRMES A ERY KRR B RER
nAew aewew%meWﬁ%ue

Eo

PRRARARAT ==



116 .

Notes to FinanciaI'Statemen'ts RIS ERRMEE

- 24 Summary of Slgn cani: Accaunimg Pol:cnes
{continued)
Financi_al liabilities (continued)
Loans and. borrowings ’ .
After initial recognition, interest-bearing loans and borrowings
are subsequently measured at amortised cost, using the
effective interest method unless the effect of discounting
would be immaterial, in- which case they are stated at cost.

Gains and losses are recognised in the consolidated income.

statement when the liabilities are derecognised as well as
through the effective interest rate amortisation process.

Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any

* discount or. premlum on acquisition and fees or costs that aresy

an integral part of the effective interest rate. The effective
interest rate amortisation is included in finance costs l‘
consolldated income statement.

Fmant:lal guarantee contracts

contracts that requ1re a payment to be %de tof
the holder for a loss it incurs because t% spdel
fails to make a payment when due in ac

recognlsed lmtially as a hablhtyq
transaction costs that are: dlrectl 51 tg the-issuance

of the guarantee. Subseq ent t ‘%J -QQQJIIOH the Group
' measures the financial gg d ractiat the higher of: (i)
the amount of the best est[ a 0 hgtexpendlture required to

h

settle the present obllba,I on a1\§t ?'af"‘,
and (ii) the amount lnlta &;ecog 158
cumulative amortlsa loqe
i ',“” har 'cnal liabilities

it ecognlsed when the obllgatlon under

terms ex15t|ng liability are substantially modlfled such
‘an exchange or modification is treated as a derecognition of
the origirial liability ahd the recognition of a new liability, and
the difference between the respective carrying amounts is
recognised in the consolidated income statement.

China Mengniu Dairy Company lelted Annual Report 201 2
Ref #1 321 14 :
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2 4 Summaly of Slgmftcant Accountmg Policies 2.4 Ek%n"rﬂiﬁﬁig(é)

{continued) .
Offsetting of flnanqal mstruments
“Financial assets and f!nanctal liabilities are offset and the net
amount is reported in the statement of financial position
if there is a currently enforceable legal right to offset the
recognised -amounts and there is an intention to settle on
~a'net ba5|s, or to_ realise the assets and settle the liabilities

: snmultaneously

Fair value of financial instruments
’ 'The fair value of ﬁnancial instruments that are traded.in active

and ask price for short positions), wnthout any deductlona ,
transactlon costs. For flnancra] |nstruments wher ch

same a d|scounted cash flow analysus Al
model. : N

Denvatlve flnanual mstrume t§§. ; )
g's%}‘ement

The Group uses derlvatl % % _‘-,1&5truments to hedge
. certain busmess nsks Suchzdar] qy& .-tfnancial instruments
- are initially recog ﬁl alug"on the.date on which,
a derivative gon’t " to and are subsequently

S ? ﬁ[atlves are carried as financial

mmodlty purchase contracts that meet the

derivative under IAS 39 are recognised in the
%’come statement as cost ‘of sales, Commodity
q t are entered into and continue io be held for the
2¥of the receipt or dellvery of a non-financial item in
ce with the Group’s expected purchase, sale or usage

e ﬁeq rements are held at cost.

Any gams ot losses arlsmg from changes in the fair value’

of derivatjvés$ are taken directly to the consohdated income _ .

statement except for the effective portion of cash flow
hedges which is recogmsed in other comprehensnve income.

_Ref #132114
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2 4 Summary of Significant Accountmg Pahc;es

(contmued)
Derivative financial instruments (contmued)

- Current versus non-current classnflcatlon
Derivative instruments that are not designated as effectlve

. hedging instruments are classified as current or non-current or
separated into current and non-current portions based on an
assessment of the facts. and circumstances (i.e., the underlylng

contracted cash flows):

e Where the Group expects to hold a derivative as an

economic hedge (and does not appTy hedge accounting)

for a period beyond 12 months.after the reporting date,
the derivative is classified as non-current (or separa’ted“»}i.{p

into current and non-current portions) consistent wuth he
classification of the underlying item.

of the host contract.
e

‘e Derivative instruments that are des'?%%;
effective hedging instruments, are classifjel

with the classn‘lcatlon of the und@iﬂg ‘e ed item..

portions and non- -current pg:ggb- y
allocation can be made N

Biological assets:

_Dalrycows L
Dairy ‘cows, |nclud %:%:f ble cows heifers and calves, :

are measured 90| -_l ‘t%gmtlon and at the end of the

e ogmsed in the consolidated incorne
rin which it arises. Costs to sell are thé

based .9%;
_independeéntly by a professional valuer:

‘The feeding costs and other related. costs includihg the -
depreciation charge, utilities cost and consumables incurred-

for the raising of heifers and calves. are capitalised, until such
time as the heifers and calves begln to produce milk.

Chira Mengriu Dalry Company Ljmited Annual Report 2012
Ref #132144 T e A |
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 value less costs to sell, with.any

svpresent location and condltlon and is determlned'
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" Notes to Finandial Statements BAEFERKIEE

2.4 Summary of Slgmflcant Accountlng Pohaes
- (continued)
Agricultural produce

Mllk
Agricultural produce represents milk. Milk is recognised at the

- point of harvest at its fair value less costs to sell. The fair value
of milk is determined based on _market prices in the local area.

Inventones
Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable

value.

Costs incurred in bringing each product to its presént locatidTiy
and conditions are accounted for as follows: o
o Ay

RS

but excludlng borr ning oon a

Rt

" Net realisable value is the estl
: estlmated costs to be lncurred to
*x@ .

- Cash and cash equnvale tz%’ )

il

«‘"f?

For the purpose.¢ ofa {80) d sfatement of cash flows,
cash and cash equlva rjt ‘g;%’p S cash on hand and demand
depasits, and-\‘_sgort ~ hqutd investments that are
readily convertfé%ht
to an InSlg @} s, 3

e of changes in value and have a short

! are not restrlcted as tq use.

© Ref #132114 .".

o kno n amounts of cash, are subject’

_, fhm three months when acquired, less -
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Notes to Financial Statements Fi7§RFRHIEE .

‘2.4 Summary of Sigmﬁcanu. Accounting Pohc:es

(contmued)

Provisions -
A provisions is recognised when the: Group has a present

obligation (legal or constructive) as a result of a past event, it -

s p'rc;bab!_e that an outflow of resources embodying economic
benefits will be required to settle the.o'bligati.on and a reliable
estimate.can be made of the amount of the obligation.

‘When the effect of discounting is material, the amount
recognised for a provision is the present value at the end
of the reporting period of the future expenditures expected
to be required to settle the obligation. The increase in the
discounted present value amount arising from the passage of
time is lncluded in flnance costs in the, consolidated fncome

staTement

Income tax
+ Income tax comprises current en
relating to items recogmse 5QLIts
‘outside proflt or loss, elfher,}e

directly in equity. 'sx
'E

2 v. q@ .
fred§tax Income tax
&% 1bss is recognised

3 al;'r been enacted or substantlvely enacted
»Q&epomng petiod, taking into considerations
nd practices prevailing in the countries in

.Deferre mcome tax
Deferred tax is prowded usmg ‘the liability method on

Itemporary differences at the end of the reporting period -

between ‘the tax bases of assets and habllltles and thelr
carrying amounts for fmanCIal reporting purposes.

China Mengnlu D'aqi'r)} an’ipainy Limited - Annual Repbrt 2012.
 Ref#182114 -
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(continued)

Income taXx (contintied)

Deferred income taX (continued)

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for all taxable temporary

differenées, except:

¢ when the déferred tax hablllty arises from the initial
recognltlon of goodwlll or an asset or. hablhty in a
transaction that is not a business combination and, at the
time of the transaction, affects neither the accounting

profit nor taxable profit or loss; and

. » in respect of taxable temporary differences associatedi

_ with investments in subsidiaries, associates and g, joi
vénture, when the timing of the reversal of the tempotgy
differences can be controHe'd and it is proba e thatath

-unused tax Iosses Deferred tax asegts -'_T" EC
extent that it is probable that tax; l%' Sl

. when the deferred ta :asse
s
temporary 'Heﬁﬁx as

an dsset or ha i

.comblnatio and% :

tr
‘gme of the transaction, affects

nejther thﬁcou iQ-g ‘profit nor taxable profit or loss;
.. and e 4 = .

v‘-.![

_;%,353?

Tt?e carrylng amount of’ deferred tax.assets is reviewed at the
end of the reporting period and reduced to the extent that

it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable _profit will be”
available to allow all or part of the deferred tax asset to be -

utilised. Unrecognlsed deferred tax assets are reassessed at the

end of tié’ reporting period and. are recognlsed to the extent

- that it has beconie probable that future taxable proflt w1l|
alfow the deferred tax asset to be recovered

Ref #132114

tmg to the deductible’

- %ﬁ@;ﬂ‘fhe initial recognition of -
s tragsaction that is not a business.
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Notes to. Financial Statements BAFS3R& IS

2. 4 Summary of Srgmfrcant Acceuntmg Policies

{continued)

"Income tax (continued)

Déferred income tax (continued)

" Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax
rates that are expected to apply to the year when the asset'is
realised or the liability is settled, based on tax rates (and tax
laws) that have been enacted or substantlvely enacted by the

end of the reporting penod

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are ‘offset if a.
legally enforceable right exists to set off current income tax
assets against current tax liabilities and the deferred taxes

relate to the same taxable entity and the same taxatlon &Z‘ :

authority.

~ Government grants
Grants relatmg to biological assets

consolldated income statement when, a%konl’“,en

government grant becomes receivable. If‘ oy o ts]
related to a biological asset measured at its g '% £S5 sts
to sell is conditional,. the Group recoggls '
grant in the consolidated lncome‘stateme i wheﬁ%’and only :
when, the conditions attaching t m }nent grant are

met.”

Other grants (;
Government grants a'rep[ec

% A £
it'their fair value where
L%e grant will be received
lLbe complled W|th When the '
0 .. i m it is recognised as income on

asset DY eual annual instalments or'deducted from the
carrying amount of the asset and released to the consolidated
income statement by way of a reduted depreciation charge.

China Mengniu Dairy Company lelted Annual Report 20i2 ’
Ref #132114, : ’
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Notes to Financial Statements B8 sisE

2.4 Summary of Srgnrfrcant Accountmg Policies -

‘(conﬂnued)
Government grants (continued)

" Other grants (continued) -
Where the Group receives a non-monetary grant, the asset and
the grant are recorded at the fair value of the non-monetary
asset and released to the consolidated income statement over
the expected useful life of the relevant asset by equal annual

instalments.

Where the Group receives government loans granted with no

-or at a below-market rate of interest for the construction of a - ?’

quahfymg asset the |n|t|al carrying amount of the governmen

expected useful life. of the relevant asset
|nstalments ' ,

Revenue recognition
Reve_nue is reco'gnised when it is__ .

SES

Sale of goods 5, % 'f

- Revenue is recogg %@;%n\ e@bmﬂcant risks and rewards

of ownershlp of h ve been transferred to the

buyer, provrded}that thega*)'OUp maintains neither managerial

involvement to}gé;_g greesUsually assodiated wrth ownership,
xol

nor effectlve*Co er the goods sold.

ferest method by applying the rate that exactly discounts

stimated future cash receipts over the expected life of the
financial instrument or a shorter penod ‘whery appropnate to
the net carrylng amount of the financial asset.

Dlvrdends

Revenle is recognised when the shareholders right to receive -

the payment has been established:

" . Ref#132114 -
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" Notes to Finandial Statements BRI

2.4 Summary of Significant Account -.mg Pahaes

(continued) *
. Employée benefits
" Retirement beneflts
The Group'’s subsidiaries operating in the People s Republlc of
China except for Hong Kong ("Mainland China”) participate
in a central defined contribution retirement benefit plan
managed by the local municipal government in the locations
in which they operate. Contributions are made based on a
" percentage of the companies’ payroll costs and are charged to
the corisolidated income statement as they become payable in
- accordance with the rules of the central defined contribution

retirement benefit plan.

' @mﬁaﬁmmeﬁu DI
A -—THAARHNENEAESR
SN A Bl ([ REE2 D) - HADRE
159 W CEEEAFEAEAEOLAMNE - ¥RIBR

made based on a percentage of the employees bas xS %ﬁﬁ%{%ﬂé@%ﬂ,ﬁﬂ B ESRATIERAX
et ey o o BWAHBAMNBENNBIRAEZMN

—ERVEENESRE  c EAREEMRTE
SRR ERHAE - R BBRESR -

. they become payable in accordance with t
Scheme. The _assets of‘ the MPF- Scheme

e UG HERNEM

cfiBne for the purpose - AR IARBRE S - BLHARE

g d;%ehgl le participants who %a%ﬁﬂ BEAER2REELBD R 12
Ol \}operatlons Employees CH o AKEEER(RIEES)SRIUARK S
*Yéceive remuneration jn the HEBROXAEANMS - MESSRERS .
@%\s whereby émployees render " fEAIICA T AME(TIIBIHR )

r;}‘ glity instruments (”equnty—settled '

& _%f?

Share-based payments (\ \,I—,,.,P_‘

_The Company operates 3 5 gg‘[e Toptio %
of providing incentives an re
contnbute to the succE'.‘s 0

ﬁ@ﬁﬁﬁ%%%ﬁ%?%ﬁ%%ﬁ&%ﬂ

B HBAREERK - ARETIHMNER

(ed. 'fEEﬂiii_IE‘Q‘HE*ﬁ”Q%E(?FEEH%#E?% :
Bip %3 binomial model further details of which are H]‘.TI"45)

glven noe 45 to the finandial statements

China Mengniu Dairy Company Limited Annual Report 2012
Ref #132114 -



Notes to Finandial Statements BIiSERFEMEE

2. 4 Summary of Slgmflcant Accauntmg Policies

{continued)
-Employee benefits (continued)
Share-based payments (continued)

The cost of equity-settled transactions is recognised, together.

with. a corresponding increase in équity, over the period in
whrch the performance and service conditions are fulfilled. The
climulative expense recognlsed for equrty-settled ‘transactions

at the end of each reporting period until the vesting date.
reflects the extent to which the vesting penod has explred .

and the Group’s best estimate’of the number of equity

instruments that will ultimately vest. The charge or credit tO¥
the consolidated income statement for the period represent )

the movement in’ cumulative expense recognised as atit
beginning and end of that period. ’ »

Where the terms of an egﬁrty-seﬁ awa ,(%‘

‘ %-@6’5‘ the award are met.
;-},}- Jor any modification that

An additional expén E?S\ _ .
lncreases the totalj &

of modrfrcatron “’w&
. " e‘ o

S8 ed’award is cancelled, it is treated as if
the date of cancellation, and any expense
for the award is recognlsed |mr'ned1atelyb

3 rs and designated as a replacement ‘award on the date
"%’( atiit is granted, the cancelled and new awards are treated as
if they were a modrflcatlon of the original award, as described

"in the prevnous paragraph

. The_di-luti'\'/e effect of outstanding options is reflected as:

additiqnal share dilution in the coniputation of earhings per

share. -

Ref#132114 "
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, Notes fo Fmancnal Statements AR

2.4 Summary of Sigmﬁcam Acrountmg Pohc:es

({continued)

Borrowing costs :

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition,
construction or production of qualifying assets, i.e., assets
that necessarily take a substantial period of time to prepare

for their intended use, are capitalised as a part of the cost of

those assets. The capitalisation of.such borrowing costs ceases
when the assets are substantially ready for their intended use.

- Investment income earned on the temporary investment of
épecific borrowings pending their expenditure on qualifying
assets, is deducted from the borrowing costs -cépitalised.

All other borrowing costs are recognised as expenses in the,,,

consolidated income statement in the period in which they are *

., .-»"*sg..

mcurred

Sl g

" When these dividends are apprcﬁféd ‘-‘S@
dedclared, they are recognlsed asa'lia ut

. Fesh
lntenm dwndends are sm),u[‘aneoﬁsfubroosed and.declared,

because the Comp\a y's’ r[‘l‘}gﬁ, dum and articles of
association grant the B e,ctors uthorlty to declare interim

d|v1dends Conseq?g}‘: i tenm dividends are- recognlsed

China Mengnlu Dalry Company Limlted Annual Report 2012
Ref #1321 14 ’
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Notes to Financial Statements BRI

2.4 Summaly of Slgmfrcant Accounting Policies 2.4_5?(%%‘?@%1@1%@?) K

nw
't%eeeefg

(com,mued)

Foreign currencies
Each entity in the Group determmes its own functional

currency based on the assessment of its specific facts and

circumstances. The Company, established in-the Cayman

Islands, uses the Hong Kong dollar as its functional currency

-and the subsidiaries, established in the PRC, use the Renminbi’

("RMB") as their functional cu'rrency. As the Group mainly
operates in Mainland China, RMB is used as the presentation
currency of the Group. Foreign currency transactions recorded

by the entities in the Group are initially recorded using theg%
respective functlonal currency rates prevarlrng at the dates of

cost in a foreign currency are trans
rate as at the dates of the initial t‘ nsf
items measured at fair value in"3kf:
translated using the exchange rajé§a

_ value was determined THi ga"’ i

S%r Value is treated in line

with the recogmtro of the =bn change in fair value

of the item (i.e. ,311; nsJ' [tferd[ice on the item whose fair
‘value gain or, J%}sr o) oot : ~v,‘f'jt'her comprehensive income
or the consollda ed iMEomaistatement is also recognised in
' incdme or the consolidated income

,werghted average exchange rates far the reporting

O

Period. The resulting exchange drfferences are recognised in
other compiehensive income and accumulated in a separate
‘component of equity. Ori disposal of a foreign operation, the
component of othér comprehensive income relating to that
particular foreign operation is recognised in the consolidated

income statement.

* Ref #132114
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Notes to Financial Statements BRI

2.4 Summary of Slgmﬁcant Acceuntmg Policies

{continued)
Foreign currencies (continued)
For the purpose of the consolidated statement of cash flows,

the cash flows of overseas subsidiaries are translated into RMB

"at the exchange rates ruling at the dates of the cash flows.
Frequently recurring cash flows of overseas subsidiaries which
arise throughout.the year are 'translat_ed into RMB at the
weighted average exchange rates for the year.

2 5 significant Accounung Judgements and
. Estimates

1
[N

The preparatlon of the Group's financial statements requires

management to make judgernents, estimatés-and assurptions ™ »

that affect the reported amounts of revenues, expenses, as ets

require a material adjustment to the carrylng amoun
assets or liabilities affected in the future, ,

Judgements

the most significant effect on: fhé-

consolidated financial statements:; AN
\\ ‘A“ii &

d}.f "‘\-‘:

( dividends -
o 'The Group s determ

i d to be a Chinese resrdent enterprlse by
; J authorltles in the future. Management

accordlng Y no addltlonal provision for WIthholdlng tax was

made.in 2012, Where the final outcome of these matters'is -

: different from the amounts originally rewarded, the difference
will impact the deferred tax provnston in the period in which

the dn‘ferences reallse

China Mﬁngniu Dal?’ Company | lelted Annual Report 201 2
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2.5 Slgmflcant Accountmg Judgements and

ES'l‘lmateS (continued) ‘

) Judgements (contlnued)

Operating Iease commltments ~ group as lessor

The Group has entéred into commercial leases on certain
of its ranch facrlmes comprising of plant and machlnery
included in the property, plant and equipment account. The
Group has determined, based on an evaluation of the terms
‘and conditions of the arrangements, that it retains all the
slgnn‘rcant risks and rewards of ownership of these properties
which are leased out on opérating leases.

- Operating Iease cdmmitments group as'lessee

occupled propertles NG

. The Group determmes whether 3% OPEIik f‘fled as an

dr; or both Therefore,
v géenerates cash flows

the Group consrders whe e i
largely mdependenf oﬁr;% »
Some propertges c‘ompn githat is held to earn rentals
or for capltal‘é rec %d another portion that is held
" for use in the pé ct supply of goods or services or
for admlnlst poses. If these portlons could be sold
separately p\ e separately under a finance lease, the
g the portlons separately. If the portions

Jl¢ separately, the property is an investment
an Insignificant portion is held for use in the

rdetermine whether:ancillary services are so significant that a
Hroperty does not qualify as an investment property. '

" Ref#132114

itétia in making. -

qssets held by the Group.

" Schedule 3
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‘2.5 Significant Accounting Judgements and 2
Estimates (ontnued) ‘

Estimation uncertainty

The key assumptlons concerning the future and other key

sources of estimation uncertainty at the end of the reporting -
' perlod, that have a significant risk of causing a material

adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities

Withln the next financial year, are described below.

Impairment of goodwill
The Group determines whether goodwill | is lmpalred at least on:
-an annual basis. This requires an estimation of the value in use
of the cash- -generating units to which the goodwill is allocated.
Estimating the value in use requires the Group to make ana.%
estimate of the expected future cash flows from the cash-
generating unit and also to choose a suitable discount r&e@n '
order to calculate the present value of those cash flowssBety

ah o

Impairment for all non- flnancral assetsy "
reporting period. Indefinite llfe intangible ais! “é

Impairment annually and at other times w%h

."4

| [tvext gds its recoverable
Q},[ Value less costs to
tioh of the falr value less

“of an asset or a cash- g
amount, which is the h
sell and its value in l]s
costs to sell is based?".

he "¢ ‘L‘

China Mengniu Dairy Company Limited  Annual Report 2012
Ref #132114 :
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25 Significant Accounting Judgements and
EStlmateS {cantinued)
Estrmatlon uncertainty (continued)

Deferred tax assets
Deferred tax assets are recognlsed for all deductrble temporary :

differences and all unuséd tax losses to the extent that it is
probable that taxable profit will be available against which the
deductible temporary differences and the unused tax losses
can be utilised. Sighiﬁcent management judgement is required
" to determine the amount of deferred tax assets that can be
recognised, based upon the: likely timing and level of future
taxable profits, which affects the probability of utilisation and,

-the tax rate to be used in the calculations. Details of deferred Bl

tax assets are ‘cohtained in note 23 to the financial statem&ts

Fair vélue of financial rnstruments

discounted cash flow model. The ip

taken from observable markets whea'gi‘ '
is not feasible, a degree of judgementys equire
fair values The judg'ements incl i

o, ]

'value of financial i ln%rume_ 5
1“:& P

(—‘\'v

Eh 1-

Le mvestments

Imparrment f avarj
estments, the Group assesses

For avallable-fo : ale fT

_that an rnvese -.‘o‘rgé group of investments is impaired. I
ve‘}tments classified as avallable-for-sale'
ould include a significant or prolonged

' T

ess than its cost.

Ref #132114°
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2.5 Slgnlflcant Accountmg Judgemenﬁs and
Estimates {continued) : )
Estimation uncertamty {continued)

Impairment of trade and other receivables o

The Group determines the provision.for impairment of
trade and other receivables based on an assessment of the
recoverability of the receivables. This assessment is based
on the-credit history of-its customers and other debtors and
the current market condition. Management reassesses the
provisions at the end of each reporting period.

Fair value of contingent considerations -

Conti.ngent considerations, resulting from business
combinations, are valued at fair value at the acquisition date. Ny
as part of the business combmatlons Where the contlngent )

target and the discount factors

Share- based payments

“the equity

instruments at the date at which 4tffe ted Estimating

fair value requires determipi 1§ .
model for a grant of equi % e
on the terms and co%d Ton% %@?an

vhich is dependent
-This also requ1res

_China Mengnlu Dairy Company lelted Annval Repon 2012 -
Ref #1 32114

25 BAE —i;cJ#ﬁwamE)

pnate valuation
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2.5 Significant Accountmg Judgements and
" Estimates tontinued .
Estimation uncertainty (continued)
Useful livés, residual values and depreclatron of property,
plant and equrpment '
The Group determines the estlmated useful lives and related
depreciation charges for its property, plant and equipment.
This estimate is based on the historical experience of the actual
useful lives of property, plant and equrpment of similar nature
and functions. The Group will revise the deprecratron charges
where uséful lives are different to those previously estimatéd,

or it will write-off or write-down technically obsolete or nons .‘
ﬁ‘zs,«

strategic assets that have been abandoned or sold. Actua
economic lives may differ from estimated useful lives; %&u
resrdual values may differ from estlmated re5|dual val

future perrods
Fair value of dalry cows

fo sell. The fair. value of dairy cov
" either the market-determined prlc
reportlng perrod adjusted W|th re

Vi éerIs ics and/or stages of
.‘r‘gs;ent value of expected’

growth of the dargﬁco
srdlscounted at a current

net cash flows fr%mﬂ ]
market-deter, med,,tgh(
ake

are unavarlablé,,for t v
- in the estimateSy ”'ay affect:the fair value of the dairy cows

srgnrflcantlyf#%g%%endent qualified professional valuer
and ma n% tew the assumptions and estimates
Sl ety any significant change in the fair value
DL ails of assumptions used are disclosed in

' Ref #132114;
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